Public Document Pack

NOTICE OF MEETING

Meeting

Date and
Time
Place

Enquiries
to

Hampshire Fire and Rescue Clerk to the Hampshire Fire and
Authority Rescue Authority

John Coughlan CBE
Tuesday, 13th June, 2017 11.00 am

The Castle,
Winchester
Fire and Police HQ, Leigh Road, Hampshire
Eastleigh S023 8UJ

members.services@hants.qov.uk

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations are in force, giving a legal
right to members of the public to record (film, photograph and audio-record) and report
on proceedings at meetings of the Authority, and its committees and/or its sub-

committees. The Authority has a protocol on filming, photographing and audio-

recording, and reporting at public meetings of the Authority which is available on our
website. At the start of the meeting the Chairman will make an announcement that the
meeting may be recorded and reported. Anyone who remains at the meeting after the
Chairman’s announcement will be deemed to have consented to the broadcast of their
image and anything they say.

Agenda

1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence

ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN

To appoint a Chairman until the Annual Meeting of the Authority in 2018.
ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRMAN

To appoint a Vice-Chairman until the Annual Meeting of the Authority in
2018.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To enable Members to disclose to the meeting any disclosable pecuniary
interest they may have in any matter on the agenda for the meeting,
where that interest is not already entered in the Authority’s register of
interests, and any other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests in any such
matter that Members may wish to disclose.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 5 - 10)



10

11

12

13

To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting held on 21 February
2017.

DEPUTATIONS

Pursuant to Standing Order 19, to receive any deputations to this
meeting

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
To receive any announcements the Chairman may wish to make.
CONSTITUTION OF HFRA (Pages 11 - 132)

To receive a report of The Clerk proposing that the Authority adopt a new
constitution.

APPOINTMENT OF STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
AND OTHER APPOINTMENTS (Pages 133 - 144)

To receive a report of The Clerk seeking appointments approval.
CHIEF OFFICER RECRUITMENT (Pages 145 - 150)

To receive a report of The Clerk regarding Chief Officer recruitment.
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2016-17 (Pages 151 - 164)

To receive a report of the Chief Officer seeking approval for the Annual
Governance Statement 2016-17.

FIRE GOVERNANCE OPTIONS APPRAISAL PROJECT (Pages 165 -
170)

To receive a report of the Chief Officer regarding an appraisal of Fire
governance options

MINUTES OF STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 23
MARCH 2017 (Pages 171 - 180)

To receive the Minutes and supporting report of the Standards and
Governance Committee held on the 23 March 2017.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC



Recommendation:

To resolve that the public be excluded from the meeting during the
following items of business, as it is likely, in view of the nature of the
business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if
members of the public were present during these items there would be
disclosure to them of exempt information within Paragraph 3 of Part |
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, and further that in all
the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information, for
the reasons set out in the reports.

14 APPOINTMENT OF STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
AND OTHER APPOINTMENTS (EXEMPT APPENDIX) (Pages 181 -
200)

To receive an exempt appendix relating to Item 9 on the agenda

ABOUT THIS AGENDA:

This agenda is available on the Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service website
(www.hantsfire.gov.uk) and can be provided, on request, in alternative versions
(such as large print, Braille or audio) and in alternative languages.

ABOUT THIS MEETING

The press and public are welcome to attend the public sessions of the meeting. If
you have any particular requirements, for example if you require wheelchair
access, please contact members.services@hants.gov.uk for assistance.



http://www.hantsfire.gov.uk/
mailto:members.services@hants.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

At a meeting of the HAMPSHIRE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY held at the Fire
and Police Headquarters, Eastleigh, on 21 February, 2017

PRESENT:
Councillors:
p | John Bennison p | Frank Jonas
p | Ann Briggs p | Fiona Mather
p | Graham Burgess a | Robin Mcintosh
p | Chris Carter a | Andy Moore
p | Roz Chadd p | Sharon Mintoff
p | Hannah Coombs a | Frank Pearce
p | Mark Cooper p | Roger Price
p | Liz Fairhurst p | David Simpson
p | Jane Frankum p | Mark Staplehurst
p | David Fuller p | Luke Stubbs
a | Jonathan Glen p | John Wall
p | David Harrison p | Matthew Winnington
p | Geoff Hockley

Michael Lane, Police and Crime Commissioner, was also in attendance.

251

252

253

254

255

BROADCASTING ANNOUNCEMENT

The Chairman announced that the meeting was being recorded for broadcast on
the Authority’s website and would be available for repeated viewing. The press
and members of the public were also permitted to film and broadcast this
meeting. Those remaining at the meeting were consenting to being filmed and
recorded, and to the possible use of those images and recording for
broadcasting purposes.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies were received from Councillors Glen, Moore and Mclintosh.
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were mindful of their duty to disclose at the meeting any disclosable
pecuniary interest they had in any matter on the agenda for the meeting, where
that interest was not already entered in the Authority's register of interests, and
their ability to disclose any other personal interests in any such matter that they
might have wished to disclose.

MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting of the Authority held on 8 December 2016 were
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

DEPUTATIONS

No deputations requests were received for the meeting.

Page 5



256

257

258

259

MEMBERS’ QUESTIONS AND DEVELOPMENT
Councillor Bennison updated the Authority on a recent incident at Fleet Services.

Councillor Frankum reported on a recent visit she had made to Basingstoke fire
station.

CHAIRMAN’S COMMUNICATIONS
The Chairman had no announcements on this occasion.
ACTIVITY REPORT

The Authority considered the report of the Chief Officer, Item 7 in the Minute
Book, regarding activity in the period 1 October 2016 to 31 December 2016.

Member queries relating to individual incidents and to the report in general were
responded to.

RESOLVED:

The Authority noted the report.

BUDGET AND PRECEPT REQUIREMENT 2017/18

The Authority received the report of the Chief Fire Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer regarding the budget and precept requirement for 2017/18, item 8 in the
Minute Book.

The Chief Financial Officer introduced the report, highlighting the key issues and
recommendations to the Authority with regards to the precept. It was noted that
the final local government financial settlement had now been received.

The Authority considered the recommendations and it was:

RESOLVED:

a. That if any subsequent minor technical changes are required to the budget,
the Chief Financial Officer in consultation with the Chief Fire Officer and the
Chairman of the Authority is given delegated authority to reflect the actual
position in the budget.

b. That the revenue budget for 2017/18 as set out at Appendix A is approved.

c. That the capital programme for 2017/18 as set out in appendix E and the
funding of this as set out in appendix F be approved.

d. That the Treasury Management Strategy and Annual Investment Strategy for
2017/18 (and the remainder of 2016/17) as set out in Appendix G is
approved, including:

. Prudential Indicators for 2017/18, 2018/19 and 2019/20 — Annex C

Page 6



260

. Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Statement — Annex D

And that authority is delegated to the Treasurer to manage the Fire & Rescue
Authority’s investments according to the risk assessment process in the
Investment Strategy as appropriate.

e. That the budget requirement for the general expenses of the Authority for the
year beginning 1st April 2017 be £64,075,000.

f. That the council tax requirement for the Authority for the year beginning 1st
April 2017 be £39,483,585.09.

g. That the Authority’s council tax be increased by 1.98% for the year beginning
1st April 2017 and for the properties in each band to be:

Band A: £42.56 Band E: £78.03
Band B: £49.65 Band F: £92.21
Band C: £56.75 Band G: £106.40
Band D: £63.84 Band H: £127.68

That the precepts, as set out below, totalling £39,483,585.09 are issued on the
billing authorities in Hampshire, requiring the payment in such instalments and

on such dates set by them and previously notified to the Authority, in proportion
to the tax base of each billing authority’s area as determined by them.

Basingstoke and Deane Borough Council 4,045,981.30
East Hampshire District Council 3,121,826.43
Eastleigh Borough Council 2,816,514.83
Fareham Borough Council 2,705,002.94
Gosport Borough Council 1,685,995.25
Hart District Council 2,518,119.64
Havant Borough Council 2,549,578.08
New Forest District Council 4,478,707.97
Portsmouth City Council 3,532,260.82
Rushmoor Borough Council 1,942,283.48
Southampton City Council 4,015,536.00
Test Valley Borough Council 3,020,589.60
Winchester City Council 3,051,188.75
Total 39,483,585.09

h. That in accordance with the set of principles set by the Secretary of State for
Communities and Local Government for the year, it is determined that the
relevant basic amount of council tax for 2017/18 is not excessive.

BLUE LIGHT COLLABORATION

The Authority received a presentation regarding Blue Light collaboration, item 9
in the Minute Book.

It was heard that Blue Light collaboration was at an advanced stage in

Hampshire with respective areas of skills and expertise being used, a focus on
mutual understanding and sustainable long-term outcomes.

Page 7



261

Particular structures and areas of joint working were identified in particular
around providing support for vulnerable people. It was noted that as well as
working together and encouraging contact with other services at a people level,
there were opportunities to share specialist equipment and resources.

Members welcomed the presentation and the direction of travel. Some concern
was expressed that service specialism may be lost or watered down and it was
clarified that the emphasis was on utilising specialisms more widely.

RESOLVED:

That the Authority note the contents of the presentation and support the direction
of travel.

POTENTIAL TO EXPAND THE EXISTING COMBINED FIRE AUTHORITY OF
HAMPSHIRE, PORTSMOUTH AND SOUTHAMPTON TO INCLUDE THE ISLE
OF WIGHT FIRE AUTHORITY

The Authority received the report of the Chief Fire Officer regarding the possible
addition of the Isle of Wight Fire Authority to the existing Combined Fire Authority
(CFA) arrangements for Hampshire, Portsmouth and Southampton, item 10 in
the Minute Book.

The context of the new Policing and Crime Act and the duty to collaborate placed
on Fire Authorities was set out. It was noted that there had been a strategic
partnership between Hampshire and the Isle of Wight for the past two years,
resulting in a service level alignment. Members heard that the Isle of Wight
Council were due to consider similar proposals to explore possibilities for greater
integration and it was confirmed that no outcomes of this were foreseen.

Suggesting that HFRA should await the view of the Isle of Wight Council, it was
proposed by Councillor Winnington and seconded by Councillor Simpson that
the decision be deferred until the next meeting of the Authority. A vote was held
and with 8 for and 13 against, the proposal was lost.

The recommendations were considered and it was proposed by Councillor Price
and seconded by Councillor Harrison that the word “create” in paragraph 2.2 be
replaced with “investigate”. The amendment was agreed and it was

RESOLVED:

a. That HFRA acknowledge the new duty to be placed upon the Fire Services
to collaborate with blue light partners as legislated through the Policing and
Crime Act 2017.

b. That HFRA agree to, and subject to the Isle of Wight Council also agreeing,
give the Chief Officer the authority to investigate a business case for the Fire
Authority’s consideration and to present back to the Authority in December
2017 for further decision.

Page 8



262

263

264

MINUTES OF PERFORMANCE REVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 24
JANUARY 2017

The Authority received and noted the Minutes of the Performance Review and
Scrutiny Committee held on the 24 January 2017.

MINUTES OF HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE - 26 JANUARY 2017

The Authority received and noted the Minutes of the Human Resources
Committee held on 26 January 2017.

The recommendation to the Authority at Minute 165 was agreed.

MINUTES OF FINANCE AND GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE -1
FEBRUARY 2017

The Authority received and noted the Minutes of the Finance and General
Purposes Committee held on 1 February 2017.

It was noted that the recommendations to the Authority at Minute 183 had been
agreed under the Budget item.

The recommendation to the Authority at Minute 185 was agreed.

Pags 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

Purpose: Decision

HAMPSHIRE

Date: 13 JUNE 2017 FIRE AND
o : _ RESCUE
Title: HFRA’s Constitution AUTHORITY

Report of the Clerk

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1. This report proposes that the Authority adopt a new constitution containing all of
the governance and constitutional arrangements that apply to the Authority’s
activities.

2. A draft of the proposed constitution is set out at Appendix 1. Key features are
explained in this report along with significant changes to the previous
constitutional documents.

BACKGROUND

3. Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority concluded a governance review in 2016
and resolved to reduce the number of members of the Authority to 10 and also
to invite the Police and Crime Commissioner to become a voting member. The
new Authority is constituted with effect from June 2017. The addition of the
PCC is being progressed with the Home Office via an amendment to the
Combination Order, but due to the snap General Election this has been
delayed.

4. As part of its decision to implement the new governance model at the meeting
on 7 September 2016, the Authority delegated authority to the Clerk to:

“Prepare appropriate draft revisions to the Authority’s Standing Orders and
Committee Terms of Reference and any other relevant governance
documentation for consideration at the annual meeting of the Authority in 2017”

5.  Officers have carried out a review of all of the Authority’s governance
documents, on behalf of the Clerk and Monitoring Officer. The Authority’s
Governance Improvement Plan also recommended that various governance
documents were reviewed and a “constitution” created.

6. Inlight of the review, the Clerk is proposing that for ease of reference and use,
the revised documents are consolidated into a single constitution. A copy of the
proposed constitution is attached at Appendix 1. The key changes are
summarised in this report.

Page 11



KEY CHANGES IN THE NEW CONSTITUTION

7.

The draft constitution contains most of the governance documents that HFRA
had previously adopted, including Standing Orders, Financial Regulations,
Contract Standing Orders and the Scheme of Delegation. It also includes
some narrative to explain how the Authority is constituted and makes decisions
and has appendices containing other relevant documents. Key changes are
summarised below, but only at a high level.

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Full Authority Terms of Reference — Part 3, section 3.1 of the
Constitution contains proposed terms of reference for the Authority. These
are intended to capture the key areas of business for the Authority. An
indicative timetable and annual work plan is also referred to.

Standards and Governance Committee — Terms of Reference — Part 3,
section 3.3 contains the proposed terms of reference for the Standards
and Governance Committee, which will be the only standing committee in
the new governance structure.

Scheme of Delegation — Part 3, section 3.6 contains the new Scheme of
Delegation to Officers. This has been substantially changed, mostly for
clarity. The most substantial change is the express delegation to the Chief
Officer to do anything on behalf of the Authority that is not reserved to the
Full Authority or to Standards and Governance Committee. However, the
delegation to the Chief Officer is subject to the budget, the Constitution
and Financial Regulations.

Rules of Procedure — these are set out at Part 4. Standing Orders and
Contract Standing Orders have been amended slightly to reflect the new,
reduced size of the Authority and the reduction to one standing committee.
Financial Regulations have been more substantially amended to reflect
the Authority’'s new Terms of Reference and revised Scheme of
Delegation. Some key points for Members to note about the amended
Financial Regulations are:

7.4.1 There is a proposed amendment to Financial Regulations A5
and A18, the effect of which is to increase the financial limit for budget
virements that require Authority approval from £100K to £200K. The Chief
Officer would be able to approve virements of up to £200K, rather than
currently up to £100K. This level of authority has not been reviewed for
many years. The proposed amendment is intended to ensure appropriate
levels of flexibility and administrative efficiency, given the current pace of
change within the organisation and fire and rescue sector generally.

7.4.2 There is also a proposed amendment to Financial Regulations
A5 and A26, in respect of the financial limits for writing off debts. The
proposal is to increase the level of debt which can be written off by the
Chief Officer in consultation with the Chief Financial Officer from the
current £5,000 to £10,000. Any proposed write off of debt above £10,000

Page 12



would need to be approved by the Authority. Again, this is to ensure
appropriate flexibility and administrative efficiency.

7.4.3 A new Financial Regulation B19 has been added to enable
“‘urgent” financial decisions to be made by the Chief Financial Officer in
consultation with the Chairman and Chief Officer. This would only be used
where a matter is urgent (i.e. can’t wait until the next meeting of the
Authority) and is felt to be in the wider interests of the Authority. This will
avoid any technical arguments about the lawfulness of urgent action that
the Chief Financial Officer has to take in the interests of the Authority.

7.4.4 Financial Regulation E2 has been amended slightly to clarify the
Authority’s role in “overseeing” partnerships, but recognising that the Chief
Officer has a wide delegation to make decisions relating to operational
partnerships, within budgetary limits of Financial Regulations.

7.5 Appendix 1 contains the Members Allowance Scheme. This has been
amended very slightly in accordance with the Authority’s decision in
September 2017 and the reduced size of the Authority. However, the
Scheme will need to be fully reviewed by the new Standards and
Governance Committee and any recommended changes will need to
come back to the Authority for agreement.

7.6 Appendix 2 contains the arrangements for dealing with complaints
against members. These have been substantially rewritten to bring them
into line with other local authorities, including Hampshire County Council.
They have also been reviewed in light of a complaint that was dealt with
by HFRA in 2015.

7.7 Appendix 4 contains the Filming and Broadcasting Protocol, which
has been brought into line with the Authority’s agreed practice of live
streaming Authority meetings.

7.8 Appendix 5 contains a new Protocol for Member — Officer Relations.
This aims to set out the roles of officers and members and explain how
they work together.

7.9 Appendix 7 contains the Authority’s Code of Corporate Governance.
7.10 Appendix 8 contains a summary of the Authority’s key statutory
responsibilities. This is not intended to be an exhaustive list and is simply

a summary of the key statutory provisions relating to HFRA’s functions
and powers.

SUPPORTING OUR SERVICE PLAN AND PRIORITIES

8. Having a robust and clear constitution will assist Authority Members to make
lawful and robust decisions and will aid good governance. This fits with the
Authority’s service plans and priorities.

Page 13



CONSULTATION

Public consultation is not required in order for the Authority to adopt the new
constitution as it is intended to govern internal decision making of the Authority
only. The constitution also reflects the decisions already made by the Authority
to move to the new governance model.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

10.

There are no resource implications associated with adopting the new
constitution.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

11.

The Authority is required to have certain governance documents that set out
how decisions will be made and how the Authority is governed. Having a single
constitution, which will be published, will assist in ensuring robust decision
making and good governance. The draft constitution has been prepared with
legal input on behalf of the Clerk/Monitoring Officer to ensure compliance with
the Authority’s legal obligations.

PEOPLE IMPACT ASSESSMENT

12. The proposals in this report are compatible with the provisions of equality and
human rights legislation.

RISK ANALYSIS

13. The risks of not adopting the new constitution are that the Authority’s
governance arrangements will not fit with the reality of the newly constituted
Authority.

14. Without clear constitutional documents the Authority may act unlawfully or make
unlawful decisions which could be subject to successful challenge.

CONCLUSION

15. For the reasons set out in this report it is recommended that the Authority

adopts the proposed constitution document as the Authority’s Constitution.

Page 14



RECOMMENDATION

16. That the Authority adopts the proposed constitution at Appendix 1 as the
Authority’s Constitution with effect from the date of this decision.

17. That the Authority authorises the Clerk to finalise and publish the new
constitution on the Authority’s web pages so that it is accessible to officers,
Members, and members of the public.

APPENDICES ATTACHED

18. Appendix 1 — Proposed Constitution

BACKGROUND PAPERS

19. None

Contact:

Paul Hodgson, Deputy Head of Legal Services, 01962 832428

Page 15




Appendix 1

Proposed Constitution

Page 16



FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

HAMPSHIRE FIRE AND RESCUE
AUTHORITY

CONSTITUTION

June 2017

Page 17



FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

HFRA Constitution - Contents

Part 1 — Introduction and Background ..............ccccooiiiiiniinnnnnnnnnceeeeenes
11 Purpose of CoNSLItULION ....ceiiiuiiiiiiiiiiec e e
1.2 2 1ol ¢={ o TU o Vo PSPPI
1.3 Structure and Responsibility for Decision Making ..........ccccceevvciieeeiiciieec e,
1.4 B =N XU N g Yo T YA VAT o] o o R
1.5 The Authority’s Policy FrameWoOrK .........ccueeeeiiiieeiiniiee et

Part 2 — Members of the Authority ...t
2.1 [60e] 1] o Yo R | To] o H U ST S TP TPPPPPPN
2.2 Appointments/election CYCIE ........uiieciteriie et St e
2.3 Roles and functions of Members ...t s e

Part 3 — Arrangements to Perform Functions...c..............ooooviiiiiiniinsinees
3.1 Full Authority Terms of REfErENCE..........ccuvveeiiiiiiiieeeee e
3.2 Full Authority Timetable and WOrk Plan.............cc.cooiiiiiee e,
33 Standards and Governance Committee — Terms.of Reference .........c.cccccceevenennen.
3.4 Standards and Governance Committee Timetable and Work plan .....................
3.5  Terms of Reference for the Pension Board ...........cooeverivcrenecnecencn e
3.6 Scheme of Delegation ...ct i ettt et e e e araee e

Part 4 - Rules of Procedure.............ccoccim e
41 Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority - Standing Orders .......ccccecveveevvcieeeennnee.
4.2 Financial REGUIGLIONS ti.....eeii ittt ee e e e
4.3 Contract Standing OFdEIS. ........cccuveieieciieee e et e e e e stre e e e e srtaeeeeeans

Part 5 — Appendices, Codes and Protocols.........cccccccrrriiiiiiccccccssnnnnenns

Appendix 1 Members’ Allowance Scheme

Appendix 2 Arrangement for Handling Member Complaints
Appendix 3 Code of Conduct for Members

Appendix 4 Filming and Broadcasting Protocol

Appendix 5 Protocol for Member — Officer Relations
Appendix 6 Communications Protocol

Appendix 7 Code of Corporate Governance

Appendix 8 The Authority’s Key Statutory Responsibilities

Page 118



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Part 1 — Introduction and Background

1.1 Purpose of Constitution

The purpose of this constitution is to set out in a single place and in clear language
how Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority (“the Authority”) works and how it makes
decisions.

1.2 Background

The Authority is a combined fire and rescue authority constituted under s4 of the
Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004. It covers the administrative areas of
Hampshire County Council, Portsmouth City Council and Southampton City
Council. Itis made up.of elected members from Hampshire County Council,
Portsmouth City Council and Southampton City Council. [

The Authority is a statutory corporation, which means it is a body created by
government legislation. A statutory corporation can only do things it is specifically
authorised to do by legislation or law.

Under Part 2 of the Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004, the Authority is responsible
for carrying out the following functions:

. Fire safety — the promotion of fire safety in the Authority’s geographical area.

. Fire fighting — extinguishing fires and protecting property and life in the
Authority’s geographical area.

. Road Traffic Accidents - Rescuing people in the event of road traffic
accidents (referred to within the Service as “road traffic collisions” or “RTCs”)
and protecting people from serious harm in the event of road traffic accidents
in the Authority’s geographical area, to the extent considered reasonable.

. Emergencies — such functions as the Secretary of State confers relating to

emergencies other than fires and road traffic accidents in the Authority’s
geographical area.

Page 19



The Authority also has wide powers under the Fire and Rescue Services Act 2004
to do anything it considers appropriate for the purposes of carrying out its functions
and anything it considers appropriate for purposes indirectly incidental to or
connected with its functions.

The Authority is funded through the Council Tax precept.

Page 20



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

1.3 Structure and Responsibility for Decision
Making

Structure

The Authority is made up of elected members from its constituent authorities in
proportion to the number of electors in each constituent authority, as set out in
section 2 below.

Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service (“HFRS”) is the name given to the operational
fire and rescue service. HFRS staff and officers are employed by the Authority as
the body corporate and are responsible forday to day delivery of the Authority’s
operational functions.

Decision Making

The Authority meets 6 times per year. lIts role is to take decision on strategic and
policy matters and establish the framework within which Hampshire Fire and
Rescue Service operates, in accordance with its Terms of Reference which are set
out in Part 3.1 of the Constitution. The procedures governing the Authority’s
meetings and the decisions it makes are set out in Standing Orders at Part 4.1 of
the Constitution.

The Authority has one standing committee — Standards and Governance Committee
(“S&GLC”), which is responsible for audit and scrutiny functions in accordance with
its terms of reference.

The Authority is able to establish sub committees of the Authority for a wide range
of purposes and can delegate responsibility for taking certain decisions to sub
committees. The Authority is not able to delegate decisions to the Chairman or any
other single member of the Authority.

The Authority has established a Scheme of Delegation. This delegates
responsibility for a wide range of decisions relating to operational delivery to
officers.

The Authority is able to delegate specific decisions to the Chief Officer (or other
officers) and can delegate authority to an officer to make a decision “in consultation”
with the Chairman or other elected members.

Therefore, all decisions will be taken either by:

o The Authority at one of its six meetings (on all matters that have not been
delegated to S&GC, to another sub committee or to Officers through the
Scheme of Delegation or otherwise); or

4
Page 21



sillizz  HamPsHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

. Standards and Governance Committee (on matters within S&GC'’s terms of
reference); or
o A sub committee of members to which the Authority has delegated

responsibility for a decision; or
. By officers pursuant to the Scheme of Delegation; or

. By officers where a specific delegation has been given by the Authority or
Standards and Governance Committee.

Corporate Management Team

The Authority has a Corporate Management Team (CMT) made up of Senior

Officers and members. CMT does not make any decisions, but acts as a forum for

officers to brief members and ensure members are sighted on operational matters

of importance. CMT meets six times per year.in between Authority meetings.
CMT meetings are open to all members and are chaired by the Chief Officer.

1.4 The Authority’s Vision

Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority is committed to ensuring that Hampshire has
an efficient and effective fire service which makes life safer for everyone.

1.5 The Authority’s Policy Framework

The Authority’s Policies are contained within the Policy Framework which can be
found on the HFRA internet pages.

Page 22



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Part 2 — Members of the Authority

2.1 Composition

The Authority is made up of elected members from its constituent authorities in
proportion to the number of electors in each constituent.authority. The maximum
number of members is 25. The current membership.is 10, comprising 8 members
from Hampshire County Council, 1 from Portsmouth City Council and 1 from
Southampton City Council.

2.2 Appointments/election cycle

Constituent authorities make appointments to the Authority at their own full Council
meetings (usually their annual meeting) in accordance with their own Council’s
political proportionality. A member ceases to be a member of the Authority if they
cease to be an elected member of their appointing constituent authority. Any
vacancy on the Authority is appointed to by the relevant constituent authority at its
next full Council meeting.

2.3 Roles and functions of Members

Members of the Authority provide political leadership and set the strategic direction
for the Service, representing their electorate. Their primary formal function is to
participate.in and vote on decisions at meetings of the Authority. This includes, in
particular, annually setting the council tax precept and agreeing a number of other
strategies and policies. The Authority elects individual members to the roles of
Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Authority and makes appointments of Members
to any Committees or sub-committees it chooses to establish.

Page 23



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Part 3 — Arrangements to Perform Functions

3.1 Full Authority Terms of Reference

The Authority meets 6 times per year. The Authority’s role is to take decisions on
strategic and policy matters and establish the framework within which Hampshire
Fire and Rescue Service operates.

In considering all matters and in particular in reaching decisions the Authority shall
take into account the impact on equalities and on the environment and climate
change. Decisions shall be taken with regard to the financial sustainability of the
Authority and be underpinned by a commitment to health and safety.

Meetings of the Authority will be.conducted in‘accordance with Standing Orders.

Specific matters upon which the Authority will make decisions include, but are not
limited to, the following non exhaustive list:

Finance

. To annually determine a revenue budget and capital programme for the
Authority and the levelof Council Tax precept for the forthcoming financial
year.

o To monitor and approve the Authority’s medium term financial plan and any

proposal to amend the budget.
o To monitor and approve the Authority’s treasury management strategy.
o To consider monitoring reports against the Authority’s agreed revenue
budget and capital programme and to consider and approve the annual
budget outturn position as set out in the Authority’s final accounts.

o To approve budget virements over £200,000.

o To approve amendments of direct revenue funding or the use of balances.

o To approve virements into an employee budget to appoint new permanent
members of staff.

o To approve the write-off of any debt over £10,000.

. To approve one-off expenditure funded from reserves in excess of £200,000.

7
Page 24



sillizz  HamPsHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

o To approve the appointment of external audit providers in accordance with
the Authority’s Financial Regulations.

o To agree and approve procedures for carrying forward under-spends on
budget headings.
o To approve potential capital schemes with cost in excess of £1,000,000

before any expenditure is committed.

Assets

o To consider and approve the sale and purchase of land or buildings with a
value greater than £250,000, or the disposal of land or buildings by way of
lease or license for a period greaterthan 10 years or at a value greater than
£25,000 per annum.

Approval of Strategies and Policies (is this section required)

To review and approve significant strategies and policies, including:

o the Integrated Risk Management Plan
o the Medium Term Financial Plan
. any other significant strategies considered appropriate by the Chairman of

the Authority or the Chief Officer.
Risk and Performance Management

o To consider and approve the Corporate Risk Management Strategy, review
the Corporate Risk Register and receive reports on risk management

o To regularly monitor performance against priorities and aims of the Service
Plan

o To consider and approve the Authority’s insurance arrangements.

. To consider and approve the Health and Safety Statement of Intent for

signature by the Chief Officer and to receive the annual report
People and Leadership

o To be responsible for the process of recruitment, appointment and dismissal
of the Chief Officer and the Deputy Chief Officer.

Page 25



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

o To appoint to the positions of the Clerk, Monitoring Officer and Chief
Financial Officer to the Authority as ‘Proper Officers’ as set out in the
Authority’s Scheme of Delegation, Financial Regulations and relevant
legislation.

o To consider and approve the annual Pay Policy Statement for publication, in
accordance with the Localism Act 2011.

o To complete the process required under the national terms and conditions of
service for Principal Officers (Gold Book) for the annual review of
performance and determination of local pay awards. For these purposes, the
Authority shall establish a member working group to act as a Principal Officer
Pay Group to provide recommendations to the Authority.

Governance

. To agree and adopt a Constitution for the Authority including the following
elements and approve any revisions or replacements:

Standing Orders

Committee Terms of Reference

Contract Standing Orders

Scheme of Delegation

Financial Regulations

Code of Conduct for Members, including Member role profiles
Arrangements to be applied for the investigation and determination of
allegations of a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct for
Members and co-opted Members

o To make appointments of members to committees, sub committees or
working groups of the Authority.

) To make appointments to the position of Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the
Authority'and committees/sub committees or working groups.

o To make appointments to the Authority’s Pension Board.

o To appoint an Independent Person to the Authority in accordance with the
Localism Act 2011.

) To appoint Directors and a Shareholder representative of 3SFire Ltd.

o To appoint to such other Member roles as the Authority determines from time
to time.

o To consider and approve a scheme for the payment of Members’ Allowances
in accordance with the Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England)
Regulations 2003

9

Page 26



sillizz  HamPsHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

o To appoint Members of the Authority to local Crime and Disorder Reduction
Partnerships.

Scrutiny

. To carry out joint Member/Officer pre and post implementation scrutiny of any
major project, scheme or significant decision taken by the Authority or its
Committee.

o To consider outcomes of corporate projects and initiatives.

. To receive a report on any matter considered appropriate by the Chairman

(or in their absence the Vice-Chairman) of the Authority or the Chief Officer,
Chief Financial Officer or Clerk and Monitoring Officer.

. To consider and approve the settlement of claims by or against the Authority
in legal proceedings with a value greater than £100,000.

. To agree action in relation to 3SFire Ltd and any other commercial activity.
o To receive reports on urgent Financial actions taken by the Chief Financial
Officer in consultation with the Chairman of the Authority and Chief Officer in

accordance with the Authority’s Financial Regulations.

When necessary, the Fire Authority will establish a working group to enable the
fulfilment of any of the above.

3.2 Full Authority Timetable and Work Plan

The Authority’s timetable of meetings and work plan for the coming year can be
found on the Authority’s website.

10
Page 27



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

3.3 Standards and Governance Committee —
Terms of Reference

Standards and Governance Committee shall comprise of 5 Members of the
Authority. Appointments to Standards and Governance Committee shall be made
each year at the Annual Meeting of the Authority.

Standards and Governance Committee’s terms of reference are:

Standards

o To oversee the discharge of the Authority’s duty to promote and maintain high
standards of conduct by Members and co-opted Members through:

o Promotion of training and advice on the Code of Conduct and other
relevant protocols

o Making recommendations to the Authority on the revision or replacement
of its Code of Conduct

o Making recommendations to the Authority on the arrangements to be
applied for.the investigation and determination of allegations of a failure to
comply with the Code of Conduct for Members and co-opted Members,
including the appropriate involvement of the Independent Person

o To oversee the recruitment of an Independent Person or Persons to the
Authority and make a recommendation to the Authority for their appointment.

. To consider and determine any allegation of a failure to comply with the Code
of Conduct in accordance with such arrangements described above.

o To consider and determine any application by a Member or co-opted Member
for the grant of a dispensation under Section 33 Localism Act 2011, relieving
the restrictions on participation in, and voting on, a matter in which the
Member or co-opted Member has a disclosable pecuniary interest

. To review the Members’ Allowances Scheme in accordance with applicable
law and make recommendations to the Full Authority about the scheme.

o To act as the Authority’s appeal body for appropriate categories of employees
in accordance with agreed policies where it is not possible for an appeal to be
heard by officers.

11
Page 28



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Governance

o To consider and approve the annual Statement of Accounts and the Annual
Governance Statement incorporated within it, in compliance with the statutory
deadline

o To consider and approve the annual Assurance Statement

Audit

) To consider reports from the Chief Financial Officer on internal audit strategy,
planning and delivery and to approve the internal audit plan.

o To receive the annual opinion of the Internal Auditor.

o To consider the External Auditor's management letter to the Authority and any
reports from the external auditor and make recommendations to the Authority
as necessary.

Scrutiny

o To consider the report of any inspection of the Service and make
recommendations.as required.

Pension Board

. To act as the Scheme Manager for the Hampshire Firefighters Pension Fund.

Members of the Standards and Governance Committee will establish a working
group if required to enable the fulfilment of any of the above.

3.4 Standards and Governance Committee
Timetable and Work plan

Standards and Governance Committee’s timetable of meetings and work plan for
the coming year can be found on the Authority’s website.

12
Page 29



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

3.5 Terms of Reference for the Pension Board of
the Hampshire Firefighter’s Pension Scheme

2.2.

3.2.

Introduction

Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority (“the Authority”) has established
a Pension Board (“the Board”) in accordance with the requirements of
the Public Service Pensions Act 2013.

Role and Powers of the Hampshire Firefighter’s Pension Board
The role of the Board is to:

e Assist the Authority as the administering-authority of the Hampshire
Firefighter's Pension Scheme (HFFPS):

- to secure compliance with the Firefighter's Pension Scheme
(FFPS) Regulations and any other legislation relating to the
governance and administration of the FFPS.

- _to secure compliance with requirements imposed in relation to
the FFPS by the Pensions Regulator.

¢ To ensure the effective and efficient governance and administration of
the HFFPS by the Authority.

¢ To consider how discretionary and other pension related issues are
being addressed from an operational viewpoint.

e To present an annual report to the Authority on the exercise of its
functions.

The Board shall have the power to do anything which is calculated to
facilitate or is conducive or incidental to the discharge of any of its
functions.

Members of the Hampshire Firefighter’s Pension Board

The Board shall initially consist of 6 members and be constituted as
follows:

3 employer representatives;
3 scheme member representatives;

The Chairman of the Board will be elected by the Board, from amongst
its number at the first meeting of the Board following the Annual
Meeting of the Authority in each year.

13
Page 30



3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

3.8.

3.9.

3.10.

3.11.

3.12.

3.13.

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

With regard to 3.4, the Vice Chairman of the Board will be elected by
the Board from amongst its number at the first meeting of the Board
following the Annual Meeting of the Authority in each year.

If the Chairman is a scheme representative then the Vice Chairman will
be an employer representative and vice versa.

The employer representatives will be appointed by the Authority at its
Annual Meeting.

Scheme member representatives will be appointed by the Authority in
accordance with the recruitment policy agreed by the relevant
Committee with responsibility for Scheme Management. Scheme
member representatives must be active, deferred or pensioner
members of the FFPS.

The term of office of the Chairman and Vice Chairman will be one year
from the date of appointment, but either can be re-elected by the Board
up to a maximum of four years.

Each employer representative and scheme member representative so
appointed shall serve for a fixed four year period from the date of
appointment which can be extended for a further period of four years.

Employer representatives and scheme member representatives will
remain as members of the Board during their appointed term of office
unless they -become incapable of acting, cease to represent their
constituency, resign by giving written notice to the Chairman of HFRA
or are removed from the Board pursuant to Paragraph 4 of the Board’s
Code of Conduct.

Employer representatives and scheme member representatives may
also be removed from office during their term of appointment by a
majority decision of a quorate meeting of the HFFPS Board if they do
not comply with the requirements of paragraph 3.9. The removal of any
Board member also requires the agreement of the Authority.

The Chairman and employer representatives will be appointed by the
Authority at the Annual Meeting and may be replaced at any time during
the year by the Authority.

Any vacancies arising for the scheme member representatives will be
recruited in line with the recruitment policy approved by the relevant
Committee with responsibility for Scheme Management and will be
formally appointed by the Authority at any time during the year.

Each Board member should endeavour to attend all Board meetings
during the year and is required to attend at least half of the meetings
held in each year.

14
Page 31



4.2.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

7.2.

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Quorum

Half of the members of the Board will represent a quorum for Board
Meetings.

In the absence of both the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman the
members of the Board shall appoint a Chairman for that meeting who
shall while presiding have any power or duty of the Chairman in relation
to the conduct of the meeting.

Advisers to the Board

The Board will be supported in its role and responsibilities by officers of
the Authority and it will consult with such officers to help better perform
its duties. In the event that specialist professional advice is not
available from the officers of the Authority then the Board may ask the
Director of Professional Services to seek independent professional
advice through the appointment of advisers on their behalf, subject to
financial and legal considerations.

Knowledge and Skills
A member of the Board must be conversant with:

. The legislation and associated guidance of the FFPS.

. Any document recording policy about the administration of
the FFPS which is for the time being adopted by Authority.

A member of the Board must have knowledge and understanding of:
. The law relating to pensions, and
o Any other matters which are prescribed in regulations.

A member of the Board representing employers or scheme members
must have the relevant experience and capacity to represent employer
and scheme members respectively on the Board.

Notwithstanding the requirements set out above, it is anticipated that
training will be given to Board Members to help them fulfil their role and
to keep them updated on changes in the FFPS.

Board Meetings

Meetings of the Board will be conducted in accordance with the
Standing Orders of the Authority and for all purpose including but not
limited to notice of meetings, publication of agendas and reports,
recording and publication of minutes of meetings and consideration of
urgent items meetings of the Board shall be treated as if they were a
meeting of a Committee of the Authority.

There will be a minimum of two Board meetings a year and the
Chairman of the Board, with the consent of the Board, may call
additional meetings. Urgent business of the Board between meetings

15
Page 32



8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

9.2.

10.
10.1.

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

may, in exceptional circumstances, be conducted via communications
between members of the Board including telephone or video
conferencing and e-mails.

Voting

Each member of the Board will have an individual vote and items will be
decided by a simple majority of members attending the meeting but it is
expected the Board will as far as possible reach a consensus. The
Chairman shall determine when consensus has been reached.

Where consensus is not achieved, this should be recorded by the
Chairman who shall then have a casting vote.

In support of its core functions, the Board may make a request for
information from the Scheme Manager, with regard to any aspect of the
Scheme Manager’s function. Any such request should be reasonable in
both scope and timing.

In support of its core functions the Board may make recommendations
to the Scheme Manager which should be considered and a response
made to the Board on the outcome within a reasonable period of time.

Standards of Conduct

The role of Board members requires the highest standards of conduct
and therefore the ‘seven principles of public life’ apply to all Board
members, these are:

Selflessness
Integrity
Objectivity
Accountability
Openness
Honesty
Leadership

The Code of Conduct for Board Members set out in Annex A shall apply
to all members of the Board. Members of the Board who are also a
member of other authorities also remain bound by the Members’ Code
of Conduct of their own authority.

Publication of Pension Board Information

Up to date information will be posted on the Authority’s website
showing:

o The names and information of the Board members.
o How the scheme members are represented on the Board.
. The responsibilities of the Board as a whole.

. The full terms of reference and policies of the Board and how
they operate.

o The Board appointment process.
16

Page 33



RESCUE
AUTHORITY

o Who each individual Board member represents.

o Any specific roles and responsibilities of individual Board
members.

11.  Accountability

11.1. The Board will be collectively and individually accountable to the
relevant Committee with responsibility for Scheme Management and
the Authority.

12. Reporting Breaches

12.1. Any potential or actual Breach that comes to the attention of the Board
shall be dealt with in accordance with the Protocol for Reporting
Breaches agreed from time to time'between the Board and the
Authority.

13. Expense Reimbursement

13.1. No basic allowance is payable to Board members although employer
and scheme member representatives shall be entitled to claim
Travelling Allowances on the terms set out in the then current Member’s
Allowance scheme, or HFRS employees’ scheme as appropriate.

14. Definitions

14.1. The undernoted terms shall have the following meaning when used in
this document:

Breach Means non-compliance with a duty
relevant to the administration of the
FFPS which is likely to be of material
significance to the Pensions
Regulator in the exercise of any of its
functions
‘Hampshire Means the Pension Board of Hampshire
Firefighter’s Fire and Rescue Authority for the
Pension Hampshire Firefighters’ Pension
Board’, ‘Fire Scheme as required under the Public
Pension Service Pensions Act 2013.
Board’,
‘Pension
Board’ or
‘Board’
‘HFFPS’, ‘FFPS’ or The Firefighters’ Pension Scheme as
Regulations constituted by the Firefighter's
pension scheme 1992, as amended,
the Firefighters’ Pension Scheme

17
Page 34



2006, as amended and the
Firefighters’ Pension Scheme
Regulations 2014 as amended.

‘Scheme’ Means the Firefighters’ Pension Scheme
as defined under ‘HFFPS’ above.

‘Scheme Member’ Means active, deferred or pensioner
members of the Firefighters’ Pension
Scheme

15. Interpretation

15.1 Any uncertainty or ambiguity or interpretation required relating to any
matters contained in this document shall be resolved by reference to
the Authority’s Monitoring Officer.

18
Page 35



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Annex A to the Terms of Reference of the Pension
Board

Code of Conduct for Members of the Hampshire
Firefighter’s Pension Board Members

Introduction

This Code of Conduct for the Hampshire Firefighter's Pension Board has been
adopted by the Authority pursuant to its statutory duty to appoint a Pension
Board for the HFFPS.

This Code applies to members of the Hampshire Firefighter's Pension Board
when acting in their capacity as members of the Board. For the avoidance of
doubt, members of the Board who are also members of other authorities also
remain bound by the Member’'s Code of Conduct of their own authority.

This Code is based on and is consistent with the principles of;

. Selflessness
o Integrity

J Objectivity

o Accountability
. Openness

. Honesty and
o Leadership

Obligations of Members of the Board

As a Member of Hampshire Firefighter's Pension Board, your conduct will
address the principles of the Code of Conduct by:

a. Not allowing other pressures, including the financial interests of yourself
or others connected to you, to deter you from pursuing the interests of
the HFFPS, or the good governance of the HFFPS in a proper manner.

b.  Exercising independent judgement and not compromising your position
by placing yourself under obligations to outside individuals or
organisations who might seek to influence the way you perform your
duties.

c. Listening to the interests of all parties, including relevant advice from
statutory and other professional officers of the HFRA (or those acting on

19
Page 36



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

their behalf), taking all relevant information into consideration, remaining
objective and making decisions on merit.

Being accountable for your decisions and co-operating when scrutinised
internally and externally.

Contributing to making the Board’s decision-making processes as open
and transparent as possible.

Restricting access to information when the wider public interest, the
Board’s Terms of Reference or the law requires it.

Valuing your colleagues and Officers of the Authority and engaging with
them in an appropriate manner.

Always treating all people with respect and propriety.

Conflicts of Interest

a.

No member of the Board may participate in any business of the Board if
they have a financial or other.interest which is likely to prejudice a
person’s exercise of functions as a member of the Board (this does not
include a financial or other interest arising merely by virtue of
membership of the Scheme or any connected Scheme) (‘Conflict of
Interest’).

All Board members must before becoming a member of the Board
declare any potential Conflict of Interest to the Monitoring Officer of the
Authority.

After appointment all Board members must within 14 days of becoming
aware of any new potential Conflict of Interest declare that potential
Conflict of Interest to the Monitoring Officer of the Authority.

A member of the Board must at any time provide the Monitoring Officer of
the Authority with such information as he or she requires for the purpose
of establishing whether or not the Board member has a Conflict of
Interest.

A Board member should disclose any Conflict of Interest in any business
of the Board either at the commencement of the meeting, the
commencement of the consideration of the item or when the Conflict of
Interest becomes apparent.

If a Board member has a Conflict of Interest in any business of the Board
then that Member may not participate in any discussion of, vote on or
discharge any function in relation to the matter. In addition the Board
member should withdraw from the room where the meeting is being held.

20
Page 37



et

\\\:\,‘!L'm// HAMPSHIRE

=7 FIRE AND

&) RESCUE
R

NS AUTHORITY

W\

{

Non-Compliance with the Code of Conduct

Any alleged non-compliance with this Code of Conduct shall be referred to the
relevant Committee with responsibility for Scheme Management for
consideration. In the event that the relevant Committee finds that a member of
the Board has failed to comply with the provisions of this Code then the
Committee may determine that the Member is to immediately cease to be a
member of the Board or take such other action as the Committee regard as
appropriate. This can include but is not limited.to requiring the member to
apologise or requiring the member to undertake such training as they feel is
appropriate.

21
Page 38



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

3.6 Scheme of Delegation

1. Introduction

1.1 This Scheme of Delegation has been approved by Hampshire Fire and
Rescue Authority (“the Authority”) and was drawn up in consultation with the
Chief Officer of Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service (the Chief Officer”).

1.2 In accordance with the provisions of Section101 of the Local Government Act
1972 the Authority may, subject to any express provision in any Act of
Parliament, arrange for the discharge of any of its functions by a committee, a
sub-committee or an officer of the Authority."

1.3 Where the Chief Officer is authorised to discharge any functions on behalf of
the Authority and is for any reason unable to'discharge those functions the
Authority’s Deputy Chief Officer.

1.4 Where the Clerk of the Authority (“the Clerk”) or the Authority’s Chief Financial
Officer (“Chief Financial Officer’) are authorised to discharge any functions on
behalf of the Authority and are for any reason unable to discharge those
functions, those authorised to deputise for them in respect of their office within
their local authority may discharge those functions.

1.5 Where the discharge of a function is delegated to an officer under this Scheme
of ‘Delegation and that officer is for any reason unable to discharge those
functions that officer may arrange for the discharge of that function to be
undertaken by another officer nominated by him/her. 2

1.6 The Authority has appointed a Clerk and a Chief Financial Officer to the
Authority who are responsible for the general administration of the Authority.
The Chief Financial Officer is also the officer appointed by the Authority to be
responsible forits financial affairs.

1.7 Various duties are conferred by legislation on the “Proper Officer” of the
Authority. The term proper officer in relation to any person is interpreted as
meaning the officer appointed for that purpose by the Authority or if not
specifically appointed, the Clerk, Chief Financial Officer or Chief Officer as
appropriate. For the avoidance of any doubt, the Clerk, Chief Financial Officer

T A Committee which is authorised to discharge an function on behalf of the Authority may delegate
that power to a sub-committee or an officer, where arrangements have been made for a sub-
committee to discharge any function it may delegate that function to an officer, arrangements may
also be made between two or more fire authorities for the discharge of their functions.

2 The term “officer” refers to people appointed to posts within the Authority. They may be directly
employed or working for the Authority under Service Contracts.

22
Page 39



1.8

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

and the Chief Officer (where stated) are appointed as Proper Officers for the
purposes set out in the table in the Annex hereto.

For the purposes of the Proper Officer provisions referred to in the Annex
hereto the deputy to the Clerk, the Deputy Chief Financial Officer, the Director
of Professional Services and/or Deputy Chief Officers are authorised to act in
the event of the Clerk or Chief Financial Officer being unable to act as the
Proper Officer.

The Chief Officer

The Chief Officer is authorised to act on behalf of and exercise all the powers
of the Authority, except for those matters specifically. reserved for decision by
the Authority or its Standards and Governance Committee as set out in the
Terms of Reference of the Authority and the Terms of Reference of the
Standards and Governance Committee, provided that any such action is in
accordance with relevant legislation, the policies laid down by the Authority,
the Authority’s approved budget and the Authority’s Constitution, in particular
the Authority’s Financial Regulations.

The Clerk of the Authority

The Clerk orthe Chief Officer are authorised to institute, defend or participate
in any legal proceedings in any case where the institution or defence of such
proceedings is necessary to give effect to decisions of the Authority (or any
committee, sub-committee or officer) or in any other case where the Clerk or
Chief Officer considers that the institution or defence of or participation in
proceedings is necessary to protect the Authority’s interests, except for legal
proceedings with a value greater than £100,000.

Either the Clerk or Chief Officer is authorised to take action in connection with
the Authority’s. statutory functions as exercised by the Chief Officer in
proceedings in magistrates and crown courts and in any other judicial or quasi
judicial proceedings including laying information, making complaints and
otherwise representing the Authority.

Where any document will be a necessary step in any legal procedure or legal
proceedings on behalf of the Authority it shall be signed by the Clerk or Chief
Officer unless any enactment otherwise requires or authorises, or the Authority
gives authority to, some other person for the purpose of such procedure or
proceedings. Where any document is to be signed by a Solicitor it shall be
signed by the Clerk.

23
Page 40



S

S
=
c=
=
=
=5
/14(

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

§\\i"/// HAMPSHIRE

W\

FIRE AND
 RESCUE

{

7"'i‘|“i\“§ AUTHORITY

The Chief Financial Officer

The financial responsibilities of the Authority’s Chief Financial Officer are set
out in the Authority’s Financial Regulations.

The Monitoring Officer

The Authority is required to appoint an officer to_perform the functions of the
“Monitoring Officer” under Section 5 of the Local Government and Housing Act
1989 (“the Act”) and does so hereby appoint.the Clerk to the Authority to fulfil
that role.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 5 of the Act the Monitoring Officer
is required to prepare a report to.the Authority with respect to any proposal,
decision or omission by the Authority, any of its committees, officers or
employees which has given rise to, or is likely to, or would give rise to, a
contravention of any enactment or rule of law or any code of practice made or
approved by or under any enactment.

In performing the duty conferred by Section 5 of the Act the Monitoring Officer
will take account of reports made by any other officer and whether a matter is
being resolved by other means including other reporting procedures.

The Monitoring Officer in performing the duties arising under Section 5 of the
Act is authorised to incur.expenditure where this is necessary in seeking
advice outside the Authority.

24
Page 41



H
FIRE AND

~ RESCUE
N AUTHORITY

Annex to Scheme of Delegation- Purposes of the Proper

Officer

Legislation Purpose Proper Officer
Section 100B (2) Local | Access to Agenda and | The Clerk/Monitoring
Government Act 1972 connected papers Officer
Section 100 (B) (7) (c) | Determination of whether | The Clerk/Monitoring
Local Government Act | any reports or parts should |-Officer
1972 be excluded from those

supplied in accordance

with a request from' any

newspaper
Section 100C (2) Local | Inspection of minutes and | The Clerk/Monitoring
Government Act 1972 other documents after | Officer

meetings
Section 100 D (1) (a) | Compilation of lists of{ The Clerk and/or the Chief
Local Government Act | background papers for the | Financial Officer
1972 report or the part of the | depending on which officer

report.

is reporting to the
Authority. In the case of
joint reports, whose title
first appears at the head of
the report.

Section 100D (5) (a) Local

Identification of

The Clerk and/or Chief

Government Act 1972 background papers to | Financial Officer (as in the

reports previous delegation)
Section 100F (2) Local | Determining which | The Clerk/Monitoring
Government Act 1972 documents are available | Officer

for public inspection

Section 115 Local
Government Act 1972

Responsibility for  the
receipt of money due from
officers

The Chief Financial Officer
in respect of officers under
their respective direction
and control

Section 229 Local
Government Act 1972

Certification of documents

The Clerk/Monitoring
Officer and/or the Chief
Financial Officer within
delegated powers

Section 234 Local

(1)

Authentication of

The Clerk/Monitoring

Government Act 1972 documents Officer and/or the Chief
Officer
Section 30 Local | Reports on | The Clerk/Monitoring

Government Act 1974

investigation/issued by a
Local Commissioner

Officer

25
Page 42




RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Part 4 - Rules of Procedure

This section of the Constitution contains the rules of procedure, responsibilities and
governance framework governing decision making by elected members at Authority
meetings or Committee meetings and decision making by officers under the
Scheme of Delegation.

Section 4.1 contains the Authority’s Standing Orders. These set out the rules of
procedure that govern meetings of the Authority (i.e. members) and meetings of
Committees and Sub Committees.

Section 4.2 contains the Authority’s Financial Regulations. These identify the
financial responsibilities of Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority, Members, the
Chief Officer; the Clerk and Monitoring Officer; the Chief Financial Officer; and other
officers. Financial Regulations set out the responsibilities and framework within
which all financial matters relating to the Authority are dealt with.

Section 4.3 contains the Authority’s Contract Standing Orders. These set out the
administrative procedures that have been adopted by the Authority and must be
followed in relation to the procurement and award of contracts for goods, services or
works with third parties.

26
Page 43



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

4.1 Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority -

Standing Orders

1. Meetings of the Authority

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

The Authority shall hold an annual meeting between 1 April and 30 June each
year. The first items of business on the agenda for the annual meeting shall
be the appointment of Chairman and Vice-Chairman for the ensuing year to
the next annual meeting.

In addition to the annual meeting of the Authority and any meeting convened
by the Chairman or by members of the Authority, meetings for the transaction
of general business shall be held on'such days as may be determined by the
Authority at its annual meeting provided that any such date may be varied at a
subsequent meeting.

The Chairman of the Authority may cause a special meeting of the Authority to
be called at any time.

A special meeting of the Authority shall be called on the request of at least one
quarter of the whole number of members of the Authority by notice in writing
and signed by them and given to the Clerk and specifying the business for
which the meeting is to be called. After receipt of such request, the Clerk shall
arrange for the special meeting to take place not less than 21 days and not
more than 35 days after the receipt of the request.

In these Standing Orders “ordinary meeting” means a meeting described in
paragraph (1) or (2) above other than a meeting convened by the Chairman or
by members of the Authority. Unless otherwise specified, the term “year”
means the period from the annual meeting in one calendar year to the start of
the annual meeting in the following year.

Unless the Authority otherwise determines, all meetings of the Authority other
than a special meeting of the Authority arranged in accordance with Standing
Order 1.4 shall be held at 10.00 a.m. All meetings of the Authority, including
special meetings arranged under Standing Order 1.4 shall take place on a
weekday.

The Police and Crime Commissioner for Hampshire shall be invited to attend
the public part of meetings of the Authority and shall be entitled to speak to
any of the items on the public agenda during debate under Standing Order
6(1). For the avoidance of doubt, the Police and Crime Commissioner for
Hampshire shall not be a Member of the Authority and shall not have a right to
vote on any matter. Standing Order 10 shall apply to the Police and Crime
Commissioner for Hampshire when in attendance at meetings of the Authority.
Standing Order 19 shall not apply to the Police and Crime Commissioner for

27
Page 44



2.1

3.1

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Hampshire when in attendance at meetings of the Authority pursuant to the
invitation contained in this Standing Order

Appointment of Committees and Sub-Committees

The Authority shall appoint at its annual meeting such committees or sub-
committees as it deems necessary; committees and sub-committees shall
meet as and when required.

Chairman of the Meeting

Any power or duty of the Chairman inrelation to the conduct of a meeting may
be exercised by the person presiding at the meeting.

Quorum

At a meeting of the Authority the quorum shall be one third of the total number
of members of the Authority, or such greater number of members as the
Authority may determine, including at least one representative from each
constituent authority. (Specified in paragraph 19 of the Hampshire Fire
Services (Combination Scheme Order) 1996).

The quorum for every meeting of a committee or sub-committee of the
Authority, unless a special quorum is otherwise prescribed shall be at least
one third of the whole number of the committee or sub-committee provided
that in no case shall'a quorum of a committee or sub-committee be less than
three members.

If within ten minutes from the time appointed for the commencement of any
meeting of the Authority or of a committee or sub-committee a quorum (that is
one third of the whole number of members or three members, whichever is the
greater) is not present, the meeting shall be dissolved.

Circulation of Agenda and Confirmation of Minutes of the Authority*

A copy of the summons and agenda for the forthcoming meeting of the
Authority, a committee or sub-committee and the minutes of the previous
meeting shall be despatched by the Clerk at least six clear days before such
forthcoming meeting to each member, and such minutes shall be taken as
read when submitted to the Authority for confirmation unless a majority of the

28
Page 45



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

7.1

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

members then present otherwise order. Unless similarly ordered, any
document which comes up for consideration at any meeting, and which has
been printed and circulated to each member at or prior to such a meeting,
shall be taken as read.

Motions and Amendments Generally*

After calling each item on the Agenda (other than Minutes) and after any
introductory remarks by the Clerk/Chief Officer or other Officer of the Authority,
the Chairman shall first call for questions and after these have been disposed
of, shall call “any debate?” A member desiring to ask questions or to debate
shall indicate by raising his/her hand.

If there is no debate, the Chairman shall put the printed Recommendation to
the vote, or in the case of an item forinformation-only, that it be noted and no
seconder shall be required.

A member shall not, without the permission of the Chairman, speak more than
once on any motion or amendment except on a point of order or by way of
personal explanation.

Where the Agenda item contains a Recommendation, it shall be deemed at
the commencement of debate on that item, unless the Chairman indicates
otherwise, that the Recommendation has been formally moved by him/her and
seconded and any subsequent motion shall be treated as an amendment to
the Recommendation.

The Chairman may require the mover of a motion or amendment to put the
same into writing and submit it to the Chair before speaking about it. Subject
to this, no motion or amendment shall be debated until the mover has spoken
to it and it has been seconded.

A member may not propose or second a motion or amendment on which
he/she is disqualified from voting, and neither may a member move or second
more than one amendment on the same motion.

Motions Affecting Persons Employed by the Authority*

If any matter arises at a meeting of the Authority, or a committee or sub-
committee as to the appointment, promotion, dismissal, salary,
superannuation, condition of service or the conduct of any person employed
by the Authority, such matter shall not be the subject to discussion until the
Authority, committee or sub-committee, as the case may be, has decided

29
Page 46



S

S
=
c=
=
=
=5
/14(

8.1

8.2

9.1

9.2

9.3

§\\i"/// HAMPSHIRE

W\

FIRE AND
 RESCUE

{

7"'i‘|“i\“§ AUTHORITY

whether or not the power of exclusion of the public under Part 1 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act 1972, shall be exercised.

Amendments to Motions*

An amendment shall be relevant to the motion and shall be either:-

8.1.1 to refer a subject of debate to a committee or sub-committee for
consideration or reconsideration;

to leave out words;

to leave out words and insert or add others;

to insert or add words;

© © ®©
— o —
rwio

but such omission, insertion or addition of words shall not have the effect of
introducing a materially new issue into or of negating a motion before the
Authority.

If an amendment is lost, other amendments may be moved on the original
motion. If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended shall take the
place of the original motion and shall become the motion upon which any
further amendment may be moved.

Alterations or Withdrawal of Motion or Amendment*

A proposer of a motion may, with the concurrence of the seconder and the
consent of the Authority, alter the motion if the alteration is such that it could
properly be effected by an amendment of the motion. A proposer of an
amendment may, with the like concurrence and consent, alter the amendment
if the amendment as altered could properly have been moved in that form as
an amendment. The altered motion or amendment shall if required by the
Chairman be put into writing and handed to him/her before the consent of the
Authority to the alteration is sought.

A proposer of a motion or of an amendment may, with the concurrence of the
seconder and the consent of the Authority, withdraw the motion or amendment
which he/she has proposed, and no member shall speak upon it after the
proposer has asked permission for its withdrawal, unless such permission has
been refused.

The giving or refusal of the consent of the Authority to the alteration or
withdrawal of a motion or amendment shall be signified without discussion.

30
Page 47



10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

11.

11.1

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Conduct of Members*

A member who has a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter being
considered at a meeting of the Authority must not participate in discussion of,
or vote on, that matter, and must withdraw from the room where the meeting is
being held, unless he or she has obtained a dispensation from the Standards
and Governance Committee. The member may, however, make
representations on the matter to the meeting, in accordance with the
Authority’s deputations procedure, provided that he or she withdraws from the
room when those representations are concluded and before any discussion or
vote takes place.

A member shall direct his/her speech to the question under discussion or to a
personal explanation or to a point of order and shall not impute motives or use
offensive expressions to or about any other member.

If any member in the opinion of the Chairman misconducts himself/herself by
persistently disregarding the ruling of the Chairman or by behaving irregularly,
improperly or offensively,or by wilfully obstructing the business of the
Authority, or by tedious repetition or unbecoming language in his/her speech,
the Chairman or any other member may move “that the member named be not
further heard” and such motion if seconded shall be put and determined
without discussion.

If the member named continues his/her misconduct after a motion under the
previous paragraph has been carried, the Chairman shall either:-

10.4.1 move “that the member named is to leave the meeting” (in which case
the motion shall be put and determined without seconding or
discussion); or

10.4.2 Adjourn the meeting of the Authority for such period as he/she in
his/her discretion shall consider expedient.

In the event that'a motion under Standing Order 10.4.1 has been carried and
the named member refuses to leave the meeting the Chairman may order the
removal of that member from the room in which the meeting is being held.

Questions*

A member may, if the question has been given to the Clerk in writing by 10.00
a.m. three clear working days before the meeting of the Authority, ask the
Chairman of the Authority or the Chairman of any committee, any question
relating to the business of the Authority or the committee.

31
Page 48



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

11.2 The question given to the Clerk shall set out in full the question to be asked
and the notice shall be signed and dated by the member giving the notice.
The requirement for the notice to be signed by the member shall not apply in
the case of an electronic copy being received by the Clerk.

11.3 The Clerk shall record any questions submitted in the order in which they are
received and the questions in that order shall be put to the appropriate
meeting of the Authority.

11.4 Every question shall be put and answered without discussion, but the person
to whom a question has been put may decline to'answer. The member asking
the question may ask one supplementary question arising out of the reply.

11.5 Where a reply to any question cannot conveniently be given orally, it shall be
deemed as sufficient reply if a written-answer is circulated to the member
asking the question and to all other member of the Authority as soon as
reasonably practicable after the meeting.

11.6 The amount of time devoted to questions under this Standing Order shall not
exceed 30 minutes.

12.Agenda Iltems*

12.1 A member may, by giving 10 working days notice, require an item to be placed
on the agenda either for'an Authority or committee meeting. For the
avoidance of doubt, the Authority or committee at which the agenda item is
considered will determine what, if any, action it is proposed to be taken with
the agenda item." If either the Authority or the committee determine that further
action is required on the agenda item, the Authority or the committee will
request officers to submit a full report on the agenda item to the next
appropriate meeting of the Authority or committee.

13. Points of Order and Explanation*

13.1 A member may rise on a point of order or in personal explanation and shall be
entitled to be heard immediately. A point of order shall relate only to an
alleged breach of a Standing Order or statutory provision, and the member
shall specify the Standing Order or statutory provision and the way in which
he/she considers it has been broken. A personal explanation shall be
confined to some material part of a former speech by him/her which may
appear to have been misunderstood in the present debate.

32
Page 49



13.2

14.

141

15.

15.1

16.

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

The ruling of the Chairman on a point of order or on the admissibility of a
personal explanation shall not be open to discussion.

Formal Motion*

A member who has not spoken may, at the conclusion of a speech of another
member, move without comment “that the question be now put” or “that the
Authority now adjourn”, upon the seconding of which the Chairman shall put
that motion to the vote without amendment or discussion and, if it is carried,
the question before the meeting shall be put to the vote or the meeting shall
stand adjourned, as the case may be; provided that if on the moving and
seconding of any such formal motion as aforesaid the Chairman is of the
opinion that the matter has not been sufficiently discussed, he/she may either
refuse to accept the motion at that time or he/she may indicate how many
more member he/she will permit to speak before putting the motion.

Relevance of Speeches*

A member shall direct his/her speech to the question under discussion or to an
explanation or to a point of order.

Voting*

Every proposition shall, unless otherwise required by these Standing Orders or
Statute, be determined by show of hands or, at the discretion of the Chairman,
by voices.

In taking the votes on any proposition, only those members who are present in
the room when the proposition is put from the Chair shall be entitled to vote.

After a proposition is put from the Chair, but before the vote is taken, any five
members by show of hands may require that the voting shall be recorded in
the minutes of the meeting so as to show whether each member present gave
his/her vote for or against that proposition or abstained from voting.

Where, immediately after a vote is taken at a meeting of the Authority or any
committee, any member so requires, there shall be recorded in the minutes of
the proceedings of that meeting whether that person cast his or her vote for
the question or against the question or whether he or she abstained from
voting.

33
Page 50



16.5

17.

171

17.2

18.

18.1

19.

19.1

19.2

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

The Chairman or person chairing meetings of the Authority and committees
shall have a second or casting vote. For the avoidance of doubt, the
Chairman may use such a second or casting vote on an equality of voting
despite not having voted when the motion was put to the meeting for voting
upon.

General Disturbances*

If a member of the public interrupts the proceedings at meetings the Chairman
shall warn him/her. If he/she continues the interruption the Chairman shall
order his/her removal from the room. In case of general disturbance in any
part of the room open to the public the Chairman shall order that part to be
cleared.

If, in the opinion of the Chairman, misconduct or obstruction renders the due
and orderly dispatch of business impossible, the Chairman;, in addition to any
other power vested in him/her, may without the question being put suspend
the meeting for a period not exceeding 30 minutes.

Adjourned Meeting*

When a meeting is adjourned to a future day, notice of the adjournment shall
be sent to each member specifying the business to be transacted at the
resumed.meeting.

Deputations*

Subject to the provisions of this Standing Order, the Authority, and any of its
committees or sub-committees shall receive deputations on any business that
is properly within its terms of reference and the Deputation shall be allowed to
address the meeting.

For the purposes of this Standing Order:-

19.2.1 Notice in writing shall be given to the Clerk that a Deputation wishes to
address the meeting and the notice shall specify the subject before the
meeting upon which the Deputation wishes to speak. In the case of a
meeting of the Authority, committees and sub-committees the notice
shall be given by noon two clear days in advance.

19.2.2 Deputations shall consist of not more than 4 people who shall be Local
Government electors in the area of the Authority.

34
Page 51



sillizz  HamPsHIRE

FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

19.2.3 Any member of a Deputation may address the meeting.

19.2.4 The total time taken by the Deputation in addressing the meeting shall
not exceed ten minutes.

19.2.5 Deputations shall be taken at the beginning of the meeting (after the
Minutes) and the total time for all deputations shall not exceed one
hour in duration.

19.2.6 No Deputation shall appear before the Authority at successive
meetings or at any committee or sub-committee within six months of
any previous appearance, on the same or similar topic.

20.Minority Order Procedure*

20.1 If Members numbering at least one quarter of the voting Members present at a

meeting of a Committee so request immediately after the vote is taken on any
matter which is otherwise within the delegated powers of the Committee, the
decision shall take the form of a Recommendation to the Authority and shall
not be effective-unless and until approved by the Authority. Where any matter
is for the time being delegated to a sub-committee, Members numbering at
least one quarter of the voting Members present at the meeting of the sub-
committee may in the same manner require that the decision shall take the
form of a Recommendation to the appropriate Committee.

20.2 This Standing Order shall not apply to:-

21.

21.1

20.2.1 Sub-Committees established to appoint officers of the Authority.
20.2.2 Any decisions of a quasi judicial nature.

20.2.3 Decisions where delay could put the Authority in breach of the law or
in breach of legally binding obligations.

Canvassing of and Recommendations by Members

Canvassing of members of the Authority, or any Committee or Sub-Committee
of the Authority, directly or indirectly for any appointment under the Authority
shall disqualify the candidate concerned for that appointment. The purpose of
this paragraph of this Standing Order shall be included in any form of
application.

35
Page 52



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

21.2 A member of the Authority shall not solicit for any person any appointment
under the Authority but this shall not preclude a member from giving a written
testimonial of a candidate’s ability, experience, or character for submission to
the Authority or the Chief Fire Officer with an application for appointment.

22. Relatives of Members or Employees

22.1 A candidate for any appointment under the Authority who knows that he/she is
related to any member or employee of the Authority shall disclose that
relationship in his/her application. A candidate who fails to disclose such a
relationship shall be liable to be disqualified for the appointment and if
appointed shall be liable to dismissal without notice.

22.2 Every member and senior officer of the Authority shall disclose to the Clerk
any relationship known to him/her to exist between himself/herself and any
person whom he/she knows is a candidate for-an appointment under the
Authority.

22.3 The purpose of this Standing Order shall be included in any form of
application.

22.4 For the purpose of this Standing Order “senior officer” means any officer so
designated by the Authority, and persons shall be deemed to be related if they
are husband and wife, or if either of them or the spouse of either of them is the
son.or daughter or grandson or granddaughter or brother or sister or nephew
or niece of the other, or of the spouse of the other.

23. Custody of Seal

23.1 The common seal of the Authority shall be kept in a safe place in the custody
of the Clerk.

24. Sealing of Documents

24.1 The common seal of the Authority shall not be affixed to any document unless
the sealing has been authorised by a resolution of the Authority or of a
committee or sub-committee or a decision of an officer to which the Authority
has delegated its powers on its behalf, but a resolution of the Authority (or of a
committee, sub-committee or officer where that committee, sub-committee or
officer has the power) authorising the acceptance of any tender, the purchase,
sale, letting, or taking of any property, the issue of any stock, the presentation
of any petition, memorial or address, the making of any contract, issuing a levy

36
Page 53



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

or the doing of any other thing, shall be a sufficient authority for sealing any
document necessary to give effect to the authorisation.

24.2 The seal shall be attested by the Clerk or other person duly authorised in
writing by him/her and an entry of every sealing of a document shall be made
and consecutively numbered in a book kept for the purpose and shall be
authenticated by the person who had attested the seal.

25. Special meetings of Committees and Sub-Committees

25.1 The Chairman of a committee or sub-committee or the Chairman of the
Authority may cause a special meeting of the committee or sub-committee to
be called at any time.

25.2 A special meeting of the committee or sub-committee shall be called on the
request of at least one quarter of the whole number of members of the
committee or sub-committee by notice in writing and signed by them and given
to the Clerk and specifying the business for which the meeting is to be called.
After receipt of such request, the Clerk shall arrange for the special meeting to
take place not less than 21 days and not more than 35 days after the receipt of
the request.

26. Proceedings of the Authority, Committees and Sub-Committees

26.1 Any Authority member may attend as an observer at meetings of committees
and sub-committees (except those committees and sub-committees which the
Authority may from time to time determine for the purposes of this Standing
Order) to which he/she has not been appointed as a member, including
meetings or items of business from which the public has been excluded. If
given permission by the Chairman of the meeting, a member attending as an
observer may speak (but not vote) on any matter.

26.2 Subiject to the provision of Section 100 of the Local Government Act 1972, all
Authority committee and sub-committee reports and all documents marked as
“confidential”, “exempt” or “not for publication” shall be treated as confidential
until they become public in the ordinary course of the Authority’s business.

26.3 No act of a committee or sub-committee shall have effect until approved by the
Authority except to the extent that the committee or sub-committee has of itself
power to act without the approval of the Authority and the power so to act has
been conferred upon the committee or sub-committee.

26.4 In addition, to those Standing Orders which expressly related to the Authority,
committees and sub-committees, Standing Orders 5 to 20 inclusive shall apply
with any necessary modification to committee and sub-committees. These

37
Page 54



27.

27.1

27.2

27.3

27.4

28.

28.1

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Standing Orders are highlighted by an asterisk. At any meeting of a committee
or sub-committee, the Chairman of the committee or sub-committee shall have
discretion to follow a more informal debating process than that set out at
Standing Orders 6, 8.2 and 9 as he/she considers appropriate to enable the
efficient conduct of business.

Chairman and Vice-Chairman of Committees and Sub-Committees

The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of each committee or sub-committee
established by the Authority shall be appointed at the time the committee or
sub-committee is first established and thereafter shall be appointed by the
Authority at each annual meeting. A Chairman or Vice-Chairman so appointed
may be removed by the Authority or may resign. If the Authority so decide, the
appointment of the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of a committee or sub-
committee may be left for that body itself to decide.

Subject to paragraph 27.1, the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of a committee
or sub-committee appointed by the Authority shall hold office until the next
annual meeting of the Authority after his/her appointment.

In the absence of the Chairman or Vice<Chairman at any meeting of a
committee or sub-committee, the members present shall choose one of their
number to preside over the meeting, subject to paragraph 27.4.

If the Chairman of a committee or sub-committee arrives at a meeting of the
committee or sub-committee after the time for which the meeting has been
summoned, he/she shall preside over the meeting after any question under
discussion on his/her arrival has been disposed of but not before then.

Rescission of previous Resolution

No motion to rescind any resolution passed within the preceding six months,
and no motions or amendments to the same effect as one which has been
rejected within the preceding six months, shall be proposed unless the notice
thereof bears the names of at least four members of the Authority. When any
such motion or amendment has been disposed of by the Authority, it shall not
be open to any member to propose a similar motion within a further period of
six months. This Standing Order shall not apply to motions moved in
pursuance of a recommendation of a committee.

38
Page 55



29.

29.1

30.

30.1

31.

31.1

32.

32.1

\\“!.‘-'s!','://é HAMPSHIRE

> Lam— e’

FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Audio or Visual Recordings at Meetings

Audio or visual recording equipment may only be used in accordance with the
Authority’s protocol for the filming, photographing and audio-recording of all
public meetings, which complies with the Openness of Local Government
Bodies regulations 2014

Display of Banners at Meetings

Except with the consent of the Chairman of the meeting, no member or
members of the public shall display banners, posters or signs at meetings.

Variation and Revocation of Standing Orders

Any motion to add-to, vary or revoke these Standing Orders shall when
proposed and seconded stand adjourned without discussion to the next
ordinary meeting of the Authority.

Suspension of Standing Orders

Subject to paragraph 32.2, any of the preceding Standing Orders may be
suspended so far as regards any business at the meeting where its
suspension is. moved.

32.2 A motion to suspend any of the preceding Standing Orders shall not be moved

33.

33.1

unless there are at least one-half of the whole number of the members of the
Authority present.

Interpretation of Standing Orders

The ruling of the Chairman as to the construction or application of any of these
Standing Orders, or as to any proceedings of the Authority, shall not be
challenged at any meeting of the Authority.

39
Page 56



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

33.2 In these Standing Orders, references to the Clerk shall be taken to include
such persons as time to time are authorised by him/her to act on his/her
behalf.

40
Page 57



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

4.2 Financial Regulations

Introduction and overview

What are financial regulations?

1.1 The regulations set out at A to E below identify the financial responsibilities
of Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority, Members, the Chief Officer; the
Clerk and Monitoring Officer; the Chief Financial Officer; and other officers.

1.2 The Authority and its officers should maintain a written record of any
decision-making that has been delegated to members of staff, including
seconded staff. When decisions have been delegated or have been
devolved to other bodies or responsible officers, references to members or
officers in these regulations should be read as.referring to them.

Who should read this document?

1.3 These regulations and the procedures they contain apply to all staff
and members of the Authority. The prime audience for financial
regulations are:

Members of the Authority

Chief Officer

finance officers

staff with financial responsibilities.

1.4 More detailed guidance on how the regulations should be implementedin
practice is contained in Financial Procedures, which apply to all members
and all staff.

Why have financial regulations?

1.5 Financial regulations form part of the means by which the Authority
manages its business. They clarify responsibilities and provide a framework
for decision-making about financial matters. Where there are specific
statutory powers and duties, the financial regulations seek to ensure that
these are duly complied with, as well as setting out best professional
practices and processes for all activities and decisions of the Authority, its
committees and the Fire and Rescue Service.

1.6 In summary, financial regulations are the regulatory framework within
which the financial affairs of the Authority operate.

41
Page 58



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Corporate governance and financial regulations

1.7 All staff and members must comply with the fundamental “principles of
public life” as set out in the Committee on Standards in Public Life (the
Nolan Committee): which include openness, integrity and accountability.

1.8 These regulations also reinforce the corporate governance “standards”, as
recommended by the Nolan Committee, governing:

o organisational structures and processes
o financial reporting and internal controls
o standards of behaviour.

What do financial regulations cover?

1.9 The regulations apply to all the Authority’s activities. In practice, this
means all budgets, money and funds administered by members and
officers in carrying out their duties across all the Authority’s services and
activities. This also includes:

o funds managed on behalf of third parties such as trust funds,
community-accounts and unofficial funds

o partnership arrangements where the Authority is the accountable body.

o External providers such as outsourced services, contractors and
consultants who are managed through the contract process. The
contract document will set out the financial requirements. These
include, for example, compliance with key control procedures;
performance standards and statistics; attendance at service client
meetings; and access to accounts.

Awareness and access

1.10 The Chief Officer is responsible for ensuring that all employees with
financial responsibilities are made aware of and have access to these
regulations, and to the Financial Procedures that set out in more detail how
they should implement and comply with the regulations.

Non-compliance with financial regulations

1.11 Failure to comply with these regulations and the accompanying financial
procedures may have the following consequences:

o For employees, these regulations supplement the employee code of
conduct so a breach will be considered a disciplinary offence that will
invoke disciplinary procedures (and can lead to dismissal).

o For members, these regulations supplement the code of conduct for
42

Page 59



§\\i"/// HAMPSHIRE
$ FIRE AND
zatr e RESCUE
?"'i‘l“i\‘& AUTHORITY

W\

S
=
~
=
=

{

members, so a breach may be reported to the Standards and
Governance Committee.

Review of financial regulations

1.12 The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for maintaining a continuous
review of these regulations.

Other rules

1.13 Apart from these regulations, all members and officers must comply with
certain other rules. These include:

the law:

e relevant local government legislation
e relevant civil and criminal law
e the Hampshire Fire Services (Combination Scheme) Order 1996

Other Authority rules:

e Standing Orders

e the Scheme of Delegation

e Contract Standing Orders

e human resources policies and procedures
e service orders

e Financial Procedures

List of financial regulations

A — Financial accountabilities and
management

B — Financial planning

C — Risk management and control of
resources

D — Systems and procedures

E — External arrangements

43
Page 60



S
=
~
=
==

N

S

2
o
o,

7"'i‘|“i\“§ AUTHORITY

\\\:!‘!!'m// HAMPSHIRE

et

W\

FIRE AND
 RESCUE

{

Financial regulation A — Financial accountabilities and
management

Introduction

A1

A2

A3

A4

A5

Financial management covers all financial accountabilities in relation to the
running of the Authority and Service, including the policy framework and
budget.

The Authority delegates day to day financial management to the Chief
Officer so that, as far as possible, the financial management of the Service
takes place within the Service.

The Authority, advised by its Chief Financial Officer, must be satisfied
that the Chief Officer exercises delegated financial responsibilities in a
proper and effective manner.

The Authority encourages the Service itself to devolve financial
management so far as possible to local officers.

Authority has the following specific responsibilities:

Finance

e To annually determine a revenue budget and capital programme for the
Authority and the level of Council Tax precept for the forthcoming financial
year.

e To monitor and approve the Authority’s medium term financial plan and any
proposal to amend the budget.

e To monitor and approve the Authority’s treasury management strategy.
¢ To consider monitoring reports against the Authority’s agreed revenue
budget and capital programme and to consider and approve the annual

budget outturn position as set out in the Authority’s final accounts.

e To approve budget virements over £200,000.

e To approve virements into an employee budget to appoint new permanent
members of staff.

e To approve the write-off of any debt over £10,000.

44
Page 61



\\‘!L',:g/; HAMPSHIRE

3%. FIRE AND
RESCUE

e To approve one-off expenditure funded from reserves in excess of £200,000.

e To approve the appointment of external audit providers in accordance with
the Authority’s Financial Regulations.

e To agree and approve procedures for carrying forward under and over-
spends on budget headings.

e To approve potential capital schemes with cost in excess of £1,000,000
before any expenditure is committed.

Assets

¢ To consider and approve the sale and purchase of land or buildings with a
value greater than £250,000, or the disposal of land or buildings by way of
lease or license for a period greater than 10 years or at a value greater than
£25,000 per annum

Governance

e To agree and adopt a Constitution for the Authority including the following
elements and approve any revisions or replacements;

Standing Orders

Committee Terms of Reference

Contract Standing Orders

Scheme of Delegation

Financial Regulations

Code of Conduct for Members, including Member role profiles
Arrangements to be applied for the investigation and determination of
allegations of a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct for
Members and co-opted Members

Legal Proceedings

¢ To consider and approve settlements or other payments made by the
Authority in legal proceedings with a value greater than £100,000.

45
Page 62



sillizz  HamPsHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Chief Officer and his staff

A.6 The Chief Officer and his staff should have as much day to day responsibility
for financial management of the Service as is possible within the framework
of the agreed budget and rules of virement.

A.7 The Chief Officer shall control expenditure and income, monitor
performance, and take the necessary action to avoid exceeding any
financial allocation. He may authorise other officers to act on his behalf in
sanctioning orders for payments, but such delegation does not in any way
reduce the overall responsibilities of the Chief Officer.

A.8 Where expenditure or income involves a contract with a third party, the
Chief Officer must follow procedure laid down in Contract Standing
Orders.

Clerk and Monitoring Officer

A.9 The Clerk is designated as the Monitoring Officer under section 5 (1) of the
Local Government and Housing Act 1989, with responsibility for reporting
any illegal action, breach of any code of practice, maladministration or
injustice, by:

"1 The Authority or any of its committees

"1 Any officer of the service

1 Any employee of the service including any fire officer, or other local
authority or organisation providing services to the Authority

A.10 The Clerk or Chief Officer is authorised to instigate, defend or appeal legal
proceedings in any court or tribunal to protect the Authority’s interests and
interests of the Chief Officer.

A.11 The Clerk is authorised to settle all claims made against the Authority subject
to appropriate financial approvals being obtained.

A.12 The Clerk shall in any circumstances which he or she considers urgent, take
any action that he or she considers appropriate to protect the interest of the
Authority and Chief Officer.

46
Page 63



- Q 3
) S
o N

//In,‘l“\\\\\ AUTHORITY

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE

Chief Financial Officer

A.13 The Chief Financial Officer has statutory duties in relation to the financial
administration and stewardship of the Service. This statutory responsibility
cannot be overridden. The statutory duties arise from:

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972
The Local Government Finance Act 1988

The Local Government and Housing Act 1989
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 1996.

A.14 The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for:

the proper administration of the Authority’s financial affairs

reporting both to members of the Authority and to the external auditors
any unlawful, or potentially unlawful, expenditure by the members or
officers of the Authority or Service

reporting both to the Authority and to the external auditor when it
appears that expenditure is likely to exceed the resources available to
meet that expenditure

preparation of statutory and otheraccounts

setting and monitoring compliance with accounting and financial
management procedures and standards

maintaining an effective and adequate internal audit and all audit
arrangements

advising on budgetary matters including any consequent long term
implications

key financial controls necessary to secure sound financial management
providing financial information

providing financial advice on all aspects of activity, including strategic
planning and policy making process

treasury management and banking arrangements

A.15 In carrying out these responsibilities, the Chief Financial Officer will:

assist members in seeking to obtain best value for money

advise the Authority on financial propriety

advise, in consultation with the Clerk, on the safeguarding of assets,
including risk management and insurance

arrange for the notification to the collecting authorities of precepts
issue Financial Procedures and guidance to the Service containing
general accounting and audit practices to be observed in the
maintenance of their records

47
Page 64



§\\i"/// HAMPSHIRE
$ FIRE AND
zatr e RESCUE
?"'i‘l“i\‘& AUTHORITY

W\

S
=
~
=

=}

{

o oversee the accounting procedures and financial records of the
Authority and its officers (in consultation with the Chief Officer). Such
procedures shall have regard to section 115 of the Local Government
Act 1972, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 1996 and appropriate
Accounting Standards.

o set schemes of financial delegation and/or authorisation

o oversee financial and related IT systems

o set out procedures and controls for ordering services, supplies and
works

o make arrangements for the payment of accounts and collection of
income

o make arrangements for pay and pensions.

A.16 Section 114 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 requires the Chief
Financial Officer to report to the members and external auditor if the
Authority or one of its officers:

o has made, or is about to make, a decision that involvesincurring
unlawful expenditure

. has taken, or is about to take, an unlawful action that has resulted or
would result in a loss or deficiency to the Authority

o is about to make an unlawful entry in.the Authority’s accounts.
A.17 Section 114.of the 1988 Act also requires:

o that the Deputy Chief Financial Officer performs these functions in
the absence of the Chief Financial Officer

o that the Authority provides the Chief Financial Officer with sufficient
staff, accommodation and other resources — including legal advice
when this is necessary — to carry out the duties under section 114.

Other financial accountabilities
Virement

A.18 Once the annual revenue and capital budgets are approved, and subjectto
the provisions of these Financial Regulations and Standing Orders, the
budgets will give authority to the Chief Officer in consultation with the Chief
Financial Officer to incur expenditure without the need to obtain further
approval from the Authority, exceptwhere:

o the Chief Officer proposes a change in policy and/or the objectives and
targets in the Fire and Rescue Service Plan and/or

o there is a proposed virement of over £200,000. In this case the
Authority would be required to authorise the adjustment.

48
Page 65



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

A.19 Virement shall not be made from a capital budget to a revenue budget
except where the Authority has approved an amendment of direct revenue
funding or the use of balances.

A.20 The Chief Officer shall identify officers to whom he or she proposes to
delegate responsibility to manage and control budgets under delegated
arrangements and such officers shall manage and control the budgets so
delegated.

A.21 Virement into an employee budget to appoint new permanent members of
staff is not permitted without the specific approval of the Authority.

Treatment of year-end balances

A.22 The Authority is responsible for agreeing procedures for carrying forward
under and overspendings on budget headings on the advice of the Chief
Financial Officer.

Accounting policies

A.23 The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for determining accounting
policies and financial systems and ensuring that they are applied
consistently.

Accounting records and returns

A.24 The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for determining the accounting
procedures.and records for the Authority.

The annual statement of accounts

A.25 The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for ensuring that the annual
statement of accounts is prepared and certified in accordance with the Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom: A
Statement of Recommended Practice (CIPFA/LASAAC). The Finance and
General Purposes Committee is responsible for approving the annual
statement of accounts on the recommendation of the Chief Financial Officer.

Debt write-offs

A.26 The Chief Officer is authorised to write off debts up to £5,000 and in
consultation with the Chief Financial Officer is authorised to write off any
debt upto £10,000. Details of all write-offs must be maintained in a
central register by the Chief Officer. The write-off of any debt over
£10,000 must be approved by the Authority.

49
Page 66



\‘i"'/é HAMPSHIRE
g FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Use of Reserves

A.27 The Chief Officer in consultation with the Chief Financial Officer is
authorised to approve one off expenditure to be funded from reserves up to

a value of £200,000 per discreet item. Amounts in excess of £200,000 must
be reported to the Authority for approval.

50
Page 67



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Financial regulation B — Financial planning

Introduction

B.1 The Authority is responsible for agreeing the policy framework and budget,
which will be proposed by the Chief Officer. In terms of financial planning, the
key elements are:

the Service Plan

the Medium Term Financial Plan
the revenue budget

the capital programme.

Budgeting
Budget format

B.2 The general format of the budget and budget guidelines will be approved by
the Authority and proposed by the Chief Officer on the advice of the Chief
Financial Officer. The draft budget should include allocation to different
services and projects, proposed taxation levels and contingency funds.

Budget preparation

B.3 The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for ensuring that a revenue
budget and a forward financial forecast for three years is prepared each
year for consideration by the.members. The Authority may amend the
budget or ask the members to reconsider it before approving it.

B.4 The members, in consultation with the Chief Financial Officer, are
responsible for issuing guidance on the general content of the budget as
soon as possible following approval by the Authority.

B.5 The Chief Officer is responsible for ensuring that budget estimates
reflecting agreed service plans are submitted to the members, and that
these estimates are prepared in line with members’ guidance.

B.6 The precept has to be notified to the collecting authorities by the end of
February in respect of the ensuing financial year. It must be supported by a
balanced budget approved by the Authority in consultation with the Chief
Officer and Chief Financial Officer.

Budget monitoring and control

B.7 The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for providing appropriate financial
systems to enable budgets to be monitored effectively. The Chief Financial
Officer must monitor expenditure against budget allocations and report
regularly to the members on the overall position.

51
Page 68



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

B.8 The Chief Officer is responsible for controlling income and expenditure on
their budgets and for monitoring performance, taking account of financial
information provided by the Chief Financial Officer. The Chief Officer should
report on variations and take any action necessary to avoid exceeding
budgets, and should alert the Chief Financial Officer to any problems. Any
new proposal containing significant financial implications must take note of
the Chief Financial Officer’s advice.

Capital expenditure

B.9 The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for ensuring that a capital
programme is prepared each year for consideration, before submission to
Members.

B.10 The Chief Officer, in consultation with the Chief Financial Officer, shall
prepare a draft capital programme for the ensuing year and following two
years, which indicates the assumed financing for each year. Due regard
should be given to the provisions of the Prudential Code.

B.11 Potential schemes, with cost in excess of £1,000,000 must be formally
appraised and a report submitted to the Authority for approval, before
any expenditure can be committed.

B.12 The draft capital programme for the ensuing year should be submitted to
the Authority for approval and include:

o details of all schemes, showing the total cost and the phased cost to
completion

o method of funding

o an estimate of the revenue implications and confirmation as to whether
this can be contained within the agreed revenue budget.

B.13 The Chief Officer shall be responsible for the control of expenditure against
the approved capital programme and for the provision of timely and complete
and accurate financial information as required by the Authority and Chief
Financial Officer.

B.14 Capital expenditure is defined by Part IV of the Local Government and
Housing Act 1989.

B.15 The Chief Financial Officer shall be notified of all proposed finance and
operating lease arrangements to ensure they are appropriate.

B.16 The Chief Officer and Chief Financial Officer may approve an increase in
the capital programme of up to £50,000 and the Chief Officer and Chief
Financial Officer in consultation with the Chairman of the Authority may
approve an increase of up to £100,000. In both cases the approved
expenditure must be subsequently reported to the full Authority.

52
Page 69



sillizz  HamPsHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

B.17 The Chief Officer, in consultation with the Chief Financial Officer and
Chairman of the Authority is authorised to make changes within the overall
approved capital programme limits where it is in the Authority’s interests,
with the changes being reported back to the full Authority.

Maintenance of balance and reserves

B.18 The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for advising the members
and/or the Authority on prudent levels of balances and reserves for the
Authority.

Urgent Decisions

B.19 Where an urgent financial decision is required that falls outside of the defined
process or limits within Financial Regulations or Financial Procedure Rules,
but is felt to be in the wider.interests of the Authority, the Chief Financial
Officer in consultation with the Chief Officerand Chairman of the Authority can
make the decision subject to it being reported back to the Authority.

53
Page 70



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Financial regulation C — Risk management and control of resources

Introduction

CA

It is essential that robust systems are developed and maintained for
identifying and evaluating all significant financial and operational risks to
the Authority on an integrated basis. This should include the active
participation of all staff associated with planning and delivering services.

Risk management

C2

C.3

C4

C.5

The Authority is responsible for approving the service plan and strategy
and for reviewing the effectiveness of risk management.

The Chief Officer is responsible for.ensuring that proper insurance exists
where appropriate.

The Chief Officer is responsible in consultation with the Clerk for preparing
Authority’s Risk Management Policy and for promoting it throughout the
Service, and for advising the Authority on properinsurance cover where
appropriate.

The Chief Officer is responsible for reviewing risks at least annually.

Internal control

C.6

C.7

C.8

Internal control refers to the systems of control to ensure that the Authority’s
objectives are achieved in a manner that promotes economical, efficient and
effective use of resources and that the Authority’s assets and interests are
safeguarded.

The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for advising on effective systems of
internal control. These arrangements need to ensure compliance with all
applicable statutes and regulations, and other relevant statements of best
practice. They should ensure that public funds are properly safeguarded
and used economically, efficiently, and in accordance with the statutory and
other authorities that govern their use.

The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for establishing sound
arrangements for planning, appraising, authorising and controlling
operations in order to achieve continuous improvement, economy,
efficiency and effectiveness and for achieving financial performance
targets.

Audit requirements

C9

The Accounts and Audit regulations 1996 require the Chief Finance Officer to
maintain an adequate and effective internal audit.

54
Page 71



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

C.10 The Authority is responsible for appointing external auditors, but this may
be delegated to a third party with the approval of the Authority. The
basic duties of the external auditor are governed by section 15 of the
Local Government Finance Act 1982, as amended by section 5 of the
Audit Commission Act 1998.

C.11 The Authority may, from time to time, be subject to audit, inspection or
investigation by external bodies which have statutory rights of access,
such as HM Revenue and Customs.

Preventing fraud and corruption

C.12 The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for developing and maintaining
procedures to prevent fraud and corruption.

Assets

C.13 The Chief Officer should ensure that all records and assets are properly
maintained and securely held. He should also ensure that contingency plans
are in place for the security of assets and continuity of service in the event of
disaster or system failure.

Treasury management

C.14 The Chief Financial Officer shall be responsible for advising the Authority on
all matters relating to treasury management and shall have control of all
aggregated monies and securities of the Authority.

C.15 The Authority has adopted CIPFA’s Code of Practice for Treasury
Management in Local Authorities and accordingly will create and maintain:

o A treasury management policy statement, stating the policies and
objectives of its treasury management activities

o Suitable treasury management policies (TMPs), setting out the manner
in which the organisation will seek to achieve those policies and
objectives, and prescribing how it will manage and control those
activities.

C.16 The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for reporting to the Authority on its
treasury management policies, practices and activities. The Authority will
approve, before the start of the financial year, an annual treasury
management strategy and an annual investment strategy. The Authority will
receive a mid-year review and annual report at the end of the financial year.

C.17 The Authority delegates responsibility for the execution and administration of
treasury management decisions to the Chief Financial Officer, who will act in
accordance with the Authority’s policy statement and TMPs and CIPFA’s
Standard of Professional Practice on Treasury Management.

55

Page 72



sillizz  HamPsHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Banking arrangements

C.18 All arrangements with bankers must be made only by the Chief Financial
Officer, whois authorised to operate such bank accounts as are considered
necessary.

Staffing

C.19 The Chief Officer is responsible for determining how officer support will be
organised for the members and for all other member roles within the
Authority.

C.20 The Chief Officer is responsible for providing overall management to staff
and for ensuring that there are systems for the proper evaluation of pay for
all staff.

C.21 The Chief Officer is responsible for controlling total staff numbers by:

o advising the Authority on the budget necessary in any given yearto
cover estimated staffing levels

o adjusting the staffing numbers within. approved budget provision,
varying the provision as necessary within that constraint to meet
changing operational needs

56
Page 73



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Financial regulation D — Systems and procedures

Introduction

D.1 Sound systems and procedures are essential to an effective framework of
accountability and control.

General

D.2 The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the operation of the Authority’s
IT systems for financial and business-related purposes, for accounting
systems, the form of accounts and the supporting financial records. Any
changes made by officers to the existing financial systems or the
establishment of new systems must be approved by the Chief Financial
Officer. However, officers are responsible for the proper operation of financial
processes within their own areas of budgetary control.

D.3 Any changes to agreed procedures by officers to.meet their own specific
service needs should be agreed with the ChiefFinancial Officer.

D.4 The Chief Officer should ensure that their staff receive relevant financial
training which has been approved by the Chief Financial Officer.

D.5 The Chief Officer must ensure that, where appropriate, computer and other
systems are registered in accordance with data protection legislation. Officers
must ensure that staff are aware of their responsibilities under data protection
and freedom of information legislation.

Income and expenditure

D.6 The Chief Officer'is responsible for ensuring that a proper scheme of
authorisation has been established and is operating effectively. The scheme
of authorisation should identify staff authorised to act on the Chief Officer’s
behalf, in respect of payments, income collection and placing orders. It must
also identify the limits'of their authority. As part of the overall control
framework of accountability and control, the Chief Financial Officer is
responsible for specifying procedures for ordering, making payments and for
collecting income, and for approving procedures for writing off debts.

Payments to employees, members and pensioners

D.7 The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for paying all allowances to
employees, members and pensioners.

Taxation

D.8 The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for advising officers on all taxation
issues that affect the Service in the light of guidance issued by appropriate

57
Page 74



W\

JE2X. FIRE AND
0

§\\\""/// HAMPSHIRE
=

2 /s RESCUE
CUERS  AUTHORITY

{

bodies and relevant legislation.

D.9 The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for maintaining the Authority’s
tax records, making all tax payments, receiving tax credits and submitting
tax returns by their due date.

D.10 In accordance with advice received from Customs and Excise, the
Authority will not accept settlement in cash of any transaction above the
value of 15,000 euros equivalent (approximately £10,000).

Stocks, stores and inventories
D.11 Inventories shall be kept at each location of:

o all items of operational equipment
o all vehicles and plant with purchase value of over £500

o all items of non-operational equipment and.moveable furniture with
purchase value over £500. However local managers should also
include attractive items of a lower value.

D.12 The Chief Officer shall be responsible for maintaining proper security of all
assets and should aim to achieve the maximum utilisation of such assets in
the provision of services.

D.13 The advice of the Director of Professional Services should be sought on
the disposal of surplus or obsolete assets, which should normally be by
competitive tender or public auction.

D.14The sale of land is subject to different procedures as described in the
Scheme of Delegation and the advice of the Director of Professional
Services must first be sought.

Information technology systems

D.15 The Chief Officer must ensure there is a corporate approach to systems
development in line with the IT and e-government strategy.

Devolved Budget arrangements

D.16 The Chief Financial Officer will agree standards, systems and procedures for
all budget holding officers within the Service, and the Chief Officer will
ensure that all budget holding officers are accountable to the Chief Financial
Officer on all financial matters.

58
Page 75



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Financial regulation E — External arrangements

Introduction

E.1

The Authority must develop and contribute to local community plans and
act to achieve the promotion or improvement of the economic or social or
environmental well-being of its area.

Partnerships

E.2

E.3

E.4

E.5

E.6

E.7

The Authority has oversight of partnership arrangements with other local
public, private, voluntary and community sector organisations to address
local needs, including participation in Community Plans.

The Authority can delegate functions — including those relating to
partnerships — to officers. Delegated functions.are set out in the Scheme of
Delegation. When functions are delegated, the Authority remains
accountable forthem.

The Chief Officer is responsible for ensuring due diligence and legality for
all partnership arrangements.

The Clerk and Monitoring Officer are responsible for promoting
and maintaining the same high standards of conduct with regard
to partnerships that apply throughout the Authority.

The Chief Financial Officer must ensure that accounting arrangements
adopted for partnerships and joint ventures are satisfactory, and that the
overall corporate governance arrangements are satisfactory when
contracts are arranged with external bodies. The Chief Financial Officer
must ensure that the risks have been fully appraised before partnership
agreements are made with external bodies.

The Chief Officer is responsible for ensuring that appropriate approvals are
obtained before any negotiations are concluded in relation to work with
external bodies.

External funding

E.8

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for ensuring that all
funding notified by external bodies is received and properly
recorded in the Authority’s accounts.

59
Page 76



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Work for third parties

E.9 The Chief Financial Officer and Clerk and Monitoring Officer are
responsible for approving the contractual framework for any work for
third parties or external bodies.

60
Page 77



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

4.3 Contract Standing Orders

Contract Standing Order 1: Interpretation/glossary of terms
In these Contract Standing Orders, the following terms have the following

meanings:
“Advance Works Order” means an advance works order issued under CSO 12.10

‘Authorised Officer’ is an officer who has the authority to give such approval under
the Authority’s Scheme of Delegation and/or Financial Regulations.

“Contract’” means

(i) any agreement for the supply of goods, services, or the execution of
works to or for the Fire Authority including the use of consultants;

(ii) any Framework Agreement; or

(i)  any agreement where no payment is made by the Fire Authority but
which'is of financial value to the Contractor

(iv)  but does not include (without exception)

(V) an employment contract: or

(vi) a Grant Agreement

"Contract Lead Officer" means a Hampshire Fire and Rescue officer nominated to
deal with contracts

“Contractor” means the party or potential party to a Contract

“Contracts Finder” means a web-based portal provided for the purposes of the UK
Regulations by or on behalf of the Cabinet Office

“Authority” means Hampshire fire and Rescue Authority

“CSO”/ "CSOs" means Contract Standing Order/ Contract Standing Orders

61
Page 78



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

“‘EC Treaty” means the Treaty establishing the European Community signed on
25 March 1957 as amended by subsequent treaties

“EU Public Procurement Directives “ means EU Directive 2014/24/EU and
European Council Directive 89/665/EEC Any Directives and Regulations by which
it is applied, extended, amended, consolidated or replaced and any re-enactment
thereof

“‘EU Thresholds” means the thresholds for public advertisement of goods, works
and services contracts as provided for in the EU Public Procurement Directives
and advised by the Government

“Evaluation Report” means a report on the evaluation of tenders prepared under
CSO 12

"Framework Agreement" means an agreement between one or more contracting
authorities ( bodies governed by public law) and one or more Contractors as
defined in CSO 5.1

“Grant Agreement” means an agreement giving financial assistance to an

individual-or organisation with no supply of goods or services, or execution of
works; in return

"OJEU" means the Official Journal of the European Union

“UK Regulations” means the Public Contracts Regulations 2015

“Works” “supplies” & “services” are as defined in the EU Public Procurement
Directives

62
Page 79



G0 )2
= —
— D
A LS
% S
e &
<
"SCUE \\

\\‘!‘!!',qg/; HAMPSHIRE

P

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

]

Contract Standing Order 2: Status of, and Compliance with, Standing Orders

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

By law, Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority (“the Authority”) is required to
make standing orders with respect to contracts for the supply of goods or
materials or for the execution of works which provide for securing
competition and regulation of the manner in which tenders are invited.

The Authority is a contracting authority for the purposes of the EU Public
Procurement Directives, and is thereby legally bound to comply with certain
practices and procedures in the awardof Contracts.

The Authority has therefore adopted these Contract Standing Orders
(CSOs), setting out the administrative procedures that must be followed in
relation to the procurement and award of‘a Contract. CSOs provide a
framework to:

o Ensure the Authority uses its resources efficiently in making purchasing
decisions to obtain best value in public services.

o Comply with the laws that govern the spending of public money, and

o Provide a means of safeguarding the reputation of the Authority and its
staff from any implication of dishonesty or corruption.

The Chief Financial Officer and the Clerk are the joint custodians of these
CSOs and are responsible for keeping them under review. This includes
giving advice on their implementation and interpretation.

Every Contract made by the Authority or on its behalf (irrespective of the
source of funding) shall comply with the EC Treaty, the EU Public
Procurement Directives, all other applicable EU, and domestic legal
requirements, CSOs and Financial Regulations. In the event that there is
any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of CSOs and any legal
requirement, the legal requirement shall apply.

The EC Treaty provisions and Treaty-based principles, including non-
discrimination, equal treatment, transparency, and proportionality, apply
generally in the award of public contracts — including those of a value below
the EU Thresholds. Care must be taken at all times to ensure that nothing is
done which is discriminatory, improper or which distorts competition.

63
Page 80



RESCUE

2.7 ltis the role of the Director of Professional Services to achieve Best Value
for the Authority by publishing a Corporate Procurement Strategy and
maintaining a purchasing network for the Authority.

2.8 These CSOs are supplemented by the procurement Best Practice Guide
published and maintained by Hampshire County Council. In the event that
there is any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of the
Procurement Best Practice Guide and the CSOs, then CSOs shall apply.

2.8 These CSOs supplement the Employee Code of Conduct and a failure to
comply will normally be regarded as a disciplinary offence. Where a person
who is not a Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service employee is contracted to
a position where they are authorised to carry out purchasing functions, it is a
condition of their contract that they comply with CSOs.

2.9 These CSOs shall always be interpreted and applied in a way that supports
the achievement of the Authority’s identified business objectives, within
relevant legal frameworks.

2.10 Any contracts procured and awarded by way of collaboration with other
public bodies where a competitive process has been followed that complies
with the equivalent of these CSOs of the leading organisation (but does not
necessarily comply with these CSOs) will be deemed to comply with these
CSOs and no waiver in accordance with CSO 13 will be required.

64
Page 81



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Contract Standing Order 3: Approval to procure

3.1

3.2

3.3

The procurement of a Contract (not including a Framework Agreement) is
subject to the approval of the relevant decision maker who has the authority
to give approval for the relevant expenditure under the Authority’s Financial
Regulations and/or the Scheme of Delegation. The giving of approval is
subject to the expenditure involved having been included in approved
estimates and sufficient budgetary provision having been made in the
Authority’s capital programme or revenue budget.

In estimating the value of the Contract, the principles of CSO 4 shall be
applied.

In all cases, the Authorised Officer shall designate a Contract Lead Officer
for the Contract. It shall be the responsibility of the Contract Lead Officer to
ensure thatthe processes followed in relation to the procurement and award
of the Contract are compliant with these CSOs.

65
Page 82



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Contract Standing Order 4: Contract Value and Aggregation

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

The estimated value of a Contract shall be the total value of the Contract net
of VAT. This is the total consideration estimated to be payable over the full
term of the Contract by the Authority to the Contractor which shall include
any option to extend the term under the contract. Where the Contract is one
where no payment is made by the Authority (e.g. a concession) a best
estimate of the financial value to the Contractor shall be ascertained.

Where the Contract period is indefinite or uncertain, the estimated value
shall be calculated on the basis that the Contract will be for a period of four
years.

The estimated value of a Framework Agreement is the total value of all the
Contracts which could be entered into by the Authority and other contracting
authorities, further to that Framework Agreement.

Purchases of the same or similar goods or services must be aggregated
wherever practicable. Contracts must not be artificially separated so as to
circumvent the application of any part of CSOs, the EU Public Procurement
Directives, or UK Regulations.

Contracts which are each of a value below the relevant EU Threshold may
nevertheless be subject to full EU Public Procurement Directives tendering
requirements, where they constitute a series of related or repeat purchases.
Advice should be sought where this is the case, in order that the relevant
procurement route can be adopted.

66
Page 83



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Contract Standing Order 5: Framework Agreements

5.1

5.2

5.3

A Framework Agreement is an agreement between one or more contracting
authorities (bodies governed by public law) and one or more Contractors, the
purpose of which is to establish the terms governing contracts to be awarded
during a given period, in particular with regard to price and, where
appropriate, the quantity envisaged. Framework Agreements may be
established by the Authority, or by other public bodies, or public sector
buying consortia, as arrangements through which the Authority, along with
other public bodies, may make specific purchases.

Where appropriate a Framework Agreement that has been approved as
suitable by the Director of Professional Services in consultation with the
Clerk and Monitoring Officer should be used for the making of the proposed
purchase. A suitable Framework Agreement shall be appropriate for the
specific requirement and procured in compliance with the UK Regulations,
and the terms and conditions applicable shall meet the minimum
requirements of the Authority.

Provisions contained in the UK Regulations which govern Framework
Agreements must be complied with when concluding a Framework
Agreement or awarding a contract based on a Framework Agreement.

67
Page 84



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Contract Standing Order 6: Suitability of Contractors

6.1 In all cases where a Contract is awarded under these CSOs, a Contractor
can only be appointed who, as a minimum:

a) s registered for tax and holds a valid certificate (where appropriate)

can confirm a business contact address and telephone number

b) has an acceptable level of public liability, product, professional
indemnity and/or employer’s liability as appropriate, based on an
assessment of risk for. the Contract)

68
Page 85



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Contract Standing Order 7: Publication of Notices

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

In all cases where, by virtue of these CSOs or by UK Regulations, a public
notice is required, it shall be placed on the corporate tendering opportunities
portal on Contracts Finder.

Where the estimated total value of a proposed Contract is £100,000 or
above, the notice shall additionally be placed in at least one relevant local
publication and/or journal circulatingamong Contractors who undertake
Contracts of that nature. However, this is not required where the relevant
Authorised Officer is satisfied that to do so would not be value for money.

Where the value of the contract is £25,000 or greater the information
regarding the Contract award is required to be placed on Contracts Finder.

Where the value of the Contract exceeds the relevant EU Threshold, the
Contract notice and Contract award notice shall also be placed in the OJEU
in‘-accordance with the UK Regulations.

69
Page 86



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Contract Standing Order 8: Purchasing Procedures for Contracts of a Value
less than £100,000

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

Where the estimated value of the Contract, calculated in accordance with
CSO 4, is less than £100,000 and there is a suitable Framework Agreement
approved by the Director of Professional Services and Clerk under CSO 5.2,
that Framework Agreement shall be used.

Where no suitable Framework Agreement is available, and the estimated
value of the Contract, calculated in accordance with CSO 4,.is less than
£10,000, then one written quotation should be obtained. These CSOs do not
limit the number of quotations and more should be obtained where
appropriate.

Where no suitable Framework Agreement is available, and the estimated
value of the Contract calculated in accordance with CSO4, is £10,000 or
greater and less than £100,000 three written quotations should be obtained
against.the same written request for quotation in accordance with the
procedure set out in the Procurement Best Practice Guide. These CSOs do
not limit the number of quotations and more should be obtained, or a full
tendering exercise should be undertaken if appropriate.

In the selection of the Contractor, the Contract Lead Officer shall bear in
mind the need to seek best value for money and be able to demonstrate that
they have achieved this.

The Contract shall be evidenced in writing, by submission of an order in
accordance with the Framework Agreement or, where a Framework
Agreement is not used, by the placing of an order on the basis that the price
in the written quotation received shall apply.

70
Page 87



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Contract Standing Order 9: Tendering Procedures for Contracts of a Value

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

of £100,000 or greater but less than relevant EU Threshold

Where the estimated value of the Contract, calculated in accordance with
CSO 4, is £100,000 or greater but less than the relevant EU Threshold, and
there is a suitable Framework Agreement approved by the Director of
Professional Services and Clerk under CSO 6.2, that Framework Agreement
shall be used.

Where no suitable Framework Agreement is available, tenders shall be
invited using a procedure comparable/similar to the open procedure under
the Public Contract Regulations.

Where the estimated value of the contractis £100,000 or greater but less
than £1 million approval of the Clerk and Monitoring Officer shall be sought
to the use of the negotiated procedure without prior publication, competitive
dialogue procedure or innovation partnership procedure.

The procedure requires the publication of a notice in accordance with CSO
7. The public notice shall specify (i) a time period within which interested
parties may express an interest in tendering and (ii) the method by which
such interest shall be expressed. At the end of this period, an invitation to
tender shall be sent to all parties who have expressed an interest, specifying
a reasonable period for tenders to be returned.

In all cases, every invitation to tender shall include the following:

o A statement that the tendering process will be conducted within the
Authority’s corporate electronic tendering system;

° Full instructions on how to submit their tender to this system;

71
Page 88



9.6

9.7

9.8

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

o Advice that tenders, once received in the system, will be anonymous
until the time specified for their opening;

o Advice as to the deadline for submission of tenders to this system

In exceptional circumstances, and with the prior approval of an Authorised
Officer, an invitation to tender may be sent to tenderers in hard copy paper
form, rather than through the electronic tendering system.

The invitation to tender shall state the evaluation criteria, including sub-
criteria and sub-sub-criteria (where used), weightings and scoring criteria
that will be applied in the award of the Contract. These criteria must be
capable of objective assessment, include price and any other relevant
factors, and be weighted by relative importance. The invitation to tender
shall also include the terms and conditions that will apply to the Contract.

The Contract shall be evidenced in writing by the completion of a formal
written Contract, the terms of which have been approved by the Clerk and
Monitoring Officer or other person authorised by him for this purpose.

72
Page 89



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Contract Standing Order 10: Tendering Procedures for Contracts above EU

10.1

Thresholds

The EU Public Procurement Directives set a financial threshold beyond

which prescribed tendering procedures must be followed. The EU

Thresholds are reviewed every two years.

10.2 Where the estimated value of the Contract is in excess of the relevant EU

10.3

10.4

Threshold, the procedures set out inthe EU Public Procurement Directives
must be followed. In most cases, the open procedure, restricted procedure
or competitive procedure with negotiation will be used, butin certain
specialist cases, the negotiated procedure without prior publication,
competitive dialogue procedure or innovation partnership procedure shall
apply. Advice on which procedure.is appropriate to the specific case should
be sought from the Clerk and Monitoring Officer.

Where the estimated value of the contract is £100,000 or greater but less
than £1 million approval of the Clerk and Monitoring Officer shall be sought
to.the use of the negotiated procedure without prior publication, competitive
dialogue procedure or innovation partnership procedure.

Where the estimated value of the contract is £1 million or greater approval of
the Authority shall be sought to the use of the negotiated procedure without
prior publication, competitive dialogue procedure, or the innovation
partnership procedure.

10.5 Any proposed modifications to existing contracts which have not been

provided for in the initial procurement documents in clear, precise and
unequivocal review clauses shall be approved by the Clerk and Monitoring
Officer where the value of the modification is less than £1 million and by the
Authority where the value of the modification is £1 million or greater prior to
agreement of such modification.

73
Page 90



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Contract Standing Order 11: Receipt and Opening of Tenders

11.1 Subject to CSO 11.2 — 11.3, all tenders shall be opened at the same time, by
an officer appropriately trained to open tenders on the electronic tendering
system as soon as reasonably practicable on or after the date for return of
tenders. People under contract to the Authority, but not permanent
employees of the Authority shall not open tenders unless approved by an
Authorised Officer or the Clerk and Monitoring Officer.

11.2 For a Contract of a value of £100,000 or greater, the officer opening tenders
shall be certified as having completed the required training and the officer’s
name shall appear on a list held by the Clerk and Monitoring Officer and
authorised for that purpose.

11. 3The officer opening tenders shall record, in respect of each tender opened,
the name of the tenderer and, where applicable, the total value.

74
Page 91



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Contract Standing Order 12: Evaluation of Tenders and Award of Contract

12.1 The Contract Lead Officer (who should normally be an employee of the
Authority) shall ensure that the tenders received are evaluated in
accordance with the evaluation criteria that have been adopted for the
Contract, and stated in the invitation to tender. -These criteria must be
capable of objective assessment, include price and other relevant factors,
and be weighted by relative importance.

12.2 The Contract Lead Officer shall produce a written report evaluating each
tender received against the evaluation criteria. The report shall. identify the
tenderer who has submitted the most economically advantageous tender i.e.
the tender that achieves the highest score in the evaluation, and recommend
the award of the Contract to that tenderer. This report shall be submitted to
the person authorised to award the Contract under CSO 12.4.

12.3 No contract may be awarded unless the expenditure involved has been
included.in approved estimates and sufficient budgetary provision made in
the Authority’s capital or revenue accounts in accordance with CSO 3.1. The
Evaluation Report shall confirm how this requirement is met.

12.4 An Authorised Officer is authorised to award and sign any contract entered
into on the Authority’s behalf, where it relates to their Area of Responsibility,
and where the value of the Contract is less than £100,000. The Contract
may be awarded and signed by an Officer who is authorised to do so on
behalf of the Authorised Officer, as documented in the Chief Officer’s
Scheme of Financial Delegation. All other Contracts shall be awarded by the
Director of Professional Services in consultation with the Clerk and
Monitoring Officer. They should then be signed by the Clerk and Monitoring
Officer or a senior officer nominated by the Clerk and Monitoring Officer.

12.5 Where the value of a Contract is above the relevant EU Threshold, the
Contract shall be awarded in accordance with the UK Regulations and in

75
Page 92



12.6

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE

AUTHORITY

particular the requirements relating to a “standstill” period prior to the
Contract being entered into.

All Contracts, including an arrangement subject to a purchase order, must
be made in writing under English Law, and must clearly and carefully specify
the supplies,

services, or works to be provided, the agreed programme for delivery and the

12.7

12.8

12.9

price and terms for payment together with all other terms and conditions.

Where purchases of a value less than £100,000 are made for which
standard terms and conditions have been approved by the Clerk and
Monitoring Officer those standard terms should be used. Where a Contract is
estimated at a value £100,000 or above oris of an unusual or complex
nature, the Clerk and Monitoring Officer shall be consulted to produce a
suitable set of conditions of contract or to.advise on existing conditions for
use under a Framework Agreement

Every contract must also include certain clauses, in a form approved by the
Clerk and Monitoring Officer, to protect the Authority from fraud and to
ensure that Contractors understand their responsibilities when they are
acting on the Authority’s behalf as well as clauses required to comply with
the UK Regulations.

The Authorised Officer shall allocate to an officer the responsibility for the
ongoing management of the Contract.

12.10 In exceptional circumstances, where a Contract has been awarded under

CSO 12.4, but it is considered necessary in the best interests of the
Authority to initiate the provision of goods or services under that Contract
prior to the Contract being signed, the issue of an Advance Works Order by
the Clerk and Monitoring Officer may be requested. Issue will be subject to
confirmation that a decision to award the Contract has been made in
accordance with CSOs, the necessary funding for the Contract having been
approved, and the value of the Advance Works Order not exceeding
£100,000.

76
Page 93



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Contract Standing Order 13: Waiver of Contract Standing Orders

13.1 Any of the requirements of these CSOs may be waived in an individual case,
by the person authorised as follows:

Where the estimated value of the the Authorised Officer within whose
Contract is less than £100,000 Area of Responsibility the
Contract falls
Where the estimated value of the The Authorised Officer within
Contract is £100,000 or whose Area of Responsibility
greater but less than £1m the Contract falls in

consultation with the Clerk
and Monitoring Officer

Where the estimated value of the The Authority
Contract is £1m or greater

13.2 A request for the issue of a waiver must be made in writing to the person
authorised under CSO 13.1, with full reasons as to why the waiver is
required, and evidence that the issue of a waiver will not prevent best value
from being obtained. The decision in response to the request must also be
in'writing. No action shall be taken to enter into the Contract until such
request has been submitted and the decision made.

13.3 The Authority is subject to legal requirements to ensure fair competition for
Contracts of a value exceeding the EU Thresholds, and subject to
obligations under the EU Treaty to ensure that all Contracts (regardless of
value) are awarded having regard to the need to avoid any action that is
discriminatory, improper or which distorts competition.

13.4 It is understood that waiver may be utilised where it can be demonstrated
that the ability to act quickly to engage a single supplier would make
economic sense and fit with service requirements, in circumstances where
there is no more effective way to secure the capacity.

77
Page 94



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Part 5 — Appendices, Codes and Protocols

78
Page 95



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Appendix 1

HAMPSHIRE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY

THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES’ (MEMBERS ALLOWANCES)
(ENGLAND) REGULATIONS 2003

MEMBERS ALLOWANCES SCHEME 2017/18

(Updated June 2017 to reflect changes to the structure of
the Authority)

£

per annum

(i) Basic Allowance 2,943
(i) Special Responsibility Allowances
*Only one special responsibility allowance is payable to any Member under
the scheme.
Chairman of the Authority 14,469
Vice-Chairman of the Authority 1,769

Chairman of Committees (x 1)
Standards and Governance 7,305

Vice-Chairman of Committees (x 1)
Standards and Governance 1,769

Independent Person to the Fire Authority 100

(In accordance with the requirements of the Localism Act)

79
Page 96



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Minority Group Spokespersons on HFRA:
Liberal Democrat Group 7,238

Member for Communication Liaison (1,063)

(no appointment made)

Financial recognition for Members involved in Disciplinary/Grievance Hearings
(should it be necessary for Members to be involved, financial recognition to
equate with LGA rates in such cases)

Expenses (travel, subsistence, and carers) incurred by HFRA Members will
normally be claimed from the appointing Local Authority’s Member Allowances
Scheme.

80
Page 97



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Appendix 2

HAMPSHIRE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY

Arrangements for dealing with the Assessment,
Investigation and Determination of Complaints that a
Member or Co-opted Member of Hampshire Fire and

Rescue Authority has failed to comply with the Code of
Conduct for Members

1. Introduction

1.1. These arrangements set'out the procedure to be followed whena complaint
is received that a Member or Co-opted Member of the Authority has failed to
comply with the Authority’s Code of Conduct for Members.

1.2. The Code of Conduct for Members is attached at Appendix 3 to this
Constitution, and is available for inspection and on the Authority’s website
and on request to the Clerk to the Authority at the address detailed in
paragraph 2 below.

2. Making a Complaint
2.1. A complaint must be made in writing by post to:

The Monitoring Officer (HFRA)
c/o Democratic and Member Services,
Hampshire County Council

The Castle
Winchester
S023 8UJ

or e mail : members.services@hants.gov.uk

2.2. The standard complaints form should be used, which is attached to this
procedure and can also be obtained on request from the Monitoring
Officer.

81
Page 98


mailto:members.services@hants.gov.uk

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

2.3. Anonymous complaints will not be considered unless the complaint is
accompanied by documentary or photographic evidence indicating an
exceptionally serious or significant matter.

2.4. The Monitoring Officer will acknowledge receipt of a complaint within five
working days of receipt of a completed complaint form.

Initial Validation of Complaint

3.1. Once a complaint has been received the Monitoring Officer will carry out an
initial validation of the complaint. In carrying out this initial validation three
tests will be applied. These are:

3.1.11s it a complaint against one or more nhamed Members or Co-opted
Members of the Authority?

3.1.2Was the named Member or Co-opted Member in office, and acting or
purporting to act in his official capacity as aMember or Co-opted Member of
the Authority at the time of the alleged conduct; and

3.1.3 Would the complaint, if proven, amount to a breach of the Members’ Code
of Conduct.

3.2. The Monitoring officer will normally make an initial validation within 20
working days of receipt of a complaint, and the complainant will be notified of
the outcome within five ' working days of the decision being made.

4. Initial Assessment of Validated Complaint

4.1. Once a complaint has been validated by the Monitoring Officer, an initial
assessment of the complaint will be carried out by the Monitoring Officer, in
consultation with the Chairman of the Standards and Governance
Committee and an Independent Person. The Subject Member will be
informed of the complaint. A copy of the complaint will be forwarded to the
Subject Member, unless the Complainant is an officer of the Authority, and
the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Chairman of the Standards
and Governance Committee, considers it appropriate to withhold the specific
details of the complaint at this stage.

4.2. An Independent Person is a person other than a Member or Co-opted
Member of the Authority whose views must be sought and taken into
account before the Authority makes any decision about an allegation that a
Member or Co-opted Member of the Authority has breached the Code of
Conduct for Members which the Authority has decided to investigate, and
whose views may be sought by the Authority in relation to an allegation in
other circumstances, or by a Member or Co-opted Member of the Authority
against whom an allegation has been made.

82
Page 99



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

4.3. The purpose of the initial assessment by the Monitoring Officer is to
determine whether the complaint should be accepted for further
consideration by an Assessment Panel, or rejected.

4.4. In determining whether a complaint should proceed the Monitoring Officer, in
consultation with the Chairman of the Standards and Governance
Committee and an Independent Person will apply the following criteria:

4.4 .1 Sufficiency of information — Is there sufficient information or evidence
provided with the allegation? If it appears that substantiating evidence may
be available, but has not been provided, the Monitoring Officer may ask for
additional evidence, but the onus is on the complainant to ensure that all
relevant information is provided.

4.4.2 Seriousness of the complaint — is the complaint trivial, vexatious, malicious,
politically motivated, or ‘tit for tat’? Would the resources/cost involved in
investigating and determining the.complaint be disproportionate to the
allegation if proven?

4.4.3 Duplication — Is the complaint substantially similar to a previous
allegation considered bythe Standards and Governance Committee, or
subject of an investigation by another relevant authority?

4.4.4 Length of time — Did the events or behaviour to which the complaint relates
take place more than six months prior to receipt of the complaint. Does the
time lapse mean that those involved are unlikely to remember matters
clearly, or does the lapse of time mean that there would be little benefit in
taking action.

4.4.5 Public Interest —Is the public.interest served in referring the complaint
further. Has the Subject Member offered an apology or other remedial
action?

4.4.6 Anonymous — Is the complaint anonymous? Anonymous complaints will
not normally be considered unless there is additional documentary or
photographic evidence to support the complaint, and the complaint is

sufficiently serious to consider.

4.5 The Complainant and the Subject Member will normally be informed by the
Monitoring Officer of the initial assessment decision within ten working days
of it being made. Should it be determined by the Monitoring Officer, in
consultation with the Chairman of the Standards and Governance
Committee and an Independent Person that the complaint should not
proceed, then that is the end of the matter.

83
Page 100



5.2

5.3

5.4

6.

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Assessment Panel

Should it be determined, having regard to the criteria referred to at
Paragraph 4.4 above, that the complaint be accepted for further
consideration, a meeting of an Assessment Panel will be convened.

The Assessment Panel will include three members of the Standards and
Governance Committee, and will be proportionally constituted. An
Independent Person will be invited to attend the meeting of the Assessment
Panel.

A meeting of an Assessment Panel will notbe open to the press or public if
the Panel resolve in accordance with Part VA and Schedule 12A to the Local
Government Act 1972 that this is appropriate.

The Assessment Panel will determine how the complaint should thereafter
proceed. The views of the Independent Person will be sought by the
Assessment Panel in making any decision.

Outcome of Assessment Panel

6.1. The Assessment Panel will make one of the following three decisions:

6.1.1 Referthe complaint to the Monitoring Officer for investigation; or
6.1.2 Refer the complaint to the Monitoring Officer for ‘other action’; or

6.1:.3 Determine that no further action should be taken in respect of the
allegation.

The Complainant and the Subject Member will normally be informed by the
Monitoring Officer of the decision within ten working days of the meeting of
the Assessment Panel. Where the decision of the Assessment Panel is that
no further action should be taken, then that is the end of the procedure.

Other Action

. On occasions the Assessment Panel might consider that action other than a

formal investigation is the most appropriate way of dealing with a complaint.
An example might be where it is considered that the Subject Member

requires training on the Code of Conduct for Members and/or the Authority’s
procedures. ‘Other action’ might constitute but is not limited to the following:

7.1.1  Arranging for the Subject Member to receive training from the
Monitoring Officer.

7.1.2  Arranging for the Complainant and the Subject Member to engage in
a process of conciliation.

84
Page 101



8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

9.2.

9.3.

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

7.1.3  Any other steps (other than investigation) which appear appropriate.

Investigation

. Where the decision of the Assessment Panel is to investigate the complaint,

the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Chairman of the Standards
and Governance Committee, will appoint an Investigating Officer. The
Investigating Officer may be an Officer of the Authority, or an external
investigator.

The Investigating Officer will follow guidance issued by the Monitoring Officer
on the investigation of complaints, and the investigation will be carried out in
accordance with such guidance.

At the end of the investigation, the Investigating Officer will produce a draft
report and send copies of the draft to both the Complainant and the Subject
Member for comment. The Investigating Officer will take the comments of
the Complainant and Subject Member into account, before issuing his final
report to the Monitoring Officer.

The Subject Member may take the views of an Independent Person at any
stage in the investigation.

Investigation Consideration Panel

. Following completion of the investigation by the Investigating Officer, the

Monitoring Officer will prepare a report for consideration by an Investigation
Consideration Panel.” The Investigation Consideration Panel will comprise
three Members of the Standards and Governance Committee and will be
proportionally constituted. Membership of the Investigation Consideration
Panel should be drawn, where possible, from the Membership of the
Assessment Panel.

An Independent Person will be present at the Investigation Consideration
Panel, and Members of the Investigation Consideration Panel will take the
views of the Independent Person into account in its determination.

A meeting of an Assessment Panel will not be open to the press or public if
the Panel resolve in accordance with Part VA and Schedule 12A to the Local
Government Act 1972 that this is appropriate.

85
Page 102



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

9.4. The Investigation Consideration Panel shall reach one of three conclusions.
These are:

9.4.1 That the matter should be referred to a hearing of the Standards and
Governance Committee; or

9.4.2 That the complaint can be disposed of by informal resolution; or

9.4.3 That there was no failure by the Subject Member to observe the
Code of Conduct for Members.

10. Informal Resolution:

10.1 If the Investigation Consideration Panel, having consulted with the
Independent Person, consider that the matter can be resolved without the
need for a formal hearing, the Panel may determine that the matter may be
disposed of by way of informal resolution. - “Informal Resolution” might
constitute but is not limited to the following:

10.1.1 Arranging for the Subject Member to receive training from the
Monitoring Officer.

10.1.2 Requesting that the Subject Member offer an apology, and / or other
remedial action.

10.1.3 Any other steps (other than a formal hearing) which appear
appropriate.

10.2 Where a decision to seek informal resolution of a complaint is made, this
means that the Investigation Consideration Panel consider that the conduct
of the Subject Member was not in accordance with the Code of Conduct for
Members. Thus, if the Subject Member refuses informal resolution, or to
engage with the agreed outcome, the matter will be referred by the
Monitoring Officer for a hearing. Where the Investigation Consideration
Panel consider that an apology is appropriate, the wording shall be agreed
by the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Chairman of the Panel.

10.3 Where the decision of the Investigation Consideration Panel is that the
complaint may be disposed of by way of Informal Resolution, and the
Subject Member co-operates with the requests of the Investigation
Consideration Panel, the Monitoring Officer will report the outcome to the
Investigation Consideration Panel, and that is the end of the matter.

11. Hearing

11.1 Where the Investigation Consideration Panel consider that the matter should
be referred to a hearing, or Informal Resolution has been declined by the
Subject Member, a Hearing Panel will be arranged. The Hearing Panel will

86
Page 103



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

comprise three members of the Standards and Governance Committee and
will be proportionally constituted.

11.2 An Independent Person will be present at the Hearing Panel, and members

of the Hearing Panel will take the views of the Independent Person into
account in its determination.

11.3 A Hearing Panel meeting will normally be open to the press and public,

unless the Panel decide in accordance with Part V A and Schedule 12 A to
the Local Government Act 1972, that the matter.should be considered in
private session.

11.4 The Investigating Officer shall present his report to the Hearing Panel, and

12

121

12.2

call such witnesses as he considers necessary to substantiate his
conclusions. The Subject Member may also make representations to the
Hearing Panel, and call such witnesses as he considers necessary, and
shall be entitled to take the views of an Independent Person at any stage in
the Hearing. Should the Subject Member decline to attend the Hearing, the
hearing will proceed in the Subject Member’s absence, unless the Hearing
Panel is satisfied with the Subject Member’s reasons for not being able to
attend, in which case it may arrange for the Hearing to take place on another
date.

Action following Hearing

The Hearing Panel will reach one of two conclusions :

12.1.1 That the Subject Member failed to comply with the Code of Conduct
for Members; or

12.1.2. That there was no failure by the Subject Member to comply with the
Code of Conduct for Members.

Where the decision of the Hearing Panel is that there was a failure by the
Subject Member to comply with the Code of Conduct for Members the
Hearing Panel may:

12.2.1 Publish its findings in such manner as the Panel considers

appropriate
12.2.2 Report its findings to the Authority for information

12.2.3 Recommend to the Authority that the Subject Member be
censured by resolution of the Authority

87
Page 104



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

12.2.4 Recommend to the Subject Member’s Group leader that the Subject
Member be removed from Committees of the Authority and / or other
appointed positions (as appropriate).

12.2.5 Instruct the Monitoring Officer to arrange such training for the
Subject Member as the Panel considers appropriate.

NB:- A Hearing Panel has no power to suspend or disqualify a Member or to
withdraw a Member’s allowances. Removal of aMember from a Committee
will require a formal decision of the Authority.

12.3 Where the decision of the Hearing Panel is that there has been no breach of
the Members’ Code of Conduct, then that is the end of the procedure.

13. Appeals

13.1 There is no right of appeal against any decision in respect of a Code of
Conduct complaint, except through the Courts by way of judicial review.

88
Page 105



3 22
2 PSS
/,,";xcu: "\“\\\Q

Wl HAMPSHIRE

FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Z
2
=
=
S

Procedure for the Assessment, Investigation and Determination of
Complaints of Breach of the Code of Conduct

Complaint Received

Initial validation by:‘Monitoring Officer

Complaint not
va’dated/

h 4

Complaint validated

No action-end of
matter

Monitoring Officer

in consultation with Chair Standards and

Governance Committee and Independent

Person to decide if further consideration
reauired

No action-end of
matter

meets to consider \ Other
No complaint. Investigation Action
breach

No action-end of

v Yes

Assessment Panel

Yes

A 4

matter

Formal investigation and consideration
by Investigation Consideration Panel

Hearing required?

No action-end of
matter

Failure to comply with the
No Code?
v

No action-end of
matter

Yes

\ Informal resolution
N.B if not accepted by

member then hearing

\ 4 required
Hearing
Apply Yes .
sanction No right of appeal
89

Page 106



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

HAMPSHIRE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY COMPLAINT FORM

To be used if you wish to make an allegation that a Member of the Authority has failed to
comply with the Members Code of Conduct.

Your details

1. Please provide us with your name and contact details

Title:

First name:

Last name:
Address:

Telephone

number:

Your address and contact details will not usually be released unless necessary or to deal
with your complaint.

However, we will tell the following people that you have made this complaint:

. The Member(s) you are complaining about
. The Clerk to the Authority

We will tell them your name and give them a summary of your complaint; We

will give them full details of your complaint where necessary or appropriate to be able to deal
with it. If you have serious concerns about your name and a summary, or details of your
complaint being released, please complete section 6 of this form.

2, Please tell us which complainant type best describes you:

Member of the public
An elected or co-opted member of an authority

An independent member of the standards committee
90

Page 107



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Member of Parliament
Local authority monitoring officer
Council officer or authority/service employee

Other

3. Equality monitoring questions

We want to find out if we are giving as good a service as we can to everyone. To help us do
this, please complete this section of the form. The information that we ask for in this part of
the form will remain confidential and will not‘affect the way that your complaint is dealt with

Gender male / female
Age please state
Ethnic origin

White

Mixed - please state

Asian / Asian British

Black or Black British

Chinese

Other ethnic group — please state
Disability

Are you a disabled person Yes / No

91
Page 108



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Making your complaint

Once you have submitted your complaint, it will be considered in accordance with the
published Arrangements for dealing with the Assessment, Investigation and Determination of
Complaints that a Member or Co-opted Member of Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority
(“the Authority”) has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct for Members.

4. Please provide us with the name of the member(s) you believe have breached the
Code of Conduct and the name of their authority.

Title First name Last name Council or authority
name

5. Please explain in this section (oron separate sheets) what the member has done that
you believe breached the code of Conduct. If you are complaining about more than one
member you should clearly explain what each individual person has done that you
believe breached the Code of Conduct.

A copy of the Authority Code of Conduct for Members can be found online at
https://www.hantsfire.gov.uk/about-us/who-we-are/fire-authority/code-of-conduct-for-the-fire-

authority/

. You should be specific, wherever possible, about exactly what you are alleging the
member said or did. For instance, instead of writing that the member insulted you,
you should state what it was they said.

" You should provide the dates of the alleged incidents wherever possible. If you
cannot provide exact dates it is important to give a general timeframe.

. You should confirm whether there are any witnesses to the alleged conduct and
provide their names and contact details if possible.

92
Page 109


https://www.hantsfire.gov.uk/about-us/who-we-are/fire-authority/code-of-conduct-for-the-fire-authority/
https://www.hantsfire.gov.uk/about-us/who-we-are/fire-authority/code-of-conduct-for-the-fire-authority/

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

" You should provide any relevant background information.

Please provide us with the details of your complaint and the outcome from this
complaints process that you would like to see happen. Continue on a separate
sheet if there is not enough space on this form.

Only complete this next section if you are requesting that your identity is kept
confidential.

6.

In the interests of fairness and natural justice, we believe members who are complained
about have a right to know who has made the complaint. We also believe they have a
right to be provided with a summary of the.complaint. We are unlikely to withhold your
identity or details of your complaint unless you have good reason to justify the Authority
doing so.

Please note that requests for confidentiality or requests for suppression of complaint
details will not automatically be granted. The Clerk to the Authority will consider the
request alongside the substance of your complaint. We will then contact you with the
decision. If your request for confidentiality is not granted, we will usually allow you the
option of withdrawing your .complaint.

However, it is important to understand that in certain exceptional circumstances where
the matter complained about is very serious, we can proceed with an investigation or
other action and disclose your name even if you have expressly asked us not to.

93
Page 110



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Please provide us with details of why you believe we should withhold your
name and/or the details of your complaint:

Additional Help

7.

Complaints must be submitted in writing. This includes electronic submissions.
However, in line with the requirements of the Disability Discrimination Act 2000, we can
make reasonable adjustments to assist you if you have a disability that prevents you
from making your complaint in writing.

We can also help if English is not your first language.

If you need any support in completing this form, please let us know as soon as
possible.

This complaint should be submitted to the Clerk to the Authority by sending to the
following contact addresses:

By post to :

The Clerk to the Authority,

Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority,
c/o Democratic and Member Services,
Hampshire County Council

The Castle

Winchester

S023 8UJ

Or by e-mail to: members.services@hants.gov.uk

94
Page 111


mailto:members.services@hants.gov.uk

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Appendix 3

Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority Members’ Code of
Conduct

This Code is adopted pursuant to the Authority’s statutory duty to promote and maintain high
standards of conduct by members and co-opted members of the Authority. It applies to all
members and co-opted members, when acting in their role as a member or co-opted
member of the Authority.

This Code is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all the obligations placed on members
and co-opted members of this Authority. It is your responsibility to comply with the following
provisions of this Code as well as other legal obligations beyond the scope of this Code.

This Code is based on and consistent with the following principles:

SELFLESSNESS: Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest.
They should not do so in order to gain financial or other material benefits for themselves,
their family, or their friends.

INTEGRITY: Holders of public office should not place themselves under any financial or
other obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might seek to influence them in
the performance of their official duties.

OBJECTIVITY: In carrying out public business, including making public appointments,
awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards and benefits, holders of public
office should make choices on merit.

ACCOUNTABILITY: Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions and actions
to the public and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is appropriate to their office.
OPENNESS: Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all the decisions
and actions that they take. They should give reasons for their decisions and restrict
information only when the wider public interest clearly demands.

HONESTY: Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests relating to
their public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that protects the
public interest.

LEADERSHIP: Holders of public office should promote and support these principles by
leadership and example.

95
Page 112



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Part 1: General obligations of members and co-opted members

10.

11.

12.

You must treat others with respect.

You must not do anything which may cause the Authority to breach equalities
legislation.

You must not bully any person.

You must not intimidate, or try to intimidate, anyone who has complained about you or
who may be involved with a complaint about you.

You must not do anything which compromises the impartiality of the Authority’s officers.

You must not disclose confidential information (other than in very limited circumstances
permitted by law, and following consultation with the Authority’s Monitoring Officer).

You must not prevent a person from gaining access to information to which they are
entitled.

You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as
bringing your office or Authority into disrepute.

You must not use or attempt to use your position as a member improperly to confer on
or secure for yourself or any other person an advantage or disadvantage.

Youimust, when using or authorising the use by others of the resources of the Authority,
act in accordance with the Authority’s reasonable requirements, and ensure that the
resources are not used improperly for political purposes.

You must have regard to the Code of Recommended Practice on Local Authority
Publicity.

When reaching decisions, you must have regard to relevant advice from the Authority’s
officers, and give reasons for decisions.

Part 2: Registration and Disclosure of Interests

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

13.

You must, within 28 days of becoming a member or co-opted member, notify the
Authority’s Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary interest as set out in Part 3
of the Code, where the pecuniary interest is yours, your spouse’s or civil partner’s, or is
the pecuniary interest of somebody with whom you are living as a husband or wife, or
as if you were civil partners, and where you are aware that that other person has that

96
Page 113



14.

15.

16.

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

interest. The Authority’s Monitoring Officer will cause the interest notified to be entered
in the Authority’s Register of Interests.

Where a disclosable pecuniary interest has not been entered in the Register of
Interests, and it is a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter being considered at a
meeting of the Authority, committee or sub-committee at which you are present, you
must disclose the interest to the meeting, except where the matter is a ‘sensitive
interest’3. Where the interest is a ‘sensitive interest’, you must disclose merely the fact
that you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in the matter concerned.

Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter being considered at a
meeting of the Authority, committee or sub-committee, you must not participate in
discussion of, or vote on, that matter, and must withdraw from the room where the
meeting is being held, unless you have obtained a dispensation from the Standards and
Governance Committee. However, this does not prevent you from making
representations on the matter to the meeting, in accordance with the Authority’s
deputations procedure, provided that you withdraw from the room when those
representations are concluded and before any discussion or vote takes place.

Following any disclosure of an interest not on the Authority’s Register of Interests
maintained by the Autheority’s Monitoring Officer; or the subject of pending notification,
you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days beginning with the
date of disclosure.

Personal Interests

17.

18.

19.

You have a “personal interest” in an item of business where it relates to or is likely to
affect any of the following bodies of which you are a member: a public or charitable
body, any body to which you have been appointed by the authority, any political party,
trade union or other body one of whose principal purposes is to influence public opinion
or policy.

You also have a personalinterest in an item of business where a decision in relation to
it might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well being or financial position of you, a
member of your family or person with whom you have a close association, more than
other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the authority’s area.

You must disclose a personal interest at a meeting of the Authority, committee or sub-

committee, where you consider that interest to be relevant to an item of business being
considered at that meeting. The disclosure shall be made at the commencement of the
meeting, or when the interest becomes apparent, and shall be recorded in the minutes
of the meeting.

3 A ‘sensitive interest’ is described in the Localism Act 2011 as a member or co-opted member of an authority having an
interest, and the nature of the interest being such that the member or co-opted member, and the authority’s monitoring
officer, consider that disclosure of the details of the interest could lead to the member or co-opted member, or a person
connected with the member or co-opted member, being subject to violence or intimidation.

97
Page 114



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

20. Disclosure of a personal interest does not affect your ability to participate in discussion
or vote on the relevant item, provided it is not also a disclosable pecuniary interest.

Gifts and Hospitality

21. You must enter in the Authority’s register of interests the receipt of any gift or
hospitality, where you estimate the value to be at least £50, within 28 days of receipt.

Part 3: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

22. In accordance with the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests)
Regulations 2012, the pecuniary interests required to be disclosed are set out below:

Subject Prescribed description

Employment, office, trade, Any employment, office, trade, profession or
profession or vacation vocation carried-on for profit or gain.
Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial

benefit (other than from the relevant authority)
made or provided within the relevant period in
respect of any expenses incurred by M in carrying
out duties as a member, or towards the election
expenses of M.

This includes any payment or financial benefit from
a trade union within the meaning of the Trade
Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act
1992(2).

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant
person (or a body in which the relevant person has
a beneficial interest) and the relevant authority—
(a) under which goods or services are to be
provided or works are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the
area of the relevant authority

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy
land in the area of the relevant authority for a month
or longer.

08
Page 115



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Corporate tenancies

Securities

Any tenancy where (to M’s knowledge)—

(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and

(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person
has a beneficial interest.

Any beneficial interest in securities of a body
where—

(a) that body (to M’s knowledge) has a place of
business or land in the area of the relevant
authority; and

(b) either—

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds
£25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share
capital of that body; or

(i) if the share capital of that body is of more than
one class, the total nominal value of the shares of
any one class in which the relevant person has a
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the
total issued share capital of that class.

99

Page 116



AMPSHIRE
IRE AND

Appendix 4

Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority: Protocol for the
filming, photographing and audio-recording of all public

meetings, and reporting on all public meetings

. The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 came into force on 6th
August 2014. The new Regulations give the public and press new legal rights to
record and report at public meetings of Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority (“the
Authority”) and/or its committees and/or sub-committees, including the use of digital
and social media.

. The Authority is committed to being open and transparent in the way it conducts its
business. Any persons, including professional, citizen journalists or members of the
public, are welcome to take photographs, film and audio-record the proceedings, and
report on the proceedings at any meetings of the Authority and its committees and
sub-committees, that are open to the public. The Authority also welcomes the use of
social media (such as Twitter, YouTube and Facebook) and micro blogging to
communicate with people about what.is happening, as it happens.

. This Protocol provides practical information to assist anyone considering filming,
photographing or making audio recordings of public meetings, and reporting of those
meetings, including the use of digital and social media.

. Whilst no prior permission is required to carry out the recording and reporting, as a
courtesy to the public, officers and members, we encourage anyone intending to film,
photograph or audio record, or report a public meeting of the Authority and/or its
committees/sub-committees to contact the Committee Clerk for advice and guidance
within 48 hours of the meeting. Reasonable advance notice will enable practical
arrangements to be made and special requirements to be discussed, such as space to
view and hear the meetings, seats, and a desk. In addition the Committee Clerk can
inform the relevant Chair of what is to take place on the day.

. Flash photography, additional lightning or large equipment will not be permitted,
unless it can be accommodated without causing disruption to the proceedings.
Requests to use equipment of this nature will be subject to consideration of the

100
Page 117



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

constraints of the meeting rooms. Anyone filming, photographing and/or audio-
recording, or reporting a meeting of the Authority shall bear all the costs of doing so
themselves.

. The Chair of the meeting will be informed of any intention to film, photograph and/or
audio-record, or report and s/he will, at the beginning of each meeting, make an
announcement that the meeting may be filmed, audio-recorded or photographed, or
reported and will ask if anyone actively objects to this. Anyone who remains at the
meeting after the Chair's announcement will be deemed to have consented to the
broadcast of their image and anything they say.

. In addition to the right of persons to film, photograph and/or audio-record, as set out
above, the Authority may film and live stream full Authority meetings on its own
website. Such recordings may also be made available for repeated viewing on the
website for a period following the meeting.

. A note will also be posted on the door of the meeting room advising anyone who
attends the public meeting that the meeting may be live streamed on the Authority’s
website (in the case of full Authority meetings) and that they may be filmed,
photographed and audio-recorded, and reported on and that by attending the public
meeting they are consenting to the broadcast of their image and anything they say.
Meeting agendas will also include the following statement:

“The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations are in force, giving a legal
right to members of the public to record (film, photograph and audio-record) and report
on proceedings at meetings of the Authority, and its committees and/or its sub-
committees. The Authority has a protocol on filming, photographing and audio-
recording, and reporting at public meetings of the Authority which is available on our
website. This includes, in the case of full Authority meetings, live streaming of the
meeting on the Authority’s website. At the start of the meeting the Chair will make an
announcement that the meeting may be recorded and reported. Anyone who remains
at the meeting after the Chair's announcement will be deemed to have consented to
the broadcast of their image and anything they say.”

. It should be noted that the Chair of a meeting will have absolute discretion to
terminate or suspend the meeting for a period not exceeding 30 minutes, if, in their
opinion, continuing to exercise any of the above activities would distract or disrupt the
meeting, and this could result in expulsion of the person. Essentially, disruptive
behaviour can, for the purposes of this protocol, include:

101
Page 118



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

a. Moving to areas outside the areas designated for the public without the consent of
the Chair;

b. Excessive noise in recording or setting up or re-siting equipment during the

debate/discussion;

Intrusive lightning and the use of flash photography;

d. Asking for people to repeat statements for the purpose of recording.

o

10. In allowing filming, photography or audio-recording, or reporting to take place, the
Authority requires those participating not to edit the film, photograph or audio-
recordings, and reporting in a way that could lead to misinterpretation of the
proceedings of the meeting. This includes refraining from editing an image or views
expressed in a way that may ridicule, or show a lack of respect towards those being
photographed, flmed or recorded. When published or broadcast, recordings and
reportings to be accompanied by information including when and where the recording
and/.or reporting was made and the context.in which the discussion took place.

11. Deputations will be invited to declare their names before speaking. In making a
deputation individuals will by doing so, give their consent to be filmed, photographed,
audio-recorded, or reported.

12.The Authority may wish to maintain its own record of proceedings to ensure a
comparison copy is available. It may choose to publish this via its own web- site. No
copies or transcripts will, however, be made available from the Authority’s own
records.

13. Written minutes of meetings, once confirmed, will remain the formal record of all
decisions taken.

14. All meetings of the Authority, committees and sub-committees are open to the public
except in limited circumstances where the Authority is legally required, or allowed, to
close the meeting to the public. Any recording or reporting of such meetings should
cease immediately if and when the Chair of the meeting agrees to formally exclude
the Press and public due to the business of an Exempt or confidential nature.

15.Recording and reporting of the Authority’s meetings is subject to the law and it is the
responsibility of those doing the recording and reporting to ensure compliance. This
will include the Human Rights Act, the Data Protection Act and the laws of libel and
defamation. The Authority accepts no liability whatsoever for such breaches.

102
Page 119



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

2.1

2.2

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Appendix 5

Protocol for Member — Officer Relations

Introduction

An effective and professional relationship betweenMembers and Officers in which both
understand each others role is essential in the success of the Hampshire Fire and
Rescue Authority and Service. The roles are complementary to each other and ensure
effective governance which is transparent and accountable.

The purpose of this protocol is to give clarity to the role and expectations of Members
and Officers to ensure mutual respect and trust. It is also intended to help Members and
Officers perform effectively in their roles and ensure an understanding of the
relationship.

The protocol applies to Members of Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority (including
any co-opted Members) and Officers of Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service.

The protocol is approved by the Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority and forms part of
the Constitution.

The protocol must be read.in conjunction with the Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority
Members Code of Conduct, the Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service Employee Code of
Conduct and all documents contained within the HFRA constitution.

The protocol is not prescriptive and does not cover every situation. The intention is to
give guidance as to how to deal with certain issues and to be used as a reference point
in maintaining high standards of conduct.

Breaches of this protocol and of the Members and Officer Codes of Conduct may result
in disciplinary action.

Role of Officers

Officer (and staff) means any person employed by the Authority. Officers are
accountable to the Chief Officer.

Officers:

o should seek to assist a Member when required but must not exceed the powers
which have been delegated to the Chief Officer set out in the Scheme of
Delegation.

103
Page 120



2.3

2.4

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

can provide support services to Members (typing, stationary, printing,
photocopying, transport) but only for Authority business and not in connection with
party political campaigning activity.

will not provide advice or information to a party group and should not be asked to
brief a party group meeting or discussion.

are accountable to the Authority for the implementation of policies, the delivery of
services to communities and for the day to day.-management of services.

will provide professional and technical advice to Members to assist with their
policy and decision making functions

In fulfilling these roles, Officers can expect Members;

to treat them with respect and courtesy

to act with integrity, mutual support and confidentiality

not to put Officers under any undue or unnecessary pressure

not to ask Officers to take part in any work of a party political nature

to be aware that support cannot extend beyond providing support, information and
advice on Fire Authority matters

to show commitment and attend" public meetings and events (including Members
Awareness Sessions)

to demonstrate political leadership and direction

to recognise the fact that Officers have delegated authority within the Scheme of
Delegation

not to use their positions or relationships to advantage or disadvantage a personal
interest or to influence a decision improperly

to obtain agreement in advance from the Station Manager if visiting a station so as
to avoid adverse impact on operational activities or planned training

to comply with the Members Code of Conduct

to have due regard to any advice, guidance and training on Members’ roles and
responsibilities

to be committed to Member Development and the use of Moddle for this

to never act in a way which cannot be justified to the public

Officer representation at Fire Authority meetings will consist of the Clerk or his
representative, the Chief Officer or Deputy CO, Director of Professional Services, Chief
Financial Officer, a Service Delivery representative at SMT level, Directorate support.

Officers who have written a paper for decision are invited to attend the meeting to
present the paper but are not required to stay for the duration of the meeting.

Officer representation at Standards and Governance meetings will consist of: the Clerk
or his representative, the Director of Professional Services or his/her representative

104
Page 121



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

41

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

members of the Senior Management Team as appropriate and such other officers as
are required depending on the agenda.

Officers who have written a paper for decision are invited to attend the meeting to
present the paper but are not required to stay for the duration of the meeting.

Officers are invited to observe CMT meetings.
Role of Members

Members of the Authority are appointed by Hampshire County Council (HCC),
Portsmouth and Southampton City Council (PCC and SCC).

The responsibilities of the Authority are set out in the Constitution.
Members:

o should not involve themselves in the day to day management of the Service but
are entitled to be listened to when raising issues on behalf of the people they
represent.

o can approach the Chief Officer, Clerk or Chief Financial Officer to provide them
with information required to fulfil their role as a Member

o follow Authority policies for the access to documents and information held
(adhering to the Data Protection and Human Rights Acts)

In fulfilling their roles, Members can expect Officers to:

o provide objective unbiased information and advice on matters of the Authority

o act with integrity and respect confidentiality within the limits of each own Officer’s
responsibility

o respect and support the role of each Member along with associated workloads
and pressures

o not copy any correspondence provided to them to another Member without

making it clear that they are doing this

behave professionally perform their duties effectively and efficiently

be aware of and sensitive to the political environment

support the Member role and development of the role

comply with the Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service Employee Code of Conduct

Role of Chairman and Vice Chairman

The Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Authority are elected by the Authority. They
are responsible for visibly leading the Authority. The Chairman, and in his/her absence
the Vice Chairman will have the following roles and functions:

105
Page 122



4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

5.3.

54

5.5

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

o Chairing Authority meetings — the Chairman will preside over Authority meetings
and ensure that they are conducted in accordance with the Standing Orders of the
Authority, set out in this Constitution;

o Ensuring that Authority meetings are a forum for the debate of matters of concern
to Members and a place at which Members are able to hold Officers and the
Authority to account;

o Promoting public involvement in the Authority’s activities;

o Representing the Authority at such Civic and-ceremonial functions as may be
appropriate

o  Upholding the Constitution of the Authority.

The Chairman will have regular one to one briefings with the Chief Officer.

The Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Authority will not hold the Member
Development role but can form part of a working group.

Role of all other Members

Members can request a briefing with the Chief Officer or another Officer if required.
All Members are entitled to attend Corporate Management Team (CMT) meetings.
Role of the Chair and Vice Chair of the Standards and Governance Committee is to
chair meetings of the Standards and Governance Committee and ensure that they are
conducted in accordance with the Authority’s Standing Orders.

Role of Working Groups:

Working Groups are set up when there is a requirement for Members to work together
on a specific area of Authority business. The working group will then feed back to the
Fire Authority. A Member Working Group will not exercise any decision making
functions.

The Member Development Role:

The Member Development role is responsible for ensuring the learning and
development of all Members of the Authority is catered for.

The operation of this protocol will be monitored by the Authority and reviewed as
required.

106
Page 123



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

7  The Clerk to the Authority, when required, will offer advice on the implementation and
operation of the protocol.

107
Page 124



2190 E50 1 SHH

sjuspEoUl JUDDYUEE INogo ABWIPID0D pelnpdn 60 M SISqWSH

DIPSW |DIDOS -
Djpew
BUY O} N0 JUSE LUSLM SEE0S8|8] SMSU SHJH Uo Ul pejdoD S puD sequuepy -
UDWMIDYD Wei4H PUD DIpey puD
SUOYOOUNUALIDT 10 poeH ueemieq sBupeew suoyoounuruos inbey
Paunbel s - USYINDU| SISqUUSKY =

“SISPIOYSHDYS A PUD SISqUISKY YiHH
eopdouddo puD puDAe)ss um Buupys uoy DU
Aawy pdwosd pup epind of yioMmewDy o 9 sY]

sjuepiow ey junoyube pup gueas eyouicdios SHH SIO(EI0T SOUSIDMY SIBQUUSIY -
A 0y LOWDpE) U penjosufpeiopdn Asoudosddo gjuepeoul/sjuens AQ pemnbel o - sejopdn IDWe JeqUWsU VidH IV -
pUD “J0 BIDMD BP0 8D SISCI0USHDS Asy woe| juswebouniy spoiodion
IS0 pUD SISQUUISIY YHHH 1DU] SINsUe O) JOpo Ul Guyeug s, uouloyD WidH - -
U0 JO SDelD ASH TIepisUcD jooojoid s UDULIDYD PUD 1E0W0 JeiyD - eyopdn siequuew Auiuow .
ssaynod juewebBobus pup uoyoounwwos ‘esuswe b peysgoise JuBLND

SHIOIAA0 SYIH ¥30d wroy dysepos]
TOO01LOdd NOLIYOINNOWINOD s Jspim -
UCHE] BTHASS JO SPDeH -

UYoEN] -

=00 elj ey -

sdnoul diysiepoe] ¥3D1440 A

JuBIDIID 4O SISQWSI -
Ruoyny eid iepp eyl -
- 20f|3unco YBnalog puo Jowsp AunoD .
o sdnoif pojiod wadH - -
R <

O JSUDISSIULALD D S pPUD 60 =
T

T

>

<

Appendix 6 — Communications Protocol

uDUIDYD ANded 10/pun UDUUIDYD Wa4H .
=dncub uoyoauNUILIOD YITIOHTAVLS AeH

L
>
o
(2]
L
o

108
Page 125



%2 HAMPSHIRE
. FIRE AND

> RESCUE
AUTHORITY

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
SERVICE

COMMUNICATIONS GUIDANCE
FOR HFRA MEMBERS

This document has bean producad to provide guidancs
on how to use information and intalligencea providad fo you
by HFRS officers and advise on ways it can be disfributad.

Cur Controd Room can be confacted on the number

below at any tima to anquire about an incident or
to be put through to an officer:

Tel: 0203 162 0063

109
Page 126



\\;:!‘!!',':g/; HAMPSHIRE

2. “f_
.0 )& RESCUE
FFE™S  AUTHORITY

‘“i‘\\\

r-“‘ 10 guiding principles: h

1. Members play a pivotd roke in acdvocating the work of HFRS and this
should not be constrainad Im ary way.

2. Information provided by HRRS officers should be usaed and disseminated
in an appropiate manner.

3. The usa of any provided information should reflect the Memibsars Code
of Conduct and tha vduas of tha Fire Authority.

4. Corsldar - what is the pupose or public berafit of the Information you
ara sharing?

5. When informmation s provided, ssek clanty from officesrs, if necessary, on
how that informiction should be usad.

&, Inforrction shared may e pasonal or ssnsithve, so seek clarty on its use
if unsure,

7. Think before posting on social media - bae aware of the goead
irforrmation fravels online.,

8. If approachad by the madia or a corstituant to decuss anissus, gpeak
to an officar to bae cear on the facts {(If necassany)

Q. Ba aware of the context inwhich you are responding and b clea on
the dffercnce batwean factual Information or a pesonal opinlan.

LH]. To the public, you are abways a Membar of the Fire Authaority, J

Why information s shared with Memibssrs by HFRS officers:

*  To help you fufil your roke as Mambers

v To provide you with suitable inforrmation fo be acommmurity touchpscint foryour
residents

»  Toensare you ars brisfed ahead of any enquiries from the media or public

Ways infarmalion ean be shared:

*  Media

¢ Socid media

*  Press releases

*  Printed rmataral {leaflst, newsketar atc)

»  (Zomments mods in public

»  Comversations with corstitusnts

*  Public mestings

»  Local odathorty rmestirgs

»  Any coocasionwhenyou can be ssen to be actimg cs o HARA Mermibsr

HFRS10E/ 1215

110
Page 127



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Appendix 7 — Code of Corporate Governance

Code of Corporate Governance

1.

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

Introduction

Governance is about how we make sure that we are doing the right things, for the
right people, in a way which is timely, open, honest and accountable.

Governance comprises the arrangements put in place to ensure that intended
outcomes for stakeholders are defined and achieved.

The HFRA have key statutory responsibilities as set out in this Constitution.

The HFRA have approved and adopted this Code of Corporate Governance in
accordance with the core principles set out in the Chartered Institute for Public Finance
and Accountancy (CIPFA) Delivering Good Governance in Local Government
Framework (2016 edition). The Framework defines the principles that should underpin
the governance of each local government organisation and provides a structure to
assist with the approach to governance. To achieve good governance, each local
government organisation should demonstrate that they comply with the core principles
set out below.

The Clerk who is also the monitoring officer will be responsible for monitoring and
reviewing the operation of the Code of Corporate Governance and reporting annually to
the Standards and Governance Committee.

The Clerk will be assisted by the Chief Financial Officer and Chief Internal Auditor. The
Code of Corporate Governance links to the Annual Governance Statement which is
included within the Authority’s Statement of Accounts.

The seven core principles from the Good Governance in Local Government Framework
(2016 edition) form the basis on which effective governance should be built:

o Behaving with integrity, demonstrating string commitments to ethical values and
respecting the rule of law

o Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

o Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental
benefits

o Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the
intended outcomes

J Developing the entity’s capacity including the capability of its leadership and the
individuals within it

111

Page 128



1.6.

2.1.

2.2.

3.1.

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

o Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong
financial management

o Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver
effective accountability

This Code of Corporate Governance relates to how the HFRA carries out their role. It
does not directly relate to the role and responsibilities of the Hampshire Fire and
Rescue Service (HFRS). However, the HFRA recognises that they have a responsibility
for ensuring the Service also adheres to the core principles within the Local
Government Framework and will require the Chief Officer to demonstrate this.

The Code of Corporate Governance

The HFRA have developed a local Code of Corporate Governance which incorporates
the core good governance principles. The HFRA Code of Corporate Governance
demonstrates how they commit to the core principles and how they will achieve the
commitment.

The way in which each of the core principles of good governance are put into practice
by HFRA is set out in the Authority’s Annual Governance Statement which is published
on the Authority’s web pages. To support the Annual Governance Statement, a table is
created which provides evidence as to how the core principles of good governance are
being met. This table is found on the HFRA .internet pages.

Review

The Annual Governance Statement is reviewed annually.

112
Page 129



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

APPENDIX 8

THE AUTHORITY’S KEY STATUTORY RESPONSIBILITIES

The table below summarises the key statutory responsibilities of Hampshire Fire and Rescue
Authority. It is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all pieces of legislation that apply to the
Authority. It is an aide memoir in respect of key statutory provisions.

Legislation

Key points

Key responsibilities within
HFRA

Hampshire Fire
Services
(Combination
Scheme) Order
1996

Established "a fire. authority  for the
combined areas. of the councils. of
Portsmouth, Southampton and Hampshire
County.Council.

Also established a fire brigade for the
combined = areas, now known as
‘Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service’.

Sets out high level constitution of HFRA

Clerk and Monitoring Officer:
Advises on constitutional
issues/compliance.

Chief Officer: Understands
principles and ensures
compliance within the Service.

Members: understand
structure/key principles

Fire and Rescue
Services Act
2004

Sets out HFRA's statutory duties/powers.
The main duties/powers include:

o Fire safety — the promotion of fire
safety in the Authority’s geographical
area.

o Fire fighting — extinguishing fires and
protecting property and life in the
Authority’s geographical area.

e Road Traffic Accidents - Rescuing
people in the event of RTAs and
protecting people from serious harm in
the event of RTAs in the Authority’s
geographical area, to the extent
considered reasonable.

o Emergencies — such functions as the

Chief Officer: Understands
the functions and ensures the
Service discharges them

Clerk/Monitoring Officer:
Advises on functions and
compliance.

Members: Understand
functions and scrutinises
compliance

113
Page 130




HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

Secretary of State confers relating to
emergencies other than fires and road
traffic accidents in the Authority’s
geographical area.

Local
Government Act
1972

A fire and rescue authority is a “principal
council” for the purposes of various
provisions in the Local Government Act
1972 — E.g. public access to meetings,
agenda papers and minutes, discharge of
functions etc.

Clerk and Monitoring Officer:
advises on responsibilities and
compliance

Members: Understand at
appropriate level the
framework within which HFRA
operates.

Regulatory
Reform (Fire
Safety) Order
2005

HFRA is the Enforcing Authority for fire
safety duties in respect of relevant
premises in the Authority’s geographical
area.

HFRA is responsible for appointing
inspectors for the purposes of
enforcement.

Chief Fire Officer:
Operational responsibility for
enforcement/ appointing
inspectors.

Clerk/MO: advises on
functions/legal issues
associated with enforcement.

Policing and
Crime Act 2017

Introduces a duty to keep collaboration
with other blue lamp services under
consideration.

Introduces a duty to have regard to the
Policing and Crime Plan for the area.

Introduces new powers in respect of
governance of Fire and Rescue functions.

Chief Officer: Understands
duties and ensures compliance
within the Service.

Members: Understand new
governance arrangements and
provide strategic direction.

Clerk/MO: Advises on
functions and compliance.

Fire and Rescue
National
Framework

Issued by the Secretary of State pursuant
to the 2004 Act.

HFRA must have regard to the National
Framework and as part of this must
produce and maintain an Integrated Risk
Management Plan, work with
communities, collaborate with other FRAs
to deliver interoperability etc.

Chief Officer: Understands
duties and ensures
compliance/delivery within the
Service.

Members: Understand
obligations and ensure Service
is led and managed in a way
that meets them.

Clerk/MO: Advises on
responsibilities and
compliance.

114
Page 131




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

Purpose: Decision

Date 13 June 2017 FIRE AND
. . RESCUE
Title Appointment of Standards and Governance AUTHORITY

Committee and Other Appointments

Report of the Clerk

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1. This report seeks approval to the proportional allocation of members to the
Authority’s Standards and Governance Committee; to the appointment of
members and the respective Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen to serve on that
Committee. It furthermore seeks appointments to the Hampshire Firefighters’
Pension Board; and to various other appointments.

BACKGROUND

2. Size and Political Composition of Committees

2.1 Atit's meeting of 7 September 2016, the Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority
agreed a new composition for the Authority of 10 Councillor Members,
comprising 8 from Hampshire County Council and one from each of Portsmouth
and Southampton City Councils, with effect from the annual meeting of the
Authority in June 2017. Accordingly, the Clerk subsequently wrote to each of the
Constituent Councils to request that the required number of Members be
appointed at each respective annual Council meeting.

2.2 It was furthermore agreed in September 2016 that an application be submitted to
the Secretary of State requesting an amendment to the HFRA Combination
Order to add the Hampshire Police and Crime Commissioner as a full member of
the Authority. This application was duly submitted and it was expected to have
been progressed by June 2017, however the unexpected calling of a General
Election resulted in insufficient Parliamentary time for the amendments to be
enacted. The application will be resumed with the Home Office as soon as
practicable following the General Election.

2.3 Following local elections and subsequent Hampshire, Portsmouth and
Southampton annual Council meetings in May 2017 and with regard to
paragraph 2.1, the membership and political composition of the Hampshire Fire
and Rescue Authority (HFRA) may be found at appendix 1.

2.4 The political proportionality provisions of the Local Government and Housing Act
1989 apply to the Authority. These require, inter alia, that where one political
group has an overall majority, that group must have a majority on any
Committee. The proposed proportionality table for 2017/18 appears as appendix
2. The Authority is asked to review and confirm the appointment of Members to
the Standards and Governance Committee.

Page 133



3.

3.1

Pension Board Members

At its meeting of 20 February 2015, the Authority agreed the formation of a
Pension Board, to meet the requirements of the Public Service Pension Scheme
Act 2013, consisting of three employer representatives and three scheme
members to be appointed by the Fire Authority for a four year term. The current
membership is set out below and the Authority is asked to appoint a new
employer representative to the vacancy that exists. The Terms of Reference for
the Pension Board make provision for the Board to elect its own Chairman and
Vice-Chairman and therefore this responsibility does not fall to the Fire Authority.

Current appointments to the Pension Board are as follows:

Employer Representatives: Scheme Members:
Date appointed Date appointed
Stew Adamson 9 June 2016 Richard North 7 Sept 2016
Clir Price 9 June 2016 Alex Rhodes 11 June 2015
Vacancy Malcolm 11 June 2015
Eastwood

3.2 It is proposed at another item on the agenda (Constitution of HFRA) that the

(a)

(b)

Authority continues to delegate scheme management of the Fire Fighters
Pension Scheme to the Standards and Governance (S&G) Committee. Subject
to this being agreed, it would therefore amount to a conflict of interest for a
Member of the S&G Committee to also be appointed to the Pension Board and
the Authority is advised to take this into account and consider whether any
changes of representation may be required.

Other Authority Appointments

Corporate Management Team — The Group meets as a preliminary sounding
board with senior officers to develop policies, plans and recommendations for
subsequent presentation to the Authority. It is informal and was originally
established to make progress with the Authority’s Integrated Risk
Management Plan. It has also been used as a useful cross-party group to
discuss and deal with matters of urgency. It is proposed that the Authority
appoint the following leading Members to the CMT:

e Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Authority,

e Chairman of Standards and Governance Committee
e One Liberal Democrat Member

e One Labour Member.

Principal Officer Pay Review Group — The Authority is asked to appoint three
Members, and identify one of these as Chairman, to an informal working group
which may be called upon when required (normally on an annual basis) to
conduct a review of any proposed changes to principal officer pay and to make
recommendations accordingly to the Authority.

Page 134



(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Crime and Disorder Reduction/Community Safety Partnerships (CSPs) — The
Authority has appointed one, and in some cases more than one, of its
members to serve on each of the CSPs currently operated by the 11 district
and two unitary authorities in the Authority’s area. They are seen as an
important way to achieve and improve the delivery of “joined-up” services to
the local community and enable resources to be targeted using the most
appropriate skills. The 11 Crime and Disorder Reduction/Community Safety
Partnerships may be seen at Appendix 3. The Authority is asked to consider
appointments to these.

Member Development Liaison Champion — The Authority is asked to consider
the appointment of a Member to the role of Member Development Liaison
Champion. Clir Roz Chadd was appointed to the role for one year in June
2016.

Minority Group Spokespersons — A Minority Group Spokesperson’s position is
set out in the Members’ Allowances Scheme. The Liberal Democrat Group is
asked to confirm their appointment to this position and to inform the Clerk
accordingly.

3SFire Ltd. Shareholder Representative — The trading company 3SFire was
established in 2013 by the Authority. Pursuant to Article 39 of the Articles of
Association of 3SFire Ltd, the Authority is asked to appoint a Shareholder
Representative.

Articles 18 and 19 of the Articles of Association require that the company shall
have between three and seven directors and that all Executive Directors be
appointed by a resolution of the HFRA until the subsequent Annual meeting of
the Authority. For reference, the current Executive Directors are: Councillors
C. Carter, R. Price and Neil Odin. Pursuant to these Articles, the Authority is
asked to appoint Executive Directors of 3SFire.

Independent Person The provisions of the Localism Act 2011 require that the
Authority appoint an Independent Person or Persons whose view must be
sought before reaching a decision following investigation of an allegation of a
breach of the Code of Conduct. The previous holder of this position was
appointed for a four year term in June 2013 and therefore a new appointment
is required. The Standards and Governance Committee was delegated
authority to progress such processes as may be required for the recruitment of
an Independent Person or Persons in order to make a recommendation for an
appointment to the Full Authority. Further details may be found in the report to
the Standards and Governance Committee at Appendix 4. The Authority is
asked to receive and agree the recommendations of the Standards and
Governance Committee.

PEOPLE IMPACT ASSESSMENT

5.

The proposals in this report are considered compatible with the provisions of
equality and human rights legislation.

Page 135



6.

OPTIONS

The Authority is asked to make the appointments for the reasons outlined in the
report above.

RECOMMENDATIONS

7.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

That, for the purposes of Part 1 of the Local Government and Housing Act
1989, the allocation of seats on the Standards and Governance Committee of
the Authority be as set out in paragraph 2.4 /Appendix 2 of the report.

That the Authority appoint members of the Standards and Governance,
Committee and its Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen following the agreed
allocation of seats at paragraph 7 (above), until the Annual meeting of the
Authority in 2017.

That, with regards to the Pension Board, the Authority consider the position as
set out in paragraph 3 of the report and make appointments in accordance
with the Board’s Terms of Reference:

That the Corporate Management Team (CMT) include the Members set out in
paragraph 4a of the report.

That the Authority appoint three Members, and identify one of these as
Chairman, to an informal working group for the review of principal officer pay,
as detailed in paragraph 4b of the report.

That the Authority consider appointments to each of the 11 Crime and
Disorder Reduction/Community Safety Partnerships currently operated by the
11 districts and two unitary authorities in Hampshire as set out in paragraph
4c of the report, until the Annual meeting of the Authority in 2017.

That a Member Development Liaison Champion be appointed as set out in
paragraph 4d of the report, until the Annual meeting of the Authority in 2017.

That the Minority Group Spokespersons for the Liberal Democrat Party Group
until the Annual meeting of the Authority in 2017 is confirmed, as set out in
paragraph 4e of the report.

That a Shareholder Representative be appointed by the Authority pursuant to
Article 39 of the Articles of Association of 3SFire Ltd as set out in paragraph
4f of the report, until the Annual meeting of the Authority in 2017.

That the Executive Directors of 3SFire be appointed by the Authority pursuant
to Articles 18 and 19 of the Articles of Association of 3SFire Ltd as set out in
paragraph 4g of the report, until the Annual meeting of the Authority in 2017

That, pursuant to the recommendations of the Standards and Governance

Page 136




Committee from its meeting on 23 March 2017 (detailed at paragraph
4h/appendix 4) three Independent Persons are appointed as set out in the
exempt appendix of the Committee’s report (Item 13). That each Independent
Person is appointed for an initial term of two years and that the allowance for
each Independent Person be set at £100 per annum.

APPENDICES ATTACHED

Appendix 1: Membership and political composition of Hampshire Fire and Rescue
Authority, following local elections and subsequent Hampshire, Portsmouth and
Southampton annual Council meetings in May 2017

Appendix 2: Proposed HFRA Proportionality from June 2017

Appendix 3: Crime and Disorder Reduction Community Safety Partnerships to which
Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority may appoint a representative

Appendix 4: Independent Person to Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority, Report of
the Clerk to the Standards and Governance Committee, 23 March 2017. Note — this
includes an exempt appendix at Item 14 on the agenda.

Contact:

Kevin Greenhough, on behalf of the Clerk to the Authority,
kevin.greenhough@hants.gov.uk

Page 137



mailto:kevin.greenhough@hants.gov.uk

Appendix 1:

Membership and political composition of Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority,
following local elections and subsequent Hampshire, Portsmouth and Southampton
annual Council meetings in May 2017:

Councillor: Political Party/Group Appointing Authority

Chris Carter Conservative Hampshire County Council
Roz Chadd Conservative Hampshire County Council
Liz Fairhurst Conservative Hampshire County Council
Jonathan Glen Conservative Hampshire County Council
Sharon Mintoff Labour Southampton City Council

Roger Price

Liberal Democrat

Hampshire County Council

David Simpson

Liberal Democrat

Hampshire County Council

Luke Stubbs Conservative Portsmouth City Council
Michael Thierry Conservative Hampshire County Council
Rhydian Vaughan Conservative Hampshire County Council

Page 138




Appendix 2

Proposed HFRA Proportionality from June 2017:

Conservatives | Lib dem Labour Seats

Members: 7 2 1
Standards &

Governance 4 1 1
Total 4 1 1
Entitlement 4.2 1.2 0.6
Rounded 4 1 1
Balance 0 0 0

Page 139




Appendix 3

Crime and Disorder Reduction Community Safety Partnerships to which Hampshire Fire and
Rescue Authority may appoint a representative:

Basingtoke, Hart and Rushmoor (Safer North
Hampshire)

Eastleigh

East Hampshire

Fareham

Gosport

Havant

New Forest

Portsmouth

Southampton

Test Valley

Winchester

Page 140



Appendix 4

Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority
Standards and Governance Committee

23 March 2017
Independent Person to Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority

Report of the Clerk

Contact: Kevin Greenhough, kevin.greenhough@hants.gov.uk
Telephone: 01962 847381

1

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

Summary

The provisions of the Localism Act 2011 require that the Authority
appoint an Independent Person or Persons whose view must be sought
before reaching a decision following investigation of an allegation of a
breach of the Code of Conduct. The current holder of this position was
appointed for a four year term in June 2013 and therefore a new
appointment will be required.

The Standards and Governance Committee has been delegated
authority to progress such processes as may be required for the
recruitment of an Independent Person or Persons in order to make a
recommendation for an appointment to the Full Authority. This report
sets out proposals to take such a process forward.

Recommendations

That the Standards and Governance Committee acknowledge progress
made in pursuing shared recruitment for Independent Person(s) with
Winchester City Council.

That the Standards and Governance Committee RECOMMEND to
Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority:

a. the appointment of three Independent Persons, recommended by
the joint selection panel, as detailed in Appendix 1 of the report.

b. that such appointments be for an initial term of two years, with the
option for this to be extended by the Authority to a maximum of four
years from the date of appointment.

c. that the allowance for each Independent Person be set at £100 per
annum.

Page 141



mailto:kevin.greenhough@hants.gov.uk

Appendix 4

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

Background

The Localism Act 2011 introduced a number of changes to the arena of
local government “Standards”. Amongst these was the creation of the
position of “Independent Person” to each Authority.

The role of the Independent Person is to provide a view which must be
taken into account before an Authority reaches a decision following
investigation of an allegation of a breach of the Code of Conduct by a
Member. The Independent Person is also available to give their view to
a Member of the Authority about whom a complaint has been made.

The current incumbent of the position for Hampshire Fire and Rescue
Authority (Michael Cronin) was appointed in June 2013 for the
maximum four year term. In this time period, there has only been one
complaint made against a Member of the Authority and this did not
result in an investigation.

In accordance with the agreement of the Full Authority, an allowance of
£500 per annum is currently payable for the role of Independent
Person.

In September 2016, the Fire Authority authorised the Standards and
Governance Committee:

‘to undertake all necessary processes for the recruitment of an
Independent Person(s), including the establishment of a Member
selection panel as required, and in so doing to explore the option of
sharing Independent Person provision with other local Authorities. To
make a recommendation for appointment and any allowance to the
Authority to take effect from June 2017.”

Shared Independent Person Provision

On 14 September 2016, the Standards and Governance Committee
received a report regarding the options for the future recruitment of
Independent Person(s). The low historic level of complaints against
Members of the Fire Authority and consequently the low level of
anticipated demand on any Independent Person was noted. The
potential to save money through reduced allowance payments and to
increase capacity and resilience through the appointment of multiple
Independent Persons was also taken into account. It was agreed to:

“delegate authority to the Clerk, in consultation with the Chairman of
the Committee to explore opportunities for shared Independent Person
provision with other relevant local authorities. Should a suitable
opportunity arise, for the Clerk, in consultation with the Chairman, to
take necessary actions with regards to joint advertising and facilitating

Page 142



Appendix 4

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Member involvement in selection, to recruit Independent Person(s)
from June 2017 for appointment at a meeting of the Full Authority.”

The legislation relating to the recruitment of an Independent Person
does not preclude shared arrangements. However there are a number
of criteria, in particular the requirement that a candidate applies “to fill
the vacancy to the Authority” which mean that shared arrangements
are only possible if they are done on the basis of joint advertising and
recruitment. Any joint recruitment still requires formal appointment to
the role by the Full Fire Authority.

Winchester City Council was identified by the Clerk, in consultation with
the Chairman of the Standards and Governance Committee, as being
in a suitable position to join the Fire Authority in a shared recruitment
exercise. On 7 December 2016, the Standards and Governance
Committee received a report updating them on this position and
supported the direction of travel.

As indicated in the December report, a shared advert and single
application process was prepared and publicised. A joint selection
panel (comprising Members from the City Council and the Fire
Authority) met on 21 March 2017 to consider the applications and make
recommendations for appointment to both Authorities. It is proposed
that the Standards and Governance Committee acknowledge the
progress that has been made with regard to this process and make a
recommendation for appointment to the Full Authority.

The maximum term for an Independent Person, as set out in
legislation, is for four years. Independent Persons may be re-appointed
for further terms of office following a new recruitment process. It is
proposed that Independent Persons are initially appointed for a two
year period, with an option for this to be extended to the four year
maximum. This approach mirrors that being proposed to Winchester
City Council.

An opportunity of shared recruitment is to reduce cost to Hampshire
Fire and Rescue Authority. This may primarily be achieved through a
reduction in the level of allowance payable to the Independent
Person(s) appointed by the Fire Authority. The nature of shared
recruitment would enable each Authority to reduce their respective
allowance, without reducing pecuniary recognition for the role of
Independent Person. The allowance payable to the Independent
Person(s) will be agreed by the Full Authority at the time of
appointment. In December 2016, the Standards and Governance
Committee agreed an indicative allowance of £100 per annum for each
Independent Person and the role was advertised on this basis. It is
therefore proposed that this allowance be recommended to the Full
Authority.

Page 143



Appendix 4

6 Equality Impact Assessment

6.1  The proposals in this report are considered compatible with the
provisions of the equality and human rights legislation.

7 Section 100 D — Local Government Act 1972 — background
documents

7.1 The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report,
or an important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a
material extent in the preparation of this report

n/a

NB the list excludes published works and documents which disclose
exempt or confidential information as defined in the Act.

Page 144



Agenda Item 10

Purpose: Decision

Date 13 JUNE 2017 FIRE AND
. o . RESCUE
Title Chief Officer Recruitment AUTHORITY

Report of the Clerk

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1. This report notes the Chief Officer's resignation, which will take effect on 31
December 2017. It also proposes that a Member Working Group is established
to review and make recommendations to the Authority on an appropriate
strategy and processes for recruiting a new Chief Officer, taking full account of
the national and local context within which the Authority is operating.

BACKGROUND

2. The Chief Officer, Dave Curry, has formally given his contractual notice of his
retirement which will take effect on 31 December 2017.

3. Dave Curry is currently the Chief Officer of HFRS and also IoWFRS, pursuant
to the Delivering Differently in Partnership (“DDIP”) agreement.

4. HFRS and IoWFRS will need a Chief Officer to lead each service from January
2018 onwards. In light of the complex national and local context within which
both fire services are operating, it is important for the Authority to make properly
considered and informed decisions about the strategy to recruit a new Chief
Officer and the basis on which any appointment will be made.

5. In order to ensure that the Authority is able to properly explore and consider all
relevant issues and devise a strategy and process that meets both HFRA and
loW Council's constitutional requirements, it is recommended that a Member
Working Group is set up. The Working Group will include an appropriate
representative from the loW Council and will undertake a rapid consideration of
all relevant issues with a view to making recommendations back to the
Authority’s July 2017 meeting about the recruitment strategy, process and basis
on which the appointment of a new Chief Officer should be made. In light of the
tight timescales involved, a potential date for the Member Working Group to
meet has been identified as 30 June 2017.

6. Proposed terms of reference for the Member Working Group are set out at
Appendix 1. It is proposed that 5 members of HFRA are appointed to the
Working Group, as per the Terms of Reference and that one of those members
is appointed as Chairman of the Working Group. It is also proposed that a
Member of the loW Council is invited to join the Working Group.

SUPPORTING OUR SERVICE PLAN AND PRIORITIES

Page 145



7.

Recruiting a Chief Officer with the right skills to lead the Service through a
period of change over the next two to five years is vital in order to support the
Service Plan and Safer, Stronger priorities.

CONSULTATION

8.

10.

It is recommended that the Member Working Group consult the loW Council
with a view to determining appropriate involvement of the loW Council in the
process as a stakeholder and to ensure any appointment process meets their
constitutional requirements. Inviting a Member of the loW Council to participate
in the Working Group will assist with this consultation.

The Member Working Group will also wish to identify other key stakeholders
and consider appropriate consultation, as per the proposed Terms of
Reference.

Public consultation is not required, as this is an internal employment matter.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

11.

12.

The Member Working Group will not have a budget, and will not be a decision
making body. However, it will be supported by officers from within existing
budgets, as far as is reasonable.

The Member Working Group will explore and identify the financial impact of its
proposed recruitment strategy/process, including any external costs such as
recruitment consultants’ fees.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

13.

Any recruitment strategy and process recommended by the Member Working
Group will need to meet the Authority’s statutory equality obligations. Decision
making must be in accordance with the constitution and other legal
requirements. Legal advice will be given to the Member Working Group as
required in order to inform its recommendations and the Authority’s decision.

PEOPLE IMPACT ASSESSMENT

14.

The proposals in this report are compatible with the provisions of equality and
human rights legislation.

Page 146



RISK ANALYSIS

15.

16.

The risks of not establishing a Member Working Group are that the contextual
factors that are relevant to a Chief Officer recruitment strategy and process will
not be properly considered, leading to a decision or decisions which may be
open to challenge or which will otherwise adversely affect the Authority.

The timescales for successfully appointing a new Chief Officer who can take up
post with effect from 1 January 2018 are tight. There is a risk that the Member
Working Group will be unable to complete its work in time to report back to the
Authority’s July meeting causing delay. To mitigate this risk, Officers have
earmarked the 30 June 2017 as a possible date for the Working Group to meet
and will provide support to enable a swift conclusion of the Working Group’s
investigation.

CONCLUSION

17.

For the reasons set out in this report it is recommended that a Working Group is
established.

RECOMMENDATION

18.

19.

20.

21.

That the Authority notes the Chief Officer’s resignation which will take effect on
31 December 2017; and

That the Authority agrees to set up and appoint to a Member Working Group on
the basis set out in the proposed Terms of Reference at Appendix 1; and

That the Authority appoints one Member of the Working Group to act as its
Chairman; and

That authority is delegated to the Clerk to the Authority to invite the loW Council
to nominate a Member of the loW Council to join the Working Group.

APPENDICES ATTACHED

22.

Appendix 1 — Proposed Terms of Reference for the Member Working Group

BACKGROUND PAPERS

23.

None

Contact:

Paul Hodgson, Deputy Head of Legal Services, 01962 832428

Page 147




Appendix 1

Proposed Terms of Reference for Member Working Group
1. Background

The Chief Officer, Dave Curry has given notice of his resignation, which will
take effect on 31 December 2017. Dave Curry is currently the Chief Officer
for HFRA and also the IoW FRS, pursuant to the Delivering Differently in
Partnership (“DDIP”) agreement. In light of the complex external context (both
nationally and locally) within which HFRA is operating, the Authority needs to
properly investigate and consider how best to deal with the Chief Officer
vacancy that will arise at the end of 2017.

2. Objectives and Scope

The Working Group shall undertake a review of the national and local context,
including national policy direction, the DDIP partnership with the Isle of Wight
Council, the future direction of HFRA and constitutional and governance
requirements, in order to formulate recommendations to the Authority’s July
2017 meeting for an appropriate strategy and associated processes for the
appointment of a new Chief Officer.

3. Deliverables and Timescales
The Working Group shall meet as required. Noting the need for this matter to
be progressed as swiftly as possible, a suggested meeting date of 30 June

2017 have been identified.

The Working Group does not have a budget but will be supported by officers
within existing budgets to reasonable limits.

The Working Group is not a decision making body and the outcomes of its
review/recommendations will be reported to the meeting of the Authority in
July 2017 for a decision.

4. Membership, Roles and Responsibilities
The Working Group membership need not be determined on a strictly
proportionate basis and therefore is to be cross-party. The Authority will wish
to take into account the views of the constituent authorities of HFRA and the

loW Council and therefore the following membership is suggested:

5 members of HFRA including:

Page 148



3 Conservative members,
1 Liberal Democrat Member’
1 Labour member,

to include at least one member from each constituent authority,
plus 1 member to be invited from the Isle of Wight Council.

The Chairman of the Working Group is to be appointed by the Authority from
the HFRA members.

Part of the Working Group’s role shall be to engage with the loW Council as a
key stakeholder to ensure that the recommended strategy/processes are
supported by the loW Council and are in accordance with HFRA’s
constitutional requirements and any applicable constitutional requirements of
loW Council.

The Chairman of the Authority may attend Working Group meetings as an
observer.

Officer support to be provided as required but likely to include:

Jenny Lewis — Director of HR

Andrew Blakesley — Head of Resourcing

Becky Leigh — Directorate Support Manager

Kevin Greenhough and Paul Hodgson - Legal and Democratic Services

. Stakeholders

Fire Authority Members

loW Council Members

The Police and Crime Commissioner for Hampshire

Such other Stakeholders as the Working Group shall determine

Page 149



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11

Purpose: Decision

HAMPSHIRE
13 JUNE 2017 FIRE AND
RESCUE
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2016-17 AUTHORITY

Report of Chief Officer

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.  Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority publishes its Annual Governance
Statement each year. It is presented to Members of the Fire Authority for
consideration and approval. Once approved the statement must be signed by
the Chairman of the Authority and the Chief Officer. It forms part of the Annual
Statement of Accounts.

2. The Statement is a statutory requirement of the Accounts and Audit Regulations
2015 that is produced by every Local Authority following a review of the existing
governance arrangements against guidance. It includes an action plan to
address governance areas for improvement.

3. The Annual Governance Statement for 2016/17 is attached in appendix 1 for
Members’ comment and consideration. The actions for further improvement are
detailed in section 6 and an update on progress against actions from the year
2015/16 is in section 7.

BACKGROUND

4. Guidance on the production of the Annual Governance Statement is produced
by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the
Society of Local Authority Executives and Senior Managers (SOLACE). This
guidance was updated in 2016 in a publication called Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government. Our governance arrangements have been
reviewed in accordance with this for the Statement to be produced.

5. The guidance sets out the following core principles that form the basis on which
effective governance should be built:

e Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical
values and respecting the rule of law

e Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

¢ Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and
environmental benefits

e Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of
the intended outcomes

e Developing the entity’s capacity including the capability of its leadership
and the individuals within it

¢ Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and
strong public financial management

¢ Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to
deliver effective accountability

Page 151



OUTCOMES OF THE REVIEW

6. As a result of the review, the actions we plan to take to improve governance
arrangements during 2017/18 are detailed in paragraph 6 and the
improvements we have made since the last review in 2016 are in paragraph 7.

SUPPORTING OUR SERVICE PLAN AND PRIORITIES

7. In reviewing our existing governance arrangements and identifying areas to be
improved within the next financial year, Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority
will remain accountable for making Hampshire a safer place to live and work
and the Service will continue to fulfil its mission of making Hampshire safer.

CONSULTATION

8. Finance and Legal advice and input has been sought during the preparation of
the Statement. Members of Service Management Team have been consulted.
Our Internal Auditors have been provided with a draft copy, and the Service’s
Risk and Assurance Board has signed off the work.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

9. There are no financial implications of the Statement itself. The action plan will
be implemented within the existing resources within the Service.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

10. The Annual Governance Statement is a statutory requirement of the Fire
Authority.

PEOPLE IMPACT ASSESSMENT

11. The proposals in this report are considered compatible with the provisions of
equality and human rights legislation.

RISK ANALYSIS

12. The process of producing the Annual Governance Statement involves reviewing
the effectiveness of a wide range of controls and measures that are indicators
of the effectiveness of the Authority’s framework for good corporate
governance. This process therefore contributes to the Authority’s risk
management regime.

13. Failure to provide the statement would lead to a qualified opinion by our
external auditors with inevitable damage to the Authority’s reputation

Page 152



RECOMMENDATION

14. That the Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 as set out in Appendix 1 is
approved by Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority for inclusion into the
Statement of Accounts.

APPENDICES ATTACHED

15. Appendix 1 — Annual Governance Statement for Hampshire Fire and Rescue

BACKGROUND PAPERS

16. Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework — 2016 Edition
CIPFA and SOLACE

Contact: Nicki Whitehouse, Head of Knowledge Management,
nicki.whitehouse@hantsfire.gov.uk, telephone: 07918 887541

Page 153



mailto:nicki.whitehouse@hantsfire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

2016/2017

FOR

HAMPSHIRE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY

Page 155



Annual Governance Statement for Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority
1. Scope of Responsibility
Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority is responsible for ensuring that:
¢ its business is conducted in accordance with the law and to proper

standards;

e public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used
economically, efficiently and effectively;

e pursuant to the Local Government Act 1999 it secures continuous
improvements in the way in which its functions are exercised, having

regard to a combination of efficiency, effectiveness and economy; and

¢ there is a sound system of internal control which facilitates the effective
exercise of the Fire Authority’s functions and which include arrangements

for the management of risk.

This Annual Governance Statement explains how the Authority meets with
the requirements of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015,

and complies with the principles contained in the Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government Framework in 2016-2017.

2. The purpose of Corporate Governance

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and

cultures and values, by which the Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service is

directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to,
engages with, and leads the community. It enables the Fire Authority to

monitor the achievement of its priorities and to consider whether they have

led to the delivery of appropriate, cost effective and efficient services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of the framework and is
designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of

failure to achieve its aims and objectives and can therefore only provide

reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of

internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and

prioritise the risk to the achievement of the Authority’s priorities. It evaluates
the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be
realised, in order to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The governance framework was in place at Hampshire Fire and Rescue
Authority for the year ending 31 March 2017 and up to the date of approval

of the Statement of Accounts.

Page 156



3.1

3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.1.4

3.1.5

3.1.6

3.1.7

3.2
3.2.1

Core Principles of good governance

Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical
values, and respecting the rule of law

The Fire Authority took a proactive approach in reviewing its governance
arrangements during 2015/16. The aim was to ensure the Authority was in
the best position to continue to lead Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service in
delivering excellent quality services to the residents of Hampshire whilst
remaining resilient and responsive to challenges in the future. The new
shaped Authority will comprise 10 members. The Police and Crime
Commissioner attends Authority meetings and has the ability to speak on
items on the agenda. The aim of the new arrangements is to have a strategic
and business focus with Member engagement and scrutiny across the
business of the Authority.

The key policies that set out the scope of authority for Members and that
delegated to staff is detailed in the Scheme of Delegation, Contract Standing
Orders and Financial Regulations. Both Members and staff are aware of
their responsibilities within these policies. In particular, the Scheme of
Delegation and Financial Regulations have been reviewed and will be
presented to the Fire Authority at their meeting in June 2017.

There are a well-established set of core values which Members and staff are
expected to observe and promote. These values are underpinned by a range
of policies and procedures including Codes of Conduct for Members and for
staff, registers of interests and gifts and hospitality.

The Fire Authority is committed to the highest ethical standards. A Code of
Corporate Governance has been included in the refreshed Fire Authority
Constitution to be considered in June 2017. The Code of Corporate
Governance demonstrates a comprehensive commitment on the part of the
Fire Authority to accountability, integrity, ethical values and the rule of law.

Members of Service Management Team have the relevant professional
external networks and expertise to identify the impacts of new legislation.
Legal advice is also provided to ensure the Authority continues to comply
with legislation and regulation.

The Service has reviewed its internal governance structures and set up
several internal boards to oversee key areas such as performance, risk
management and assurance, culture, inclusion and diversity (people) and
physical assets (vehicles and estates). These boards provide extra scrutiny
on behalf of the Service Management Team, to which they report on a
regular basis.

A Policy Framework has been developed and approved and a newly formed
Policy Group is overseeing a review and embedding of all Service policies
which will be completed by December 2017.

Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement.

The Authority’s Service Plan 2015-2020 sets out our aim to be the best fire
and rescue service in the country and vision to work smarter, be more
efficient, and to make life safer for everyone in Hampshire. It contains clear
strategic Priorities. The Plan is on the Authority’s website and available to
stakeholders in electronic and paper formats.

Page 157



3.2.2

3.2.3

3.2.4

3.2.5

3.2.6

3.3

3.3.1

3.3.2

3.3.3

The Authority operates in an open and transparent way. It complies with the
Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014. The Authority’s
meetings are open to the public, and its papers and decisions are available
through our website (save for individual items of a sensitive nature properly
considered in confidential session). In addition, Fire Authority meetings are
live-streamed to enable staff and the public better access to view decision
making.

Clear guidance and protocols on decision making, effective arrangements for
the approval of exempt reports and a revised template for reports and
decisions ensures that the Fire Authority takes decisions in public when
appropriate and after full consideration of relevant information.

The Authority enjoys a constructive relationship with the Trade Unions and
Associations representing staff groups within the Service, through which
meaningful consultation and negotiation on service issues takes place.

Public consultation to listen to stakeholders and inform decision making is
undertaken. Extensive consultation was undertaken during the Authority’s
recent Risk Review which was the most comprehensive integrated risk
review the Service has carried out in recent years. The consultation process
for the proposals enabled our staff, the public and other stakeholders to have
their say on how their fire and rescue service should operate in the future.
The process was quality assessed by the Consultation Institute and found to
have conformed to best practice.

Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority has a long history of collaborative
working with partner agencies. In particular, Blue Light Collaboration is
governed by an Executive Board consisting of the chief officers of
Hampshire Constabulary, South Central Ambulance Service and Hampshire
Fire and Rescue Service. The Board sets the strategic direction and
oversees collaboration projects. The Chief Officer reports progress to the
Fire Authority on a periodic basis.

Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and
environmental benefits.

Delivery of fire and rescue services and the associated community safety
activity remains the Authority’s core activity.

Our aim, vision and priorities are set out in the Hampshire Fire and Rescue
Service Plan 2015-2020. The Plan sets out — for the benefit of our
stakeholders — how the Authority:

e Assesses the risks
¢ Responds to changes and challenges, and
e Sets priorities and targets for improvement

Our priorities and aims are clear and arranged under the themes of ‘Making
life safer’ and ‘Making our Service stronger’ — our ‘Safer, Stronger’ aims.
These focus our resources to the relevant community risks, and our
organisational improvements to support our service delivery to ensure that
we are efficient and effective. This Plan is underpinned by detailed
departmental plans and our corporate Portfolio of projects. Progress against
these plans is monitored through regular performance updates to the Service
Management Team, Safer Stronger Board and the Fire Authority.

Page 158



3.34

3.4

3.4.1

3.4.2

3.4.3

3.5

3.5.1

3.5.2

3.5.3

3.54

People Impact Assessments (PIAs) are used to assess the impact of
projects to inform decision making. These include assessments of equality,
health and safety, environmental and financial impacts.

Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement
of the intended outcomes.

Clear guidance and protocols for decision making and the involvement of
legal and finance officers in all significant decisions of the Authority ensures
that they are only made after relevant options have been weighed and
associated risks assessed.

The budget setting process is well established and prioritises budgets and
spending to achieve intended outcomes. In recent years, the budget setting
process has focussed on the achievement of savings to meet reductions in
Government grant funding. However it is clear that it is focussed to deliver
the Authority’s aims and priorities which is underpinned by improvement.

Risks associated with the achievement of intended outcomes are detailed in
Risk Registers held at strategic, departmental and project level. These
evaluate the effectiveness of existing control measures as well as identifying
proposed mitigation.

Developing the entity’s capacity including the capability of its
leadership and the individuals within it

The relationship between Members and Officers is established on a
professional culture of mutual respect, trust and co-operation. Both uphold
the principles set out in the Leadership Framework.

Members receive good induction training and attend regular ‘awareness’
sessions on current topics which are delivered during the year. The topics
are decided by Members and officers to ensure that decision-making is
based on knowledge and understanding of the issues involved. Regular
bulletins (Members’ Updates) are issued and Members receive copies of key
internal staff communications. The Fire Authority has a Member
Development champion who supports and oversees the development of
Members in a number of ways, such as internal and external briefings and
courses. The Fire Authority has achieved the South East Employers Charter
for Member Development.

The Authority, its committees and the Chief Officer have access to a full
range of professional advisers to enable them to carry out their functions
effectively and in compliance with statutory requirements. Some legal, ICT
and democratic services are provided through contracts for services (service
level agreements) with Hampshire County Council. The Shared Service
partnership with Hampshire County Council and Hampshire Constabulary
provides a wide pool of professional advice for areas such as HR, finance
and procurement.

The Service has a People Strategy which describes what is required of our
people and provides clarity about what we will achieve in order to meet the
changing needs and expectations of society and future opportunities for the
Service.

RBage 159



3.5.5

3.5.6

3.5.7

3.6

3.6.1

3.6.2

3.6.3

3.6.4

3.6.5

3.6.6

3.6.7

Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service regularly reviews the shape of its
workforce against the needs of the Service in the context of its capacity and
capability requirements. This then informs a range of strategies, for example;
recruitment, retention and people development in order to provide effective
leadership and deploy appropriate resources to meet the needs of the
Service.

A refreshed Performance Development Review Process provides a
framework for staff and managers to meet to discuss and set goals. The
system now focuses on individual contribution within a team approach with
effective performance conversations at all levels. This is supported by the
development of a culture of on-going coaching style conversations which
focus upon high performance in all aspects of our work. Staff are held
accountable for their own performance and how this contributes to the
overall performance of their team. They are encouraged to use the range of
learning opportunities that are available across the Service.

Leadership and change management development programmes have been
delivered to all levels of management.

Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and
strong public financial management.

The Authority operates a Risk Management Strategy, with oversight of the
arrangements provided by the Risk and Assurance Board, which reports to
Service Management Team and the Fire Authority.

Effective performance management is in place to measure progress against
aims and priorities to prompt remedial action where appropriate. Our newly
formed Service Performance Board adds improved scrutiny of the
performance management process. The Authority has a framework for
regularly monitoring its performance with timely and relevant information.
Both the Service Management Team and the Fire Authority review our key
performance indicators on a regular basis.

We compare our performance to that of other fire and rescue services; for
example, we make use of national benchmark information. This continues to
show that we are performing well when compared with other fire and rescue
services.

The Internal Audit Plan 2016 — 17 was developed to operate at a strategic
level providing a value-adding, and proportionate level of assurance aligned
to the Authority’s key risks and objectives. This includes a regular review of
the Service’s risk management processes.

The internal audit plan incorporates provision for both proactive and reactive
counter fraud and corruption work, which is underpinned by an Anti-Fraud
and Corruption Strategy and Policy.

The delivery of the internal audit plan enables the Chief Internal Auditor to
provide an annual report providing an opinion on the overall adequacy and
effectiveness of the framework of governance, risk management and control
which is reported to the Service Management Team and the Fire Authority.

The Standards and Governance Committee has a clear ‘Terms of
Reference’ providing an effective source of scrutiny, challenge and
assurance regarding the arrangements for managing risk and maintaining an
effective control environment.

Page 160



3.6.8

3.6.9

3.6.10

3.6.11

3.6.12

3.6.13

3.7

3.7.1

3.7.2

3.7.3

3.7.4

The Authority has strong financial management arrangements at both the
strategic and operational level and consistently obtains unqualified opinions
for its annual accounts and value for money assessments. The Section 151
Officer is the Chief Finance Officer and all formal significant financial
decision making has the benefit of advice and review from this officer or his
team.

Financial management in key risk areas across the Service focusses on
activity and performance management alongside the budget management
processes and the financial management framework throughout the Service
is appropriately advised and supported by the Finance team.

The Authority has a medium term financial plan to inform its corporate
planning. This identifies the likely levels of funding available to the Authority,
the cost of its current spending plans and the shortfall we are anticipating in
future years. It also provides information on the level and use of reserves in
transforming and improving the Service. It has established a clear Financial
Plan to 2021 with the specific purpose of closing our predicted and estimated
funding gap of £1.75m. The medium term financial plan is overseen and
monitored by our Safer Stronger Board and regularly reported to the Fire
Authority.

The Authority has submitted an Efficiency Plan to the Home Office setting
out its performance and plans for sustainable financial stewardship.

Financial planning and management is fully integrated with, and driven by,
the corporate planning and monitoring processes set out above. This
includes processes for the forward planning of expenditure, consultation on
budget proposals, setting and monitoring income and budgets, and the
completion of final accounts.

The Treasury Management Strategy is reviewed regularly and approved by
the Fire Authority annually with the budget.

Implementing good practices in transparency reporting and audit to
deliver effective accountability.

The ‘Internal Audit Charter’ is presented annually for approval by the
Standards and Governance Committee. The purpose of the Internal Audit
Charter is to formally define its purpose, authority, and responsibility. The
Chief Internal Auditor has direct access to elected Members of the Authority
and those who serve on the Standards and Governance Committee.

The on-going work of internal audit is presented through a quarterly progress
report to the Standards and Governance Committee providing an overview
of Service performance; delivery against the plan; and progress made by the
Service in the implementation of management actions agreed to mitigate
risks identified through internal audit work.

Where appropriate, internal audit will gain assurances from third parties to
contribute to their overall assurance opinion.

Representatives of External Audit routinely attend Standards and
Governance Committee meetings and present External Audit reports. Any
recommendations for corrective action detailed within Internal or External
Audit reports are highlighted to Members.

Page 161



3.7.5

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

5.1

5.2

Financial reporting complies with relevant statute, codes and good practice
guidance. Financial and performance information are reported consistently
throughout the year. Where relevant and appropriate, performance
comparisons are made to other organisations.

Obtain assurances on the effectiveness of key controls

Key controls relating to risks, internal control (including financial
management), and governance processes are identified by senior managers
as part of the governance framework and recorded on an annual return
(assurance statement). Risks are included in risk registers at corporate and
departmental level. Internal Audit, as part of its planned review of internal
controls regularly evaluates the key controls to determine their adequacy
and also carries out tests to confirm the level of compliance. An audit opinion
on effectiveness is provided to management, and any actions for
improvement to be agreed.

Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority prides itself on being a professional
learning organisation that actively seeks challenge and review.

In November 2015, the Authority underwent the Local Government
Association’s (LGA) Fire Peer Challenge, as part of sector led improvement.
In January 2017, the Peer Challenge team was invited back to the Service to
review our progress in implementing the improvements to which it had
committed.

Other external reviews include the following:

the ISO 270001 accreditation we hold for information security.

a Home Office review of arrangements for our Public Sector Network.
the LGA was used to help with the HFRA Governance Review.
Hampshire Safeguarding Board’s review of our safeguarding
arrangements.

Evaluate assurances and identify gaps in control/assurance

One of the key elements of the Corporate Governance regime and the
production of the Annual Governance Statement is the methodology applied
to obtain the necessary assurance. This has included:

e a self-assessment assurance statement being sent every year to
members of Service Management Team.

e consultation with other relevant officers throughout the Service.
The assurance statements cover a range of corporate governance and

performance issues and they refer to the existence, knowledge and
application within departments of governance policies generally.

Page 162



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

Action plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the system of corporate governance

The Service’s Policy Group will ensure that all Service policies are up to date
reviewed, and then embedded where appropriate by the end of the calendar
year.

The Service Risk and Assurance Board is currently overseeing the review of
Risk Registers and framework.

The Service will review its consultation strategy.

Preparation will be made to prepare the Service for the requirements under
the new General Data Protection Regulations which come into force in May
2018.

The Service is currently reviewing its partnership policy and framework.

We will review the framework and arrangements that govern our People
Impact Assessments.

The Service is reviewing its procurement practices and Contracts Register to
ensure they are effective and ensure value for money.

There is a robust mechanism to ensure that an appropriate action plan
is agreed to address identified control weaknesses and is implemented
and monitored.

In response to the Action Plan identified in the 2015-2016 Annual
Governance Statement:-

The Authority has concluded a review of its governance arrangements,
including a review of the terms of reference of all committees of the
Authority. The revisions have been included in a refreshed Constitution for
the Fire Authority to be considered by Members at its meeting in June 2017.

The Authority has reviewed the Scheme of Delegation to officers to ensure
that it remains effective. This is included in the Fire Authority’s refreshed
Constitution to be considered by Members in June 2017.

We have used external expertise to review the maturity of our Project
Management Office function and benchmarked with our partners, particularly
Hampshire Constabulary. We continue to improve the function to ensure that
the form and structure of programme and project management is effective
and efficient.

Having reviewed our internal governance arrangements, we have
established several internal boards that report to Service Management
Team. These provide added scrutiny to further improve how we make
decisions and plan within the Service.

We continue to ensure our people are equipped with the appropriate
knowledge, skills and equipment to have a culture that is focussed on high

Rage 163



performance. This will be further enabled through the Performance
Management and Assurance project taking place from 2016 — 2018.

7.6 We remain committed to embedding our engagement principles (time,
space, conditions to think, talk, listen, include, and do) into the work that we
do to include, involve, and consult with our stakeholders. The Service Plan
and the Pathway to our cultural vision continue to focus our efforts.
Responsibility to meaningfully engage with key groups of people is
integrated into our programme and project management process. This is
now overseen by our newly formed People Committee.

7.7 As part of the planned approach to ensuring that in the medium term,
Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority has a sustainable and balanced
budget, a phase 3 savings programme is already in development which is
expected to close the remaining forecast budget gap of £1.75m by 2020/21.

7.8 We have made some improvements to the technical relationship between
our availability and payroll systems and continue to optimise these.

7.9 We have implemented most the recommendations from the 2015 Peer
Review (some are longer term). In January 2017, we invited the LGA Peer
Review team visited to follow up on our progress. This team reached a
positive conclusion.

7.10  We have developed the new Service Performance Board to improve the
oversight of performance of Service activity. This Board focusses on
performance on behalf of the Service Management Team to ensure that
appropriate measures are in place to enable effective performance
monitoring and that reports are relevant and timely.

Declaration

We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the
effectiveness of the governance framework and that the arrangements continue to
be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the governance framework. The
areas already addressed and those to be specifically addressed with new actions
planned are set out in this Statement.

We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to
further enhance our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps
will address the need for improvements that were identified in our review of
effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation as part of our next
annual review.

Signed: Signed:
Chief Officer Chairman
Date: Date:

Pagg 164



Purpose: To note

Agenda Item 12

)"izz; HAMPSHIRE
“ FIRE AND
RESCUE

@ N
L 2

|

| -
' =
U &3

v QP O
Date 13 JUNE 2017 ‘,}m\.\\& AUTHORITY
Title Fire Governance Options Appraisal Project
Report of Chief Officer

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.

This report provides information relating to a collaborative approach to
consider governance arrangements of the Fire and Rescue Authority in
Hampshire. This is enabled by a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) that
has been signed between Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority (HFRA), the
Isle of Wight Fire and Rescue Authority (IWFRA) and the Office of the Police
and Crime Commissioner (OPCC) to facilitate a Fire Governance Options
Appraisal Project between the parties. The MOU has been signed by the
Chief Officer.

The report seeks HFRA support for the approach and the investment of officer
time to help guide the Fire Governance Options Appraisal Project.

BACKGROUND

3.

5.

The Policing and Crime Act 2017 (the Act) received Royal Assent in January
2017 and placed on the statute books from 1 April 2017. Amongst other
aspects, the aims of the Act were to enhance democratic accountability for
Police and Fire and Rescue Services across the Country, improve the
effectiveness and efficiency of Emergency Services through collaboration and
improve public confidence in Policing.

There are three main provisions within the Act that directly affect Fire and
Rescue Services:

o A new duty to consider collaboration where it's in the interests of
efficiency or effectiveness. This is placed upon Police, Fire and
Emergency Ambulance Services.

o The enabling of Police and Crime Commissioners (PCCs) to be
represented on their local Fire and Rescue Authority (FRA) with voting
rights, where the FRA agrees.

o The enabling of PCCs to take responsibility for the governance of fire
and rescue services where a local case is made.

HFRS Officers are already working with our blue light partners to build on a
number of collaboration initiatives under the Blue Light Collaboration

Page 165



Programme being led by Assistant Chief Officer, Stew Adamson. The Blue
Light Collaboration Programme will ensure greater collective thinking and
resources to best tackle the challenges we all face and will facilitate a better
understanding of the risk, threat and harm posed in our communities. This
programme of work is predominantly focusing on the operational aspects of all
three blue light services and identifying where collaboration will benefit the
communities we serve. The financial commitment to this work was presented
in the Finance update paper (section 7) presented at the full HFRA meeting in
December 2016. The Blue Light Collaboration Programme does not include
looking at future governance options for the fire and rescue service. Any work
started to investigate future governance options will be carried out separate to
the Blue Light Collaboration Programme through the options appraisal project.

On 20 March 2017, the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) for
Hampshire, Michael Lane, organised a meeting to discuss the new provisions
within the Act relating to the governance of fire and rescue services. The
meeting was attended by the PCC, the Chairman of the HFRA, the Leader of
the Isle of Wight Council, the Chief Officer of Hampshire Fire and Rescue
Service and the Isle of Wight Fire and Rescue Service, the Chief Executive of
the OPCC and the Chief Executive of the Isle of Wight Council. The purpose
of the meeting was to request that all parties work together to explore fire
governance options and that a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) be
drawn up to facilitate an officer led Fire Governance Options Appraisal
Project.

COLLABORATIVE APPROACH

7.

10.

11.

An MOU has been signed by Officers of all three parties; Hampshire Fire and
Rescue Authority, the Isle of Wight Council (IWC) and the Office of the Police
and Crime Commissioner.

The Chief Officer signed this MOU on behalf of HFRA, following consultation
with the Chairman of HFRA.

The Fire Governance Options Appraisal Project will be led by the OPCC in
collaboration with HFRA and IWFRA.

It is the intention to establish a Project Board consisting of the PCC, the
Chairman of the HFRA and the IWFRA portfolio holder on the IWC, supported
by their Chief Officers, to monitor the progress of the Fire Governance
Options Appraisal Project.

The project team aims to complete the options appraisal (in line with the
MOU) for October 2017 and present a report to the Project Board (if
established). A final report will return to HFRA.

CONNECTIONS TO OTHER PIECES OF WORK

12.

The Fire Governance Options Appraisal Project links to the ‘Investigation into
the extension of the current Combined Fire Authority (CFA) to include the

Page 166



IWFRS’. In January 2018, the HFRA and the IWC will make a decision
regarding the current CFA and the possible inclusion of the IWFRS.

SUPPORTING OUR SERVICE PLAN AND PRIORITIES

13. The Fire Governance Options Appraisal Project supports Blue Light
Collaboration within Hampshire and demonstrates that the HFRA are
supportive of the provisions within the Policing and Crime Act 2017.

14. This piece of work also supports our Working with Partners priority which aims
to ensure our partnerships are delivering services across the County that
deliver the best outcomes for the public.

CONSULTATION

15. There is no statutory duty to consult on carrying out a Fire Governance
Options Appraisal.

16. Should the PCC decide to proceed to a full business case to change the
governance arrangements of HFRA, a statutory consultation process will
apply. HFRS Officers will provide input to this process as instructed by the
HFRA.

17.  As mentioned in paragraph 4, the Blue Light Collaboration Programme does
not include looking at future governance options for the fire and rescue
service. Work to investigate future governance options will be carried out
separate to the pre-existing Blue Light Collaboration Programme. The two
pieces of work are very different and are therefore planned to remain
separate.

COLLABORATION

18. The Policing and Crime Act 2017 places a duty on emergency services to
consider collaboration where it is in the interest of effectiveness and
efficiency. The Fire Governance Options Appraisal Project supports that duty
to collaborate.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

19. The Fire Governance Options Appraisal Project will be led and carried out by
the OPCC. The ACO Blue Light Collaboration, Stew Adamson will be the lead
officer and link into the OPCC for this piece of work as may be required to
meet HFRA requirements.

20. There are no financial resource implications for HFRA in carrying out the Fire
Governance Options Appraisal Project.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Page 167



21.

The OPCC will seek legal advice, as required, while they are carrying out the
Fire Governance Options Appraisal Project. HFRA may seek its own legal
advice.

PEOPLE IMPACT ASSESSMENT

22.

A people impact assessment is not required at this stage.

OPTIONS

23.

24.

Option one: Support the approach and the Fire Governance Options Appraisal
Project being led by the OPCC.

The Policing and Crime Act 2017 legislates that emergency services are to
consider collaborative activities where they demonstrate that there will be an
improvement in efficiency and effectiveness. There are powers within the Act
that enable changes to future governance arrangements to occur. One way to
ensure the HFRA are actively engaged with the provisions within the Act is to
support the approach and the Fire Governance Options Appraisal Project. It
also demonstrates that the HFRA is embracing collaboration at a political
level, seeking the best outcomes possible for the public and our communities,
pursuing value for money and will signify a commitment to working
collaboratively with the PCC. It will also provide the ability for Members to
influence and contribute to the development of options linked to the differing
potential governance models.

Option two: Do not support the approach and Fire Governance Options
Appraisal Project being led by the OPCC.

If this option is chosen it could be seen that the HFRA is not actively engaging
with the PCC to seek better outcomes for the public and communities. By not
supporting the approach and the Fire Governance Options Appraisal Project
the HFRA will reduce its ability to contribute to the work and provide direct
input. The HFRA will not have the same opportunity to explore future
governance options and will be isolated from discussions and decisions that
are within the remit of the Project. The Blue Light Collaboration Programme
will continue to be progressed by officers as previously directed by the HFRA.
HFRS will also continue to work with blue light partners on operational
matters.

RISK ANALYSIS

25.

There is a risk that if the HFRA does not support the approach and the Fire
Governance Options Appraisal Project that it could be argued that it is not
properly considering its duty within the Policing and Crime Act 2017. A further
risk of not supporting the approach and the Governance Options Appraisal
Project is that the HFRA will not be able to contribute to exploring options for
future governance and therefore won'’t be involved in any decisions made.

Page 168



26. A fundamental part of the Fire Governance Options Appraisal Project is a risk
analysis. This will be carried out by the OPCC as part of their work.

CONCLUSION

27. The HFRA supporting the Fire Governance Options Appraisal Project
demonstrates a commitment to working with the PCC. By working with the
OPCC to explore future governance options the Authority will be able to
ensure the best outcome for the public and the communities we represent.

RECOMMENDATION

28. That the approach and the Fire Governance Options Appraisal Project be
endorsed by the Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority as explained in option
one.

Contact Point:

Stew Adamson, ACO (Blue Light Collaboration), stew.adamson@hantsfire.gov.uk, 07918
887596.

Page 169



mailto:stew.adamson@hantsfire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 13

AT A MEETING of the HFRA Standards and Governance Committee of
HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL held at Fire HQ, Eastleigh on Thursday, 23rd
March, 2017

Chairman:
a Councillor Robin Mclntosh

p Councillor Geoffrey Hockley a Councillor David Harrison
p Councillor Graham Burgess a Councillor Mark Staplehurst
p Councillor Christopher Carter a Councillor David Fuller

p Councillor Sharon Mintoff

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Councilors Fuller, Harrison, Mclntosh and
Staplehurst.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were mindful that where they believed they had a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest in any matter considered at the meeting they must declare
that interest at the time of the relevant debate and, having regard to the
circumstances described in Part 3, Paragraph 1.5 of the County Council's
Members' Code of Conduct, leave the meeting while the matter was discussed,
save for exercising any right to speak in accordance with Paragraph 1.6 of the
Code. Furthermore Members were mindful that where they believed they had a
Non-Pecuniary interest in a matter being considered at the meeting they
considered whether such interest should be declared, and having regard to Part
5, Paragraph 2 of the Code, considered whether it was appropriate to leave the
meeting whilst the matter was discussed, save for exercising any right to speak
in accordance with the Code.

There were no declarations of interest received for the meeting.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the last meeting held on 7 December 2016 were reviewed and
agreed.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

There were no Chairman’s announcements on this occasion.

DEPUTATIONS

There were no deputations received for the meeting.

Page 171



HAMPSHIRE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN
2016/17

The Committee received a report from the Chief Officer (Item 6 in the Minute
Book) setting out the External Audit plan for 2016/17, and explaining how key
risks were assessed and outlined the planned audit strategy in response to those
risks.

The External Auditor summarised the Plan and highlighted the current financial
statement risks facing the Authority which included the risk of Management
Override which was seen as a common audit risk and was identified and
responded to on every audit engagement.

It was confirmed that the final level of materiality would be reported back when
the final statement of accounts was received for the financial year. Members
were content with the External Audit Plan for 2016/17.

RESOLVED:

That the Committee receives and accepts the External Audit Plan for 2016/17.

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2016/17

The Committee received a report from the Chief Internal Auditor providing an
overview of internal audit work completed in accordance with the approved audit
plan, as well as an overview of the status of ‘live’ reports (Item 7 in the Minute
Book).

The Officer took Members through the report and explained that this was a
regular progress report. Members attention was drawn to Section 4 of the report
which highlighted the status of ‘Live’ reports and reports closed since the last
progress report. Section 7 outlined the rolling work programme and Members
noted that these were all on track.

RESOLVED:

That the Standards and Governance Committee note the progress of internal
audit work for the period ending 28 February 2017.

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER AND ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN
2017/18

The Committee received a report from the Chief Internal Auditor which presented
the proposed annual internal audit plan and the internal audit charter (Item 8 in
the Minute Book).

Members were taken through the report and it was highlighted that the Internal
Audit Charter as detailed in Appendix A of the report met the requirements of the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and was reviewed and approved annually
by the Standards and Governance Committee. Members attention was also

Page 175



10.

drawn to the Internal Audit Plan which was presented at Appendix B of the
report. It was noted that the Plan was risk based and analysed risk management
in relation to Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service as well as Shared Services.

A discussion ensued around recruitment and it was heard that there was an
ongoing review of processes and protocols within recruitment.

RESOLVED:

That the Standards and Governance Committee approves the Internal Audit
Charter for Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority and the internal audit plan for
2017/18.

PROGRESS REPORT ON THE IMPLEMENTATION OF INTERNAL AUDIT
MANAGEMENT ACTIONS

The Committee received a report from the Chief Officer which set out progress
on the implementation of internal audit management actions (Iltem 9 in the
Minute Book).

Members were taken through Appendix 1 of the report which detailed the actions
in progress and those completed since December 2016. The Networked Fire
Control Project and the Partnerships and Associated Contracts in relation to
South Central Ambulance Service were confirmed as outstanding actions.
Members were content with progress made.

RESOLVED:

That the Standards and Governance Committee notes the report and the
progress made towards the implementation of the internal audit management
actions detailed in Appendix 1.

RISK POLICY AND STRATEGY

The Committee received a report from the Chief Officer which set out the
refreshed HFRA Risk Policy and Strategy (Item 10 and Appendix A to Item 10 in
the Minute Book).

The report was outlined and it was heard that whilst no major changes had been
made to the Strategy since it was last reviewed in 2012, refreshing the Strategy
and bringing to the Committee for approval ensured that it remained compliant
with current best practice. It was noted that the introduction of a Risk and
Assurance Board would further improve the internal governance over risk
management.

RESOLVED:

That the Committee approve the refreshed HFRA Risk Policy and Strategy which
is attached in Appendix A of the report.

Page3173



11.

12.

HEALTH AND SAFETY 'STATEMENT OF INTENT'

The Committee received a report from the Chief Officer setting out the Health
and Safety ‘Statement of Intent’ (Item 11 in the Minute Book).

The report was introduced and Members heard that Health and Safety remained
the highest priority, and the Authority had overall responsibility for the health,
safety and welfare of all employees in the Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service
and others who may be affected by their activity.

Members were content with the Health and Safety ‘Statement of Intent’ and
agreed to recommend this to the Full Authority.

RESOLVED:

a) That the Standards and Governance Committee receives the reviewed
Statement of Intent (Attached in Appendix 1).

b) That the Standards and Governance Committee RECOMMEND to the
Full Authority that the Statement of Intent be approved and signed by the
Chairman on behalf of the Authority.

INDEPENDENT PERSONS FOR HFRA

The Committee received a report of the Clerk (Item 12 in the Minute Book)
setting out proposals for the recruitment of an Independent Person or Persons
due to the current four year appointment ending in June 2017. The report was
tabled at the meeting alongside an exempt appendix (Iltem 17 in the Minute Book
refers). .

The officer outlined the background to the recruitment process and it was heard
that a shared recruitment exercise with Winchester City Council had been
undertaken, and a joint selection panel met on the 21 March 2017 to consider
applications and make recommendations for appointment to both Authorities.
The exempt appendix was noted and Members were content to recommend the
appointments as detailed in the exempt appendix to the Full Authority.

RESOLVED:

a) That the Standards and Governance Committee acknowledge progress
made in pursuing shared recruitment for Independent Person(s) with
Winchester City Council.

b) That the Standards and Governance Committee RECOMMEND to
Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority:

i) The appointment of three Independent Persons, recommended by

the joint selection panel, as detailed in Exempt Appendix 1 of the
report.

Page 17‘3{



13.

14.

15.

ii) That such appointments be for an initial term of two years, with the
option for this to be extended by the Authority to a maximum of four
years from the date of the appointment.

iii) That the allowance for each Independent Person be set at £100
per annum.

NEW POLICY - FIREFIGHTERS 2015 PENSIONS DISCRETIONS POLICY

The Committee considered a report from the Chief Financial Officer (Item 13 in
the Minute Book) regarding the Firefighters 2015 Pension Discretions Policy.

The Officer took Members through the report and it was heard that it was a legal
requirement for employers to have a Pensions Discretions Policy for each of the
Schemes offered as well as to publish and review. It was highlighted that
approval was sought to formalise this through the Committee as the Scheme
Manager for the pensions schemes.

In a change to the recommendation detailed in the report in paragraph 2.1, it was
noted that approval was sought for the HFRA’s 2015, 2006 and 1992 Pensions
Discretions Policy. With this amendment, Members agreed the recommendation
as below.

RESOLVED:

That HFRA’s 2015, 2006 and 1992 Pensions Discretion Policy is agreed.

NEW POLICY - RETIRED FIREFIGHTERS RE-EMPLOYMENT, RE-
ENGAGEMENT AND PENSIONS ABATEMENT POLICY

The Committee considered a report from the Chief Financial Officer (Item 14 in
the Minute Book), regarding the Retired Firefighters Re-employment, Re-
engagement and Pensions Abatement Policy.

The officer summarised the proposed policy and it was heard that this would
provide clarity going forward for re-employment and re-engagement of
Firefighters following retirement and address potential significant tax implications
in relation to this. It was noted that re-engagement of retired Firefighters would
need approval from the Chief Officer in consultation with Directors.

Members welcomed the policy and thanked officers for their hard work.
RESOLVED:

That HFRA’s Retired Firefighters Re-employment, Re-engagement and
Pensions Abatement Policy is agreed.

PENSIONABLE ALLOWANCES (ADDITIONAL DUTY/TRAINING)

Page5175



The Committee considered a report of the Chief Financial Officer (Item 15 in the
Minute Book) regarding pensionable allowances in relation to additional duty or
training.

The background to the report was outlined and it was heard that as a result of
the Norman V Cheshire Fire and Rescue Services 2011 legal case, all Fire and
Rescue Authorities had reviewed their local allowances to confirm whether or not
their current pensionable or non-pensionable status should change.

Members were taken through The Blackburne Principles as detailed in
Paragraph 4 of the report, and it was explained that these should be considered
when determining which allowances should be pensionable. Officers highlighted
that they were awaiting further national guidance in relation to Training and
Additional Responsibility Allowances for clarity.

The related exempt appendix (Item 16 in the Minute Book) was noted.
RESOLVED:
The Committee agreed:

a) That 10% Training Allowance for Substantive trainers becomes
pensionable from 1 April 2017. As an exception, current substantive
trainers may apply to have the Training Allowance backdated and treated
as a pensionable emolument to 1 April 2016.

b) That 10% Training Allowance for Temporary promotion trainers becomes
non-pensionable under pension scheme rules under the 2015 pension
scheme.

c) That 10% Training Allowance for Temporary promotion trainers under the
2006 and 1992 pension scheme becomes pensionable from 1 April 2017
but is included as part of the Additional Pensions Benefit (APB)
calculation (to be consistent with the approach taken with RDS payments
last year).

d) All current Additional Responsibility Allowances continue to be paid as
non-pensionable. Any new ARAs developed to be assessed for
pensionable status against the Blackburne Principles.

Chairman,

Page 17%



Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service

Standards and Governance Committee

23 March 2017

Health and safety ‘Statement of Intent’

Report of the Chief Officer

Contact: David Lack, contact: 0791 888 7578

1

1.1

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Summary

The Health and Safety (H&S) ‘Statement of Intent’ is reviewed on an annual basis.
The current statement dated 7 September 2016 illustrates our commitment to H&S
and also includes a personal statement from the CFO. The current statement was
subject to a further review in December 2016 following which it is proposed not to
change it at this time.

Recommendations

That the Standards and Governance Committee receives the reviewed Statement
of Intent (Attached in Appendix 1).

That the Standards and Governance Committee recommend to the Full Authority
that the Statement of Intent be approved and be signed by the Chairman on behalf
of the Authority.

Introduction and background

It is HFRA and Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service’s (HFRS) intent to demonstrate
an ongoing and determined commitment to improving health and safety at work.

We strive to provide and implement a process of continuous improvement to ensure
a safe and healthy working environment.

The Statement of Intent makes clear our full commitment to health and safety. We
will achieve this through the development and implementation of a strong and
robust safety management system. This is designed to meet legal requirements
and reduce the risk exposure of all those affected by our activities as far as
reasonably practicable.

The Authority has overall corporate responsibility for health and safety and the
Chief Fire Officer has operational responsibility. The Health and Safety at Work,
etc, Act 1974 requires an annual review of the Health and Safety Statement of
Intent. For governance purposes, the Health and Safety Statement of Intent is
presented annually to the Service Management Team and the Standards and
Governance committee.

Page 177




41

5.1

6.1

6.2

7.1

8.1

Supporting our corporate aims and objectives

Robust health and safety arrangements support our aim of being the best fire and
rescue service in the country.

People Impact Assessment

The proposals in this report are considered compatible with the provisions of the
equality and human rights legislation.

Risk Analysis

It is legally incumbent on HFRA and HFRS to ensure the health, safety and welfare
of its staff and that it complies with all of the applicable health and safety legislation
and regulations. The maintenance of a positive health and safety culture throughout
the Service must be key in all activities and supported at all levels.

Responsibility for health and safety lies both with the HFRS and with the HFRA. It
is crucial that Members have a full understanding of our arrangements and are
satisfied that they are both suitable and sufficient to meet our statutory obligations
as an employer.

Resource implications

There are no additional human resources, information and communications
technology, physical resources or financial implications arising from this report.

Conclusion

Our Health and Safety Policy is provided to ensure that all staff are committed to
health and safety and are fully engaged with our core health and safety values:

Health and Safety is everyone’s responsibility

Personal safety is our highest priority

Health and Safety can and will be effectively managed

Every work related injury or illness could, and should, have been prevented

Background papers

The following documents disclose the facts or matters on which this report, or an
important part of it, is based and has been relied upon to a material extent in the
preparation of the report:

None

Note: The list excludes: (1) published works; and (2) documents that disclose
exempt or confidential information defined in the Act.

Page 178



HAMPSHIRE
FIRE AND

RESCUE
AUTHORITY

—_—

ﬂ:ﬁ‘;ii'i;:‘\\\

Health and Safety — Statement of Intent

Commitment

“You have our absolute commitment that Health and Safety will always be at the forefront of our decision
making and we ask you to prioritise it in the same way, it must always be the first consideration in anything
we do”. CFO Dave Curry and the Chairman of Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority.

Purpose

The purpose of this statement is to help reinforce our organisational culture and working environments, in
which we all aspire to prevent harm and ensure everyone goes home unharmed everyday.

Principles

Our Health and Safety Policy defines the responsibilities at each organisational level, providing direction on
how to manage workplace risks.

Legislation provides for a minimum standard, however, where reasonably practicable we will seek to
achieve the highest possible standards and continually seek to improve our health and safety performance.
The prevention of injury and iliness is an indispensable part of our organisational culture.

Our intent is to:

e Meet and where practicable exceed legal compliance requirements.

e Demonstrate the strategic importance of Health and Safety by the provision of visible leadership.

e Ensure the availability of resources needed to implement this policy.

e Empower our employees to carry out their work in a competent and diligent manner and to report and
rectify any unsafe act or condition.

e Make a continuous effort to prevent accidents and cases of work related ill health.

e Investigate accidents, incidents and near misses and to identify and implement improvements.

e Ensure a framework exists for setting and reviewing health and safety improvement plans.

e Provide access to competent health and safety advice.

e Provide adequate control of the health and safety risks associated with our activities.

e Employ competent and qualified people and provide training and support as necessary.

e Provide appropriate information, instruction and supervision.

e Consult with our employees on matters affecting their health and safety.

e Commit the organisation to maintain effective systems of communication.

e Provide and maintain safe plant and equipment.

e Ensure safe handling and use of substances.

e Undertake regular measuring and monitoring to check health and safety performance.

e Ensure that this statement remains effective and relevant through regular reviews.

Employees are reminded that there is a legal requirement for them to co-operate and take care of their own
safety and health and that of others affected by their activities.

Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority have overall responsibility for the health, safety and welfare of all
employees in the Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service and others who may be affected by our activities.

Signed:

Councillor

Chairman of Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority

Date:

For and on behalf of Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority

Page 179



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 14

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 181



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 183



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 187



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 193



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	8 Constitution of HFRA
	HFRA proposed Constitution

	9 Appointment of Standards and Governance Committee and Other Appointments
	Appointments Ap 4 HFRA S&G Ind Person

	10 Chief Officer Recruitment
	11 Annual Governance Statement 2016-17
	Annual Governance Statement 2016-2017 HFRS Final

	12 Fire Governance Options Appraisal Project
	13 Minutes of Standards and Governance Committee 23 March 2017
	S&G Statement of Intent report
	S&G Statement of Intent

	14 Appointment of Standards and Governance Committee and Other Appointments (EXEMPT APPENDIX)
	BB
	EL
	MC


